
 
 

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
(SPECIAL) 

 

TUESDAY 2 MARCH 2004 
7.30 PM  

 
COMMITTEE AGENDA 

 
COMMITTEE ROOMS 1&2, 
HARROW CIVIC CENTRE 

 
 

 
  MEMBERSHIP    (Quorum 3)  
 
    
 
  Chair: 

 
Councillor Jean Lammiman 

 
Councillors: 

 
Blann 
Mitzi Green 
Ann Groves 
Ingram 
Marie-Louise Nolan 
Thammaiah 
 

Osborn 
Pinkus 
Seymour 
Versallion 
 

(none) 
 

(none) 
 

 
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. Gate 
2. Ismail 
3. Currie 
4. Lent 
5. Lavingia 
 

1. Myra Michael 
2. Mrs Champagnie 
3. Mary John 
4. Miss Bednell 
5. John Nickolay 
 

(none) 
 

(none) 
 

 
Issued by the Committee Services Section, 

Law and Administration Division 
 
Contact:  Claire Vincent, Committee Secretary 
Tel:  020 8424 1637    E-mail:  claire.vincent@harrow.gov.uk 



 

 

 
  HARROW COUNCIL 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (SPECIAL) 
 
TUESDAY 2 MARCH 2004 
 

 
 

  AGENDA – PART I   
 

1. Attendance by Reserve Members:    
 To note the attendance at this meeting of duly appointed Reserve Members 

(if any). 
 

2. Declarations of Interest:    
 To receive declarations of interest (if any) from Members of the Committee 

arising from the business to be transacted at this meeting. 
 

3. Arrangement of Agenda:    
 To consider whether any of the items listed on the agenda should be 

considered with the press and public excluded on the grounds that it is 
thought likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, that 
there would be disclosure of confidential information in breach of an 
obligation of confidence or of exempt information as defined in the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985. 
 

4. Minutes:    
 The signing of the minutes of the meeting held on 3 February 2004 to be 

deferred until the next ordinary meeting of the Committee. 
 

5. Annual Audit Letter and Relationship Manager Letters 2002-3:  (Pages 1 
- 54) 

Enc. 

 Joint report of the Executive Director (Business Connections) and the 
Executive Director (Organisational Development). 
 
(Notes: (i) The above report was considered by Cabinet on 17 February 2004.  
The relevant minute of the Cabinet meeting will be circulated to Members and 
Reserve Members of the Committee in due course; 
 
(ii) Messrs Nigel Johnson and Angus Fish of Deloitte and Touche will be in 
attendance at the meeting for the above item.) 
 

6. Progress Report on the Draft HR Strategy:  (Pages 55 - 84) Enc. 
 Report of the Executive Director (Organisational Development). 

 
(Notes:  (i)  The above report was circulated on the agenda for the last 
meeting of the Committee on 3 February 2004, but it was agreed at that 
meeting to defer consideration of the item to this meeting.  Since the last 
meeting, the HR Strategy has been amended; the revised version of the 
strategy is included on this agenda; 
 
(ii)  The Finance and Human Resources and Performance Management 
Portfolio Holder, Councillor Dighé, will be in attendance at the meeting for this 
item and the following item.) 
 



 

 

Enc. 7. Annual Report of HR Portfolio Holder for 2002/2003:  (Pages 85 - 94) 
 
8. Medium Term Capital Budget Strategy and Capital Investment Plan:  

(Pages 95 - 102) 
Enc. 

 Joint report of the Executive Director (Urban Living) and the Executive 
Director (Business Connections). 
 
(Note: The above report was considered by Cabinet on 17 February 2004.  
The relevant minute of the Cabinet meeting will be circulated to Members and 
Reserve Members of the Committee in due course). 
 

9. Improvement Progress Report and Best Value Performance Indicators - 
Quarterly Monitoring Report:  (Pages 103 - 142) 

Enc. 

 Report of the Executive Director (Organisational Development). 
 

  AGENDA – PART II - NIL   
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 
 
 

Meeting: 
 

Cabinet 

Date: 
 

17th February 2004 

Subject: 
 

Annual Audit & Relationship Manager Letters 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Responsible 
Chief Officer: 
 

Executive Director (Business Connections) and Executive 
Director (Organisational Development) 

Relevant 
Portfolio Holder: 
 

Finance & Human Resources & Performance Management 

Status: 
 

Part 1 

Ward: 
 

All 

Enclosures: 
 

Annual Audit and Relationship Manager Letters 

  
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report provides Cabinet with the annual letters from the Council’s external auditors and 

the relationship manager appointed by the Audit Commission. 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That Cabinet note the contents of the letters and endorse the proposed Action 

Plan to meet the recommendations contained therein. 
 
2.2 That Cabinet note that the letters will be considered by Overview & Scrutiny at 

their next meeting. 
 
 

REASON: 
 
In order to meet the statutory requirement for the executive to consider the 
contents of the annual audit and relationship manager letters.  
 

 
 
3. Consultation with Ward Councillors 
 
3.1 None 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5
Pages 1 to 54

1



4. Policy Context (including Relevant Previous Decisions) 
 
4.1 The letters cover key issues regarding the Council’s performance in delivering its policies 

effectively. 
 
5.  Relevance to Corporate Priorities 
 
5.1 The contents of the letters are relevant to all corporate priorities. 
                                                                                                           
6. Background Information and options considered 
 
6.1 It is a statutory requirement for the Council’s external auditors (currently Deloitte & 

Touche LLP) and the relationship manager appointed by the Audit Commission to 
provide the Council with letters on an annual basis detailing the work they have 
undertaken during the year, their key findings in undertaking that work and any 
recommendations for improvement stemming from that work. 

 
6.2 The Council has a statutory obligation to publish these letters and it is intended to place 

them on the internet site and place copies in public libraries.   
 
6.3 Appendix 1 to the Audit letter (the Action Plan) identifies the key recommendations made 

by the external auditors, how Officers propose to respond to these recommendations and 
the timescale for completing these actions.  Cabinet is requested to endorse this action 
plan. 

 
6.4 The letters will also be presented to Overview & Scrutiny Committee at their next meeting 

to enable them to fulfil their responsibilities for corporate governance. 
  
7. Consultation 
 
7.1 None specifically 
 
8. Financial Observations 
 
8.1 The Audit letter deals with a number of financial issues.  These will be addressed as 

noted in the Action Plan. 
 
9. Legal Observations 
 
9.1 None 
 
10. Conclusion 
  
10.1 This report presents the annual letters from the Council’s external auditors and 

relationship manager to Cabinet, together with a proposed Action Plan to meet the 
recommendations contained therein.  

 
11. Background Papers 
 
11.1 There are no background papers. 
 
 
 

2



12. Authors 
 
12.1 Nick Bell 

Executive Director (Business Connections) 
 
Jill Rothwell 
Executive Director (Organisational Development) 
 
30th January 2004 
 
 
 
 

 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w 

A
ud

it 
L

et
te

r 
20

02
/3

 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

 

 

  

Th
is

 re
po

rt 
ha

s b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s o

f t
he

 li
m

ita
tio

ns
 se

t o
ut

 o
n 

pa
ge

 3
1.

 

5



 

  Th
e 

M
em

be
rs

 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ar
ro

w
 

C
iv

ic
 O

ff
ic

es
 

 29
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

04
 

D
ea

r M
em

be
rs

 

20
02

/3
 A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
L

et
te

r 

W
e 

ha
ve

 p
le

as
ur

e 
in

 s
ub

m
itt

in
g 

ou
r 2

00
3 

A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r t

o 
yo

u,
 w

hi
ch

 s
um

m
ar

is
es

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
re

su
lts

 a
nd

 c
on

cl
us

io
ns

 fr
om

 o
ur

 
au

di
t w

or
k 

ov
er

 th
e 

la
st

 y
ea

r, 
ou

r f
irs

t a
s t

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y’

s e
xt

er
na

l a
ud

ito
rs

.  
 

A
s y

ou
 w

ill
 k

no
w

, o
ur

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

is
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

Pr
ac

tic
e 

fo
r L

oc
al

 
A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

 in
 E

ng
la

nd
 a

nd
 W

al
es

 (“
th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e”

). 
 S

ec
tio

n 
1 

of
 th

is
 le

tte
r s

ho
w

s 
ho

w
 w

e 
ha

ve
 c

ov
er

ed
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d 
th

e 
ke

y 
is

su
es

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 o
ur

 w
or

k 
th

at
 w

e 
co

ns
id

er
 th

e 
Tr

us
t B

oa
rd

 n
ee

ds
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 a
s p

rio
rit

ie
s o

ve
r t

he
 c

om
in

g 
m

on
th

s. 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

, w
e 

ha
ve

 li
ai

se
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
M

an
ag

er
, M

s 
Ja

ck
ie

 B
ar

rie
-P

ur
se

ll,
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 

on
 t

he
 j

oi
nt

 2
00

3 
au

di
t 

an
d 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
pl

an
, 

an
d 

on
 t

he
 Q

ua
lit

at
iv

e 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t. 
 W

e 
ha

ve
 a

ls
o 

be
en

 e
ng

ag
ed

 t
o 

pi
lo

t 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

w
or

k 
at

 y
ou

r 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

as
 p

ar
t o

f 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 a

tte
m

pt
s 

fo
r 

m
or

e 
“j

oi
ne

d-
up

” 
au

di
t a

nd
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

ac
tiv

ity
.  

Th
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
w

or
k 

w
e 

ar
e 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 h
as

 n
ot

 y
et

 ta
ke

n 
pl

ac
e 

as
 th

is
 w

as
 sc

he
du

le
d 

to
 b

e 
do

ne
 in

 e
ar

ly
 2

00
4.

 

Th
e 

pr
io

rit
is

ed
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 in

 A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

pu
lls

 to
ge

th
er

 a
ll 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 w
ith

in
 th

is
 le

tte
r. 

 T
hi

s s
ho

ul
d 

as
si

st
 y

ou
 in

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 o
ur

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

.  
A

n 
up

da
te

 to
 o

ur
 a

ud
it 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

dv
is

ed
 in

 o
ur

 A
ud

it 
Pl

an
 is

 
at

ta
ch

ed
 a

t A
pp

en
di

x 
2.

 

W
e 

lo
ok

 f
or

w
ar

d 
to

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

fu
rth

er
 o

ur
 a

ud
it 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

w
ith

 y
ou

r 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

in
 t

he
 c

om
in

g 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 e

xp
re

ss
 o

ur
 

gr
at

itu
de

 fo
r t

he
 c

o-
op

er
at

io
n 

w
e 

ha
ve

 re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 o

ur
 fi

rs
t y

ea
r a

s y
ou

r a
ud

ito
rs

. 

Y
ou

rs
 fa

ith
fu

lly
 

D
el

oi
tt

e 
&

 T
ou

ch
e 

L
L

P 

6



 

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
 

C
on

te
nt

s 
 1.

 
K

ey
 p

oi
nt

s 
1 

2.
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

fin
an

ci
al

 st
an

di
ng

 
6 

3.
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

12
 

4.
 

St
at

em
en

t o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

20
 

5.
 

In
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 a
nd

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
22

 
6.

 
St

an
da

rd
s o

f c
on

du
ct

 a
nd

 fr
au

d 
an

d 
co

rr
up

tio
n 

26
 

7.
 

L
eg

al
ity

 
28

 
8.

 
N

ex
t y

ea
r’

s a
ud

it 
pl

an
 

29
 

9.
 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
nd

 a
ud

it 
fe

es
 

30
 

10
. 

St
at

em
en

t o
f r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 
31

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

1:
  A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 

32
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
2:

  U
pd

at
e 

on
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

35
 

 

7



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
1 

1.
 

K
ey

 p
oi

nt
s 

1.
1.

 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 a

ud
it 

fin
di

ng
s a

nd
 c

on
cl

us
io

ns
 

W
e 

su
m

m
ar

is
e 

be
lo

w
 th

e 
ke

y 
au

di
t f

in
di

ng
s a

nd
 c

on
cl

us
io

ns
 fr

om
 o

ur
 a

ud
it.

 

C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
ar

ea
 

A
ud

it 
fin

di
ng

s a
nd

 c
on

cl
us

io
ns

 

O
ve

ra
ll 

fin
an

ci
al

 st
an

di
ng

 
D

ur
in

g 
20

02
 a

nd
 2

00
3,

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

fir
st

 r
ev

ie
w

ed
 a

nd
 i

m
pr

ov
ed

 i
ts

 
bu

dg
et

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
re

po
rti

ng
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 t
he

n 
ta

ck
le

d 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

w
ith

 u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

bu
dg

et
s. 

 I
t 

is
 m

an
ag

in
g 

its
 f

in
an

ce
s 

in
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

m
an

ne
r a

nd
 in

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t b

ud
ge

t c
yc

le
 is

 s
tre

ng
th

en
in

g 
lin

ks
 w

ith
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

la
nn

in
g.

  
Fi

na
nc

ia
l 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
la

st
 t

w
el

ve
 

m
on

th
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
at

is
fa

ct
or

y 
an

d 
re

ce
nt

 w
in

df
al

l 
ga

in
s 

ha
s 

en
ab

le
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 b

ui
ld

-u
p 

re
se

rv
es

 a
bo

ve
 th

e 
m

in
im

um
 le

ve
l i

t h
av

e 
se

t i
ts

el
f a

nd
 to

 
ea

rm
ar

k 
fu

nd
s 

fo
r 

‘in
ve

st
 t

o 
sa

ve
’ 

sc
he

m
es

. 
 A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 C
en

tra
l 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t f

un
di

ng
 a

nd
 le

gi
sl

at
iv

e 
ch

an
ge

s, 
to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 in
ve

st
 

to
 f

un
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
am

bi
tio

us
 i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

pl
an

s, 
H

ar
ro

w
 i

nc
re

as
ed

 
C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
bi

lls
 b

y 
19

.8
%

 f
or

 2
00

3/
4,

 p
la

ci
ng

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

in
 t

he
 u

pp
er

 
qu

ar
til

e 
of

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s. 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

no
w

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
es

 a
 C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
in

cr
ea

se
 

of
 3

.8
7%

 (d
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f c

on
su

lta
tio

n)
 fo

r 2
00

4/
5.

 

Th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
ev

en
ue

 A
cc

ou
nt

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 s

its
 o

ut
si

de
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ge
ne

ra
l 

bu
dg

et
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

. 
 I

t 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 r
ec

en
t 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 i
n 

fin
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
es

 a
t H

ar
ro

w
 a

nd
 to

 li
nk

 to
 c

or
po

ra
te

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

ud
en

tia
l i

nd
ic

at
or

s. 

Th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

ub
st

an
tia

l s
lip

pa
ge

 o
n 

ca
pi

ta
l b

ud
ge

ts
.  

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ne
ed

s 
to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
its

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f i
ts

 c
ap

ita
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

8



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
2 

 

C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
ar

ea
 

A
ud

it 
fin

di
ng

s a
nd

 c
on

cl
us

io
ns

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

O
ur

 a
ud

it 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
re

fle
ct

ed
 a

 jo
in

t w
or

k 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

ot
he

r 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

ag
en

ci
es

 t
o 

m
on

ito
r 

an
d 

te
st

 t
he

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
m

ad
e 

ag
ai

ns
t 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s o
w

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

ns
. 

A
 s

tu
dy

 l
oo

ki
ng

 a
t 

th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 
de

fe
rr

ed
 

un
til

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

pr
oj

ec
t 

to
 

re
vi

ew
 

an
d 

up
gr

ad
e 

its
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 in
 th

is
 a

re
a 

ha
s b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
.  

W
e 

ha
ve

 re
ce

nt
ly

 a
gr

ee
d 

te
rm

s 
of

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 f

or
 a

 s
m

al
l 

st
ud

y 
lo

ok
in

g 
at

 t
he

 I
C

T 
st

ra
te

gy
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
by

 
m

em
be

rs
 in

 la
te

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

3.
 

W
e 

co
nc

lu
de

d 
fr

om
 o

ur
 re

vi
ew

 o
f a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

es
 

th
at

 H
ar

ro
w

 h
ad

 r
es

po
nd

ed
 to

 a
ll 

of
 th

e 
ke

y 
po

in
ts

 r
ai

se
d 

by
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
in

 t
hi

s 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 i

s 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 f

ur
th

er
 t

o 
de

al
 w

ith
 

lim
ita

tio
ns

 i
n 

th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
ca

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

tig
ht

 t
im

et
ab

le
 f

or
 t

he
 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

fir
st

 S
tra

te
gy

. 

W
e 

ha
ve

 i
ss

ue
d 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
au

di
t 

op
in

io
n 

on
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

B
es

t 
V

al
ue

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

Pl
an

. 
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
its

 
da

ta
 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 re
sp

ec
t o

f p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
. 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 re

gu
la

rly
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

pr
og

re
ss

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

la
n 

it 
se

t 
its

el
f. 

 T
he

 o
ut

co
m

e 
of

 t
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 q
ua

lit
at

iv
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
in

 D
ec

em
be

r 
co

nf
irm

ed
 t

ha
t 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

an
d 

em
ph

as
is

ed
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r H
ar

ro
w

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 w

ith
 it

s i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

ns
. 

9



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
3 

 

C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
ar

ea
 

A
ud

it 
fin

di
ng

s a
nd

 c
on

cl
us

io
ns

 

St
at

em
en

t o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

W
e 

m
et

 w
ith

 a
 s

ub
-c

om
m

itt
ee

 o
f 

th
e 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
18

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

03
 to

 d
is

cu
ss

 t
he

 o
ut

co
m

e 
of

 o
ur

 a
ud

it 
of

 t
he

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

of
 

ac
co

un
ts

.  
W

e 
is

su
ed

 a
n 

un
qu

al
ifi

ed
 a

ud
it 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
20

02
/3

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
of

 
th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y,

 a
lth

ou
gh

 t
he

re
 w

er
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

m
ad

e 
to

 t
he

 o
rig

in
al

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 fo

r a
ud

it.
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ne
ed

s 
to

 e
xa

m
in

e 
its

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 f

or
 t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

an
d 

au
di

t 
pr

oc
es

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

it 
is

 a
bl

e 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 t
he

 p
ha

se
d 

ac
ce

le
ra

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 

st
at

ut
or

y 
tim

et
ab

le
 f

or
 t

he
 a

pp
ro

va
l 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
of

 
ac

co
un

ts
 o

ve
r t

he
 n

ex
t t

hr
ee

 y
ea

rs
.  

It 
al

so
 n

ee
ds

 to
 p

re
pa

re
 fo

r o
th

er
 p

os
si

bl
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
ch

an
ge

s w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
ne

ce
ss

ita
te

d 
by

 th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t i

ni
tia

tiv
e 

to
 

pr
od

uc
e 

ag
gr

eg
at

ed
 a

cc
ou

nt
s f

or
 th

e 
w

ho
le

 o
f c

en
tra

l a
nd

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t. 

10



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
4 

 

C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
ar

ea
 

A
ud

it 
fin

di
ng

s a
nd

 c
on

cl
us

io
ns

 

In
te

rn
al

 
co

nt
ro

l 
an

d 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
W

e 
ha

ve
 c

om
m

en
te

d 
in

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
re

po
rts

 o
n 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ar
ea

s 
of

 w
ea

kn
es

s 
w

hi
ch

 
w

e 
w

is
h 

to
 b

rin
g 

to
 th

e 
at

te
nt

io
n 

of
 o

ff
ic

er
s 

an
d 

su
m

m
ar

is
ed

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
po

in
ts

 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
is

 L
et

te
r. 

W
e 

di
sc

us
se

d 
is

su
es

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 th
e 

ro
le

 o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it,
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

fin
an

ci
al

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 a
nd

 r
es

ou
rc

in
g 

w
ith

 I
nt

er
na

l 
A

ud
it 

m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
w

ith
 

se
ni

or
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
t t

he
 C

ou
nc

il.
  

W
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

m
em

be
rs

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

ei
r 

pr
op

os
al

s 
ca

re
fu

lly
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt 
th

e 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 a

n 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 re

so
ur

ce
d 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
fu

nc
tio

n.
 

W
e 

re
co

gn
is

e 
th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 

m
ad

e 
by

 
H

ar
ro

w
 

in
 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 

its
 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
es

. 

W
e 

no
te

 th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 k
ee

p 
its

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 u

nd
er

 
re

vi
ew

. 
 G

iv
en

 t
he

 i
m

m
in

en
t 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t 

on
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
fo

r 
pu

bl
is

hi
ng

 a
 

St
at

em
en

t 
of

 
In

te
rn

al
 

C
on

tro
l 

an
d 

th
e 

en
ha

nc
ed

 
au

di
t 

re
po

rti
ng

 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
to

 th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e,
 w

e 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 g

iv
e 

se
rio

us
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f a
n 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

. 

11



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
5 

 

C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
ar

ea
 

A
ud

it 
fin

di
ng

s a
nd

 c
on

cl
us

io
ns

 

St
an

da
rd

s 
of

 c
on

du
ct

 a
nd

 f
ra

ud
 a

nd
 

co
rr

up
tio

n 
A

s 
au

di
to

rs
 w

e 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 t
he

 C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 p
ut

 i
n 

pl
ac

e 
by

 H
ar

ro
w

 t
o 

pr
ev

en
t 

an
d 

de
te

ct
 f

ra
ud

 a
nd

 
co

rr
up

tio
n 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
e 

hi
gh

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f 
fin

an
ci

al
 c

on
du

ct
.  

A
s 

th
is

 is
 o

ur
 

fir
st

 y
ea

r 
as

 a
ud

ito
rs

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il,
 w

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t a
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t, 

fo
cu

si
ng

 
on

 o
ve

ra
ll 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. 

O
ur

 o
ve

ra
ll 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

sh
ow

ed
 t

ha
t 

H
ar

ro
w

 h
ad

 i
n 

pl
ac

e 
th

e 
ke

y 
co

rp
or

at
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 th
at

 w
e 

w
ou

ld
 e

xp
ec

t t
o 

fin
d 

in
 a

 si
m

ila
rly

 si
ze

d 
au

th
or

ity
. 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
ar

ea
s f

or
 fu

rth
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f b

en
ef

its
 to

 
re

sp
on

d 
to

 p
oi

nt
s r

ai
se

d 
by

 th
e 

B
en

ef
it 

Fr
au

d 
In

sp
ec

to
ra

te
 (B

FI
). 

Le
ga

lit
y 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ta
ke

s 
st

ep
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
le

ga
lit

y 
of

 t
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

a 
fin

an
ci

al
 c

on
se

qu
en

ce
.  

O
ur

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 th
is

 
ar

ea
, 

w
hi

ch
 w

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 t

o 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 f
or

 t
he

 p
ur

po
se

s 
of

 t
he

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

R
ef

re
sh

, s
co

re
d 

th
is

 a
t 

Le
ve

l 
4,

 t
he

 t
op

 
le

ve
l. 

 W
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 re
ce

iv
ed

 a
ny

 fo
rm

al
 o

bj
ec

tio
ns

 si
nc

e 
ou

r a
pp

oi
nt

m
en

t a
nd

 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 o

bj
ec

tio
ns

 in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f p

rio
r y

ea
r p

er
io

ds
 o

f a
cc

ou
nt

. 
 

12



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
6 

2.
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

fin
an

ci
al

 st
an

di
ng

 

2.
1.

 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

K
ey

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
s:

 

❏
 

N
et

 r
ev

en
ue

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 in
 2

00
2/

03
 w

as
 u

nd
er

sp
en

t b
y 

£2
.6

 m
ill

io
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 r
e-

pr
ic

ed
 b

ud
ge

t o
f 

£2
03

.6
 m

ill
io

n,
 

w
ith

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 to
 e

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
re

se
rv

es
 o

f 
£1

.3
 m

ill
io

n 
an

d 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 g

en
er

al
 f

un
d 

re
se

rv
es

 o
f 

£2
.2

 m
ill

io
n 

ac
hi

ev
ed

.  
Th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 b

ud
ge

t w
as

 fo
r a

 p
la

nn
ed

 u
se

 o
f g

en
er

al
 fu

nd
 re

se
rv

es
 o

f £
0.

5 
m

ill
io

n.
 

❏
 

Th
e 

la
te

st
 r

ev
en

ue
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rt 
fo

r 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t y
ea

r 
sh

ow
s 

a 
pr

ed
ic

te
d 

un
de

rly
in

g 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 w

hi
ch

 is
 c

lo
se

 to
 b

ud
ge

t (
ne

t 
pr

ed
ic

te
d 

ou
ttu

rn
 o

ve
rs

pe
nd

 o
f 

£0
.3

 m
ill

io
n)

. 
 G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

ba
la

nc
es

 h
av

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 r

el
ea

se
 o

f 
£0

.3
 m

ill
io

n 
fr

om
 

am
ou

nt
s 

ea
rm

ar
ke

d 
to

 fu
nd

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 s
in

gl
e 

st
at

us
 a

nd
 a

 w
in

df
al

l £
0.

8 
m

ill
io

n 
fr

om
 b

ac
kd

at
ed

 re
du

ct
io

ns
 in

 b
us

in
es

s 
ra

te
s p

ai
d 

on
 C

ou
nc

il 
pr

op
er

tie
s. 

 A
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l £
0.

5 
m

ill
io

n 
ha

s b
ee

n 
ea

rm
ar

ke
d 

to
 fu

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t c
ha

ng
e.

 

❏
 

Th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
ev

en
ue

 A
cc

ou
nt

 r
ec

or
de

d 
a 

de
fic

it 
of

 £
0.

9 
m

ill
io

n 
in

 2
00

2/
03

, a
ga

in
st

 a
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

de
fic

it 
of

 £
2.

0 
m

ill
io

n.
  

In
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t f
in

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s b
ud

ge
te

d 
fo

r a
 d

ef
ic

it 
of

 £
2.

5 
m

ill
io

n 
ag

ai
ns

t a
n 

op
en

in
g 

ba
la

nc
e 

of
 £

2.
8 

m
ill

io
n.

 

❏
 

Th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l b

ud
ge

t s
lip

pe
d 

by
 a

 n
et

 £
3.

9 
m

ill
io

n 
du

rin
g 

20
02

/0
3.

  F
or

ec
as

t s
lip

pa
ge

 fo
r 2

00
4/

5 
is

 n
ow

 in
 e

xc
es

s o
f £

12
 m

ill
io

n.
 

 

H
ar

ro
w

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
cr

iti
ci

sm
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
20

02
 C

or
po

ra
te

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

(C
PA

) 
pr

oc
es

s 
fo

r 
w

ea
k 

bu
dg

et
ar

y 
co

nt
ro

l l
ea

di
ng

 to
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 ta
ke

 in
 y

ea
r a

ct
io

n 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 o
ve

rs
pe

nd
in

g.
  D

ur
in

g 
20

02
 a

nd
 2

00
3,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

fir
st

 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

ed
 it

s 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 th
en

 ta
ck

le
d 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

w
ith

 u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

bu
dg

et
s 

(s
ee

 s
ec

tio
n 

3.
2)

. 
 T

hi
s 

ap
pe

ar
s 

to
 b

e 
de

liv
er

in
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 i
n 

co
nt

ro
l 

ov
er

 s
pe

nd
in

g 
ov

er
 t

he
 t

w
el

ve
 

m
on

th
s 

an
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

re
ce

nt
ly

 b
ee

n 
ab

le
 t

o 
ea

rm
ar

k 
am

ou
nt

s 
fo

r 
‘in

ve
st

 t
o 

sa
ve

’ 
sc

he
m

es
 a

nd
 t

o 
bu

ild
-u

p 
G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

ba
la

nc
es

. 

Th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
ev

en
ue

 A
cc

ou
nt

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 s

its
 o

ut
si

de
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ge
ne

ra
l b

ud
ge

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

nd
, a

s 
a 

co
ns

eq
ue

nc
e,

 
ha

s 
no

t 
be

en
 i

nc
lu

de
d 

w
ith

in
 r

ec
en

t 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 i

n 
fin

an
ci

al
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
pr

ac
tic

es
 a

t 
H

ar
ro

w
 (

se
e 

se
ct

io
n 

3.
2)

.  
U

nl
ik

e 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ot
he

r 
re

ve
nu

e 
bu

dg
et

s, 
fin

an
ci

al
 p

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r 

th
e 

H
R

A
 h

as
 n

ot
 y

et
 b

ee
n 

ex
te

nd
ed

 to
 c

ov
er

 a
 

13



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
7 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ho
riz

on
 –

 b
ud

ge
ts

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 b

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 fo

r a
 si

ng
le

 y
ea

r o
nl

y.
  A

ls
o,

 u
nl

ik
e 

ot
he

r C
ou

nc
il 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
bu

dg
et

s, 
no

 fu
ll 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 H
R

A
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
fo

r a
 n

um
be

r o
f y

ea
rs

.  
 

Sp
en

d 
on

 th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
du

rin
g 

20
02

/3
 a

m
ou

nt
ed

 to
 £

21
.2

 m
ill

io
n,

 a
ga

in
st

 a
 b

ud
ge

t i
n 

Ju
ne

 2
00

2 
of

 £
25

.1
 

m
ill

io
n,

 w
ith

 s
lip

pa
ge

 a
nd

 re
du

ct
io

ns
 o

f £
10

.9
 m

ill
io

n 
an

d 
ne

w
 s

ch
em

es
 o

f £
7.

1 
m

ill
io

n.
  S

lip
pa

ge
 o

r r
e-

ph
as

in
g 

fo
r 

20
04

/5
 o

f £
12

.8
 m

ill
io

n 
ha

s 
so

 fa
r b

ee
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
ou

t o
f a

 to
ta

l c
ap

ita
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 £
44

.7
 m

ill
io

n.
  W

hi
ls

t t
he

re
 a

re
 

so
m

et
im

es
 g

oo
d 

re
as

on
s 

fo
r s

lip
pa

ge
 o

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s, 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
sh

ou
ld

 e
ns

ur
e 

as
 fa

r a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

 th
at

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 f

irm
 c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t p

ro
ce

ed
in

g 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 t
he

 c
ap

ita
l 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e.

  
Sl

ip
pa

ge
 i

n 
th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
m

ay
 m

ea
n 

th
at

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 

un
ab

le
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 it
s 

ke
y 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
lin

ke
d 

to
 it

s 
C

ap
ita

l S
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n 
an

d 
ca

n 
ha

ve
 k

no
ck

-o
n 

ef
fe

ct
s o

n 
th

e 
re

ve
nu

e 
pl

an
s, 

m
ak

in
g 

it 
di

ff
ic

ul
t t

o 
ac

cu
ra

te
ly

 fo
re

ca
st

 fo
r t

he
 re

ve
nu

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f t

he
 c

ap
ita

l p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 

Fo
re

ca
st

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

sc
he

m
es

 s
ta

rti
ng

 i
n 

20
03

/4
, 

al
th

ou
gh

 t
he

 p
os

iti
on

 i
s 

de
pe

nd
en

t 
on

 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 o

ve
r f

or
ec

as
t f

ut
ur

e 
ca

pi
ta

l r
ec

ei
pt

s. 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

 H
RA

 b
ud

ge
t l

in
ke

d 
to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 B
ud

ge
t S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

pr
ud

en
tia

l i
nd

ic
at

or
s 

an
d 

un
de

rt
ak

e 
a 

th
or

ou
gh

 re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 H
RA

 b
ud

ge
t, 

lo
ok

in
g 

at
 h

ow
 th

is
 su

pp
or

ts
 c

or
po

ra
te

 p
ri

or
iti

es
. 

Re
vi

ew
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

cu
rr

en
t p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

fo
r 

m
an

ag
in

g 
an

d 
m

on
ito

ri
ng

 th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
en

su
re

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ad
eq

ua
te

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

m
an

ag
e 

an
d 

m
on

ito
r 

its
 c

ap
ita

l 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 

  

14



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
8 

2.
2.

 
O

ve
ra

ll 
le

ve
ls 

of
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 a

nd
 b

al
an

ce
s 

K
ey

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
s:

 

❏
 

G
en

er
al

 r
es

er
ve

s 
ro

se
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 th

e 
in

te
rn

al
ly

 s
et

 m
in

im
um

 p
ru

de
nt

 r
es

er
ve

s 
le

ve
l o

f 
£4

 m
ill

io
n,

 s
ta

nd
in

g 
at

 £
5.

2 
m

ill
io

n 
at

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
3.

  
Th

e 
la

te
st

 r
ev

en
ue

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
re

po
rt 

an
tic

ip
at

es
 a

 f
ur

th
er

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 2

00
3/

4 
to

 £
5.

7 
m

ill
io

n,
 p

rin
ci

pa
lly

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
w

in
df

al
l b

us
in

es
s r

at
e 

re
ba

te
 o

f £
0.

8 
m

ill
io

n.
  T

he
 in

te
rn

al
ly

 se
t p

re
fe

rr
ed

 re
se

rv
es

 le
ve

l i
s £

7 
m

ill
io

n.
 

❏
 

Sc
ho

ol
s r

es
er

ve
s i

nc
re

as
ed

 a
ga

in
, f

ro
m

 £
4.

6 
m

ill
io

n 
to

 £
5.

8 
m

ill
io

n.
  T

hi
s i

s n
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r g
en

er
al

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 p
ur

po
se

s. 

❏
 

H
ou

si
ng

 R
ev

en
ue

 A
cc

ou
nt

 re
se

rv
es

 st
oo

d 
at

 £
2.

8 
m

ill
io

n 
at

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
3.

 

❏
 

Ea
rm

ar
ke

d 
re

se
rv

es
 to

 f
un

d 
fu

tu
re

 r
ev

en
ue

 o
r 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
s 

ro
se

 b
y 

£2
.1

 m
ill

io
n 

to
 £

6.
2 

m
ill

io
n 

at
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

3,
 th

e 
la

rg
es

t 
el

em
en

t b
ei

ng
 to

 fu
nd

 si
ng

le
 st

at
us

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
 

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

bi
lls

 fo
r 2

00
3/

4 
ro

se
 b

y 
19

.8
%

, p
la

ci
ng

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

in
 th

e 
up

pe
r q

ua
rti

le
 fo

r C
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

in
cr

ea
se

s. 
 T

he
 

un
de

rly
in

g 
bu

dg
et

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t i

nc
re

as
ed

 b
y 

13
.1

%
.  

Th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f t

he
 in

cr
ea

se
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
co

nt
ro

l r
el

at
ed

 
to

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

’ i
nv

es
tm

en
t i

n 
as

pe
ct

s o
f t

he
 N

ew
 H

ar
ro

w
 P

ro
je

ct
. 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
tic

ip
at

es
 a

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

in
cr

ea
se

 o
f 

3.
87

%
 (

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 t
he

 r
es

ul
ts

 o
f 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n)

 f
or

 2
00

4/
5,

 
re

pr
es

en
tin

g 
a 

re
du

ct
io

n 
fr

om
 t

he
 1

4.
4%

 i
nc

re
as

e 
fo

re
ca

st
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 t
he

 o
rig

in
al

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
in

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

03
.  

W
e 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 th

at
 o

ff
ic

er
s’

 in
iti

al
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f t

he
 re

ce
nt

 se
ttl

em
en

t a
nn

ou
nc

em
en

t i
s t

ha
t i

t i
s i

n 
lin

e 
w

ith
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 

m
ad

e 
in

 th
e 

re
fr

es
he

d 
M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 B
ud

ge
t S

tra
te

gy
. 

Pr
es

su
re

 o
n 

re
se

rv
es

 h
as

 re
du

ce
d 

w
ith

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 m
ad

e 
la

st
 y

ea
r a

nd
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r a

nd
 w

ith
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

to
 fi

na
nc

ia
l m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

es
 m

iti
ga

tin
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r h

ol
di

ng
 la

rg
er

 b
al

an
ce

s. 

15



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
9 

2.
3.

 
Ca

pi
ta

l f
in

an
ci

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts 

2.
3.

1.
 

PF
I p

ro
je

ct
s 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 w
e 

w
er

e 
re

qu
es

te
d 

by
 m

an
ag

em
en

t t
o 

re
vi

ew
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
tre

at
m

en
t f

or
 th

e 
un

de
rly

in
g 

as
se

ts
 in

 a
n 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
PF

I p
ro

je
ct

 w
hi

ch
 c

ov
er

s 
th

e 
de

si
gn

, b
ui

ld
, f

in
an

ce
 a

nd
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
K

in
gs

le
y,

 W
oo

dl
an

ds
 

an
d 

Li
ttl

e 
St

an
m

or
e 

Sc
ho

ol
s. 

 T
hi

s 
re

ac
he

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 c

lo
se

 in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

3.
  B

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 

us
, w

e 
w

er
e 

no
t m

in
de

d 
to

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s v

ie
w

 th
at

, u
nd

er
 th

e 
Tr

ea
su

ry
 T

as
kf

or
ce

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 N

ot
e 

N
o.

 1
 (t

he
 

ba
si

s 
on

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
so

ug
ht

 a
dv

is
e 

fr
om

 it
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 a
dv

is
er

s)
, t

he
 n

ew
 c

ap
ita

l a
ss

et
s 

be
in

g 
cr

ea
te

d 
un

de
r t

he
 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
PF

I P
ro

je
ct

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r a

s ‘
of

f-
ba

la
nc

e 
sh

ee
t’ 

fo
r t

he
 C

ou
nc

il.
 

A
s 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
ud

ito
rs

 o
f H

ar
ro

w
, w

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 fo
rm

 a
n 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
20

03
/4

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f A
cc

ou
nt

s. 
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 re
qu

ire
 u

s 
to

 c
on

si
de

r t
he

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
n 

un
de

r F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

St
an

da
rd

 5
 (‘

FR
S 

5’
) a

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

St
at

em
en

t 
of

 R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
(‘

SO
R

P’
) 

fo
r 

Lo
ca

l 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t. 
 I

t 
is

 o
ur

 v
ie

w
 t

ha
t 

un
de

r 
FR

S5
, 

w
ith

ou
t 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

th
e 

Tr
ea

su
ry

 T
as

kf
or

ce
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 N
ot

e 
N

o.
 1

 m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

, t
he

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t f

or
 s

om
e 

sc
he

m
es

 c
an

 re
su

lt 
in

 a
n 

‘o
n-

ba
la

nc
e 

sh
ee

t’ 
co

nc
lu

si
on

.  
It 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
no

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t i

nt
en

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
 is

 to
 a

lig
n 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

St
an

da
rd

s 
w

ith
 t

ha
t 

of
 I

nt
er

na
tio

na
l 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

St
an

da
rd

s, 
as

 s
oo

n 
as

 2
00

5,
 w

hi
ch

 i
s 

be
fo

re
 t

he
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

ph
as

e 
of

 th
is

 P
ro

je
ct

 is
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
.  

Th
is

 c
ou

ld
 re

su
lt 

in
 a

 fu
nd

am
en

ta
l c

ha
ng

e 
in

 th
e 

w
ay

 in
 w

hi
ch

 
PF

I p
ro

je
ct

s a
re

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 fo

r. 

2.
3.

2.
 

Pr
ud

en
tia

l C
od

e 

Fr
om

 1
 A

pr
il 

20
04

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ca

pi
ta

l 
co

nt
ro

ls
 r

eg
im

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
sw

ep
t 

aw
ay

 a
nd

 r
ep

la
ce

d 
w

ith
 t

he
 n

ew
 p

ru
de

nt
ia

l 
bo

rr
ow

in
g 

sy
st

em
. 

 T
hi

s 
is

 a
 m

or
e 

m
od

er
n 

w
ay

 o
f 

fin
an

ci
ng

 c
ap

ita
l 

ba
se

d 
on

 w
he

th
er

 y
ou

r 
pl

an
s 

ar
e 

pr
ud

en
t, 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
, a

s 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
by

 th
e 

C
IP

FA
 P

ru
de

nt
ia

l C
od

e.
  

N
ew

 f
or

m
s 

of
 

ex
te

rn
al

 b
or

ro
w

in
g 

w
ill

 b
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 to
 fi

xe
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 b
ut

 o
nl

y 
w

ith
in

 s
pe

ci
fic

 c
on

st
ra

in
ts

.  
Se

tti
ng

 th
e 

bo
un

da
rie

s 
fo

r t
he

se
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 in
 a

 m
ea

ni
ng

fu
l w

ay
 w

ill
 b

e 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
fo

r a
ll 

au
th

or
iti

es
 a

s 
th

ey
 w

ill
 re

qu
ire

 a
t l

ea
st

 th
re

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 r

ev
en

ue
 a

nd
 c

ap
ita

l 
fo

re
ca

st
s. 

 H
ar

ro
w

 n
ow

 h
as

 a
 m

ed
iu

m
 t

er
m

 r
ev

en
ue

 f
or

ec
as

t, 
bu

t 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 e

xt
en

d 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 h

or
iz

on
 u

se
d 

in
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
its

 c
ap

ita
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
  M

on
ito

rin
g 

ag
ai

ns
t s

om
e 

of
 th

e 
lim

its
 w

ill
 a

ls
o 

re
qu

ire
 

m
or

e 
ro

bu
st

 sh
or

t a
nd

 m
ed

iu
m

 te
rm

 c
as

hf
lo

w
 fo

re
ca

st
in

g 
th

an
 m

an
y 

au
th

or
iti

es
 h

av
e 

in
 p

la
ce

. 

16



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
10

 

A
s 

th
e 

ne
w

 s
ys

te
m

 c
om

es
 in

to
 fo

rc
e 

on
 1

 A
pr

il 
20

04
 it

 w
ill

 b
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
fo

r M
em

be
rs

 to
 s

et
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 li

m
its

 a
nd

 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 a
t t

he
 s

am
e 

tim
e 

as
 th

ey
 a

pp
ro

ve
 th

e 
bu

dg
et

 a
nd

 c
ou

nc
il 

ta
x 

fo
r n

ex
t y

ea
r. 

 W
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

th
at

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 

on
 h

ow
 to

 s
et

 th
es

e 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 a
re

 ta
bl

ed
 b

ef
or

e 
M

em
be

rs
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
is

su
es

 a
nd

 in
 a

 p
os

iti
on

 
to

 ta
ke

 in
fo

rm
ed

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 o

n 
th

e 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 f
or

 2
00

4/
5.

  
Pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

fu
rth

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 

sh
ou

ld
 th

en
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

ea
rly

 in
 th

e 
ne

xt
 fi

na
nc

ia
l y

ea
r t

o 
en

ab
le

 se
ns

ib
le

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 to

 b
e 

se
t f

or
 2

00
5/

6.
  

Th
e 

ne
w

 r
eg

im
e 

al
so

 i
m

pl
em

en
ts

 "
po

ol
in

g"
 o

f 
H

R
A

 c
ap

ita
l 

re
ce

ip
ts

. 
 A

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 H

R
A

 r
ec

ei
pt

s, 
le

ss
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

re
in

ve
st

ed
 in

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n,

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

pa
id

 o
ve

r t
o 

th
e 

O
D

PM
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 b
e 

re
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 
to

 th
e 

ar
ea

s 
of

 g
re

at
es

t n
ee

d.
  

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
lo

ss
 o

f 
th

es
e 

ca
pi

ta
l r

ec
ei

pt
s, 

cu
rr

en
t p

la
ns

 f
or

 
sp

en
di

ng
 o

n 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n,

 a
nd

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n 
fu

tu
re

 c
ap

ita
l p

la
ns

. 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 

C
al

l f
or

 a
nd

 c
on

si
de

r 
a 

re
po

rt
 o

n 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 o

f, 
an

d 
th

e 
ri

sk
s 

an
d 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

Pr
ud

en
tia

l C
od

e 
by

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
4 

so
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 p
os

iti
on

ed
 to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
in

 th
is

 n
ew

 fi
na

nc
in

g 
re

gi
m

e.
 

 2.
3.

3.
 

Lo
ca

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t F
in

an
ce

 T
ru

st
 C

om
pa

ny
 (L

IF
TC

O
) 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l P

rim
ar

y 
C

ar
e 

Tr
us

ts
 o

n 
es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
 a

 n
ew

 L
IF

TC
O

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
ve

hi
cl

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
w

hi
ch

 lo
ca

l h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 b

ot
h 

H
ar

ro
w

 a
nd

 B
re

nt
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

od
er

ni
se

d 
ov

er
 th

e 
ne

xt
 d

ec
ad

e.
  T

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s i

nv
ol

ve
m

en
t i

n 
th

is
 L

IF
TC

O
 n

ee
ds

 c
ar

ef
ul

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
as

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
se

ve
ra

l r
is

ks
 th

at
 a

re
 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

to
 th

is
 ty

pe
 o

f 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

t, 
no

t l
ea

st
 h

ow
 th

e 
LI

FT
C

O
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 d

ov
et

ai
l w

ith
 th

os
e 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il,
 h

ow
 c

on
fli

ct
s o

f i
nt

er
es

t a
re

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

an
d 

ho
w

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f L

IF
TC

O
 a

re
 m

an
ag

ed
. 

17



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
11

 

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 

En
su

re
 r

ep
or

ts
 t

o 
m

em
be

rs
 s

et
 o

ut
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

f 
pl

an
ne

d 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f 
th

e 
ne

w
 

LI
FT

C
O

 so
 th

at
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

re
 p

ut
 in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

 

18



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
12

 

3.
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

3.
1.

 
St

at
us

 o
f o

ur
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 

O
ur

 a
ud

it 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
re

fle
ct

ed
 a

 jo
in

t w
or

k 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

ot
he

r i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

ag
en

ci
es

 to
 m

on
ito

r a
nd

 te
st

 
th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s o

w
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

la
ns

, s
pe

ci
fic

al
ly

 c
on

si
de

rin
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 in
: 

!
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
es

 

!
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

!
 

IC
T 

st
ra

te
gy

 

!
 

C
ol

la
tin

g,
 a

na
ly

si
ng

 a
nd

 a
ct

in
g 

on
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 

!
 

Es
ta

bl
is

hi
ng

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s n
ew

 c
or

po
ra

te
 st

ru
ct

ur
e.

 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
w

or
k 

on
 re

vi
ew

in
g 

an
d 

up
gr

ad
in

g 
th

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
ha

s 
sl

ip
pe

d 
fr

om
 it

s 
or

ig
in

al
 

tim
et

ab
le

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t i

s 
no

t y
et

 c
om

pl
et

e.
  

O
ur

 p
la

nn
ed

 d
es

kt
op

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ne

w
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 h
as

 
th

er
ef

or
e 

be
en

 d
ef

er
re

d 
un

til
 n

ex
t y

ea
r. 

 W
e 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 lo
ok

in
g 

to
 e

ar
m

ar
k 

£0
.6

 m
ill

io
n 

to
 in

ve
st

 in
 

th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ch
an

ge
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 b

us
in

es
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

nd
 t

he
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

of
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t s

of
tw

ar
e.

 

Th
e 

IC
T 

st
ra

te
gy

 w
as

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 m
em

be
rs

 o
n 

24
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
3.

  W
e 

ha
ve

 a
gr

ee
d 

th
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

sc
op

e 
of

 o
ur

 re
vi

ew
 o

f 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 d

oc
um

en
t w

ith
 o

ff
ic

er
s. 

Th
e 

ne
w

 s
en

io
r m

an
ag

em
en

t s
tru

ct
ur

e 
is

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 a
pp

oi
nt

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
to

 a
ll 

bu
t t

w
o 

of
 th

e 
se

co
nd

 ti
er

 
po

st
s. 

 T
he

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

an
no

un
ce

d 
a 

re
vi

ew
 o

f m
id

dl
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t i

n 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
3 

an
d 

ha
s e

ng
ag

ed
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s 
to

 a
ss

is
t i

n 
th

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
.  

W
e 

w
ill

 k
ee

p 
ab

re
as

t o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 a
s 

ch
an

ge
s 

ar
e 

ex
te

nd
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

an
d 

be
d 

do
w

n.
 

19



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
13

 

3.
2.

 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

es
 

Th
e 

la
ck

 o
f m

ed
iu

m
 te

rm
 b

ud
ge

t s
tra

te
gy

 w
as

 ra
is

ed
 in

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 2
00

2 
C

or
po

ra
te

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t, 

to
ge

th
er

 
w

ith
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f h
is

to
ric

 ‘b
ud

ge
t d

iff
ic

ul
tie

s’
 in

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 b

ud
ge

t p
ro

ce
ss

 w
hi

ch
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
if 

pl
an

ne
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 e
ls

ew
he

re
 w

er
e 

to
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
.  

In
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

, H
ar

ro
w

’s
 b

as
e 

bu
dg

et
 b

or
e 

‘li
ttl

e 
re

se
m

bl
an

ce
’ t

o 
ac

tu
al

 
sp

en
di

ng
 a

nd
 w

as
 ‘

at
 l

ea
st

 £
2 

m
ill

io
n 

le
ss

 t
ha

n 
its

 c
ur

re
nt

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
om

m
itm

en
ts

’ 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 ‘
go

/s
to

p’
 b

ud
ge

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t i
n 

or
de

r t
o 

co
nt

ai
n 

ov
er

al
l e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

to
ta

l b
ud

ge
t, 

‘r
es

ou
rc

es
 w

er
e 

no
t l

in
ke

d 
to

 p
rio

rit
ie

s’
 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

w
as

 ‘
un

de
r 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 m

or
e 

sa
vi

ng
s’

.  
In

 a
dd

iti
on

, i
ni

tia
l b

ud
ge

ts
 w

er
e 

no
t 

ca
sh

 li
m

ite
d,

 w
ith

 a
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r i

nf
la

tio
n 

he
ld

 c
en

tra
lly

 m
ak

in
g 

bu
dg

et
ar

y 
co

nt
ro

l d
iff

ic
ul

t. 
 W

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t a
 re

vi
ew

 
of

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s u

se
d 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 m

ed
iu

m
 te

rm
 b

ud
ge

t s
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 p
la

ns
 a

nd
 o

ut
pu

t t
he

re
fr

om
 in

 e
ar

ly
 S

um
m

er
 2

00
3.

 

A
ga

in
st

 a
 ti

gh
t t

im
et

ab
le

, H
ar

ro
w

 a
gr

ee
d 

its
 fi

rs
t f

or
m

al
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

 b
ud

ge
t f

or
ec

as
t i

n 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
3,

 to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 a
 

20
03

/4
 a

nn
ua

l b
ud

ge
t w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l £
1.

7 
m

ill
io

n 
to

 c
or

re
ct

 f
or

 h
is

to
ric

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

bu
dg

et
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
ts

, w
ith

 c
as

h 
lim

ite
d 

de
pa

rtm
en

ta
l b

ud
ge

ts
 a

nd
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
ed

 b
ud

ge
t r

ep
rio

rit
is

at
io

ns
 o

f £
1.

8 
m

ill
io

n 
as

 a
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

of
 g

ro
w

th
 a

re
as

. 

O
ur

 v
ie

w
 is

 th
at

 H
ar

ro
w

 h
as

 re
sp

on
de

d 
to

 a
ll 

of
 th

e 
ke

y 
po

in
ts

 ra
is

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t o

n 
th

is
 a

sp
ec

t o
f 

its
 f

in
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
es

.  
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

d 
al

re
ad

y 
st

ar
te

d 
on

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 u

pd
at

in
g 

its
 I

ni
tia

l M
ed

iu
m

 
Te

rm
 B

ud
ge

t S
tra

te
gy

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 o

ur
 w

or
k.

  O
ff

ic
er

s 
w

er
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 li
m

ita
tio

ns
 in

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
ca

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

tig
ht

 t
im

et
ab

le
 f

or
 t

he
 p

ro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 t
he

 f
irs

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 h

av
e 

m
ad

e 
fu

rth
er

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 t

o 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

pr
oc

es
se

s t
o 

de
al

 w
ith

 th
es

e.
 

K
ey

 p
oi

nt
s d

is
cu

ss
ed

 in
 o

ur
 r

ep
or

t o
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 B

ud
ge

t S
tr

at
eg

y 
❏

 
W

e 
be

lie
ve

 th
e 

‘p
ac

ka
gi

ng
’ o

f t
he

 fo
re

ca
st

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 to

 e
na

bl
e 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ho

 a
re

 le
ss

 c
lo

se
 to

 th
e 

bu
dg

et
 p

ro
ce

ss
 to

 b
et

te
r 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 th

e 
fo

re
ca

st
 a

nd
 s

om
e 

of
 th

e 
ke

y 
se

ns
iti

vi
tie

s 
ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

nu
m

be
rs

.  
Th

is
 w

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e 

ca
rr

yi
ng

 o
ut

 a
 s

ys
te

m
at

ic
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f t
he

 m
ai

n 
in

co
m

e 
an

d 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 st
re

am
s, 

su
m

m
ar

is
in

g 
th

e 
re

su
lts

 in
 th

e 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 re
po

rt 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

in
g 

th
e 

fo
re

ca
st 

an
d 

in
te

gr
at

in
g 

th
is

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

as
 it

 d
ev

el
op

s. 
 I

n 
ar

ea
s 

of
 m

at
er

ia
l u

nc
er

ta
in

ty
, i

t m
ay

 b
e 

us
ef

ul
 to

 
ill

us
tra

te
 th

is
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
nu

m
er

ic
al

ly
 in

 th
e 

fo
rm

 o
f 

a 
se

ns
iti

vi
ty

 a
na

ly
si

s. 
 A

 n
ew

 p
ac

k 
fo

r 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
by

 s
er

vi
ce

 m
an

ag
er

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 (

B
us

in
es

s 
C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
) 

to
 s

ys
te

m
at

ic
al

ly
 c

ol
le

ct
 i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

on
 r

is
ks

 t
o 

in
fo

rm
 t

hi
s 

pr
oc

es
s. 

 

20



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
14

 

K
ey

 p
oi

nt
s d

is
cu

ss
ed

 in
 o

ur
 r

ep
or

t o
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 B

ud
ge

t S
tr

at
eg

y 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

❏
 

Th
e 

M
TB

S 
pr

oc
es

s 
co

m
m

en
ce

d 
in

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

02
.  

A
 r

ef
re

sh
 o

f 
th

e 
in

iti
al

 M
TB

S 
w

as
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 m

em
be

rs
 in

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

3.
  

Th
is

 w
ill

 e
na

bl
e 

a 
lo

ng
er

 p
er

io
d 

of
 d

eb
at

e 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
an

 a
gr

ee
d 

co
nt

ex
t f

or
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 a

nn
ua

l b
ud

ge
t l

at
er

 in
 

th
e 

ye
ar

. 

❏
 

A
lth

ou
gh

 f
ur

th
er

 i
nt

er
vi

ew
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ne

ed
ed

 t
o 

pr
op

er
ly

 g
au

ge
 t

hi
s, 

w
ith

in
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 s

er
vi

ce
 m

an
ag

er
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
in

vo
lv

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
bu

dg
et

 s
et

tin
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

an
d,

 i
n 

so
m

e 
ar

ea
s, 

w
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
to

ld
 t

hi
s 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

ha
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
fr

om
 t

he
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

20
03

/4
 b

ud
ge

t s
et

tin
g 

ro
un

d.
  G

iv
en

 th
e 

ga
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
ts

 a
nd

 th
e 

ba
se

 b
ud

ge
t p

rio
r t

o 
20

03
/4

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
ac

tic
e 

of
 

ho
ld

in
g 

in
fla

tio
n 

ch
an

ge
s 

ce
nt

ra
lly

, w
e 

w
er

e 
in

iti
al

ly
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

 a
t w

ha
t w

e 
w

ou
ld

 f
in

d 
in

 te
rm

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 m
an

ag
er

 b
uy

-in
 to

 th
e 

re
su

lti
ng

 b
ud

ge
t a

nd
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

th
e 

bu
dg

et
 s

et
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
ge

ne
ra

lly
.  

Th
e 

In
te

rim
 D

ire
ct

or
 o

f S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

co
m

m
en

te
d 

th
at

 
fu

rth
er

 w
or

k 
is

 n
ee

de
d,

 a
nd

 i
s 

on
go

in
g,

 t
o 

fu
lly

 a
lig

n 
so

ci
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
bu

dg
et

s 
w

ith
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s. 
 A

 f
or

m
al

 
ac

kn
ow

le
dg

em
en

t t
ha

t b
ud

ge
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

, c
he

ck
ed

 a
nd

 a
re

 a
de

qu
at

e 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 c
ur

re
nt

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
la

ns
 is

 n
ot

 s
ou

gh
t f

ro
m

 
se

rv
ic

e 
m

an
ag

er
s, 

bu
t w

e 
be

lie
ve

 th
is

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
us

ef
ul

 in
 c

on
fir

m
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
m

an
ag

er
 b

uy
-in

. 

❏
 

Es
tim

at
es

 in
 so

m
e 

ar
ea

s h
av

e 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 so
m

e 
ar

ea
s i

n 
ad

va
nc

e 
of

 p
ol

ic
y 

de
ci

si
on

s. 
 W

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 su
ch

 c
as

es
 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
l e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 a

re
 fl

ag
ge

d 
up

 in
 th

e 
co

m
m

en
ta

ry
 o

f t
he

 M
TB

S.
  A

m
ou

nt
s 

w
er

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 M
TB

S 
as

 a
 

m
ea

ns
 o

f 
hi

gh
lig

ht
in

g 
th

e 
va

ria
bi

lit
y 

of
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 i

n 
th

at
 a

re
a.

  
W

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 t
he

se
 i

ss
ue

s 
be

 d
ea

lt 
w

ith
 i

n 
th

e 
co

m
m

en
ta

ry
 o

n 
th

e 
M

TB
S,

 r
at

he
r 

th
an

 in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
am

ou
nt

s 
in

to
 e

st
im

at
es

.  
W

e 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
is

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
ha

s 
be

en
 ta

ke
n 

in
 th

e 
re

fr
es

h 
of

 th
e 

M
TB

S.
 

❏
 

It 
w

as
 c

le
ar

 fr
om

 o
ur

 re
vi

ew
 th

at
 re

la
tiv

el
y 

la
rg

e 
su

m
s h

ad
 b

ee
n 

ad
de

d 
to

, o
r m

ov
ed

 a
ro

un
d,

 to
 re

sh
ap

e 
th

e 
bu

dg
et

 to
 a

lig
n 

it 
m

or
e 

to
 

C
ou

nc
il 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
– 

th
is

 r
ep

re
se

nt
s 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
  

H
ow

ev
er

, 
th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 i

n 
m

os
t 

ar
ea

s 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

in
cr

em
en

ta
l. 

 A
s 

pa
rt 

of
 t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 b

ud
ge

tin
g 

cy
cl

e,
 t

he
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 (
B

us
in

es
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

) 
ha

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

a 
pa

ck
 f

or
 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

by
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

ss
is

ts
 in

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 th
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

st
ru

ck
 b

et
w

ee
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
nd

 c
os

t a
nd

 
in

 li
nk

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
la

ns
.  

A
ls

o,
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 re

vi
ew

in
g 

an
d 

up
gr

ad
in

g 
its

 c
or

po
ra

te
 a

nd
 se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
s 

an
d 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 t
he

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 a
nd

 t
oo

ls
 t

o 
fu

rth
er

 a
lig

n 
bu

dg
et

s 
w

ith
 

C
ou

nc
il 

pr
io

rit
ie

s a
cr

os
s t

he
 ra

ng
e 

of
 se

rv
ic

es
. 

❏
 

Th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l b

ud
ge

t i
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 fu
ll 

fo
r o

nl
y 

on
e 

ye
ar

.  
Th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 h

or
iz

on
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
ex

te
nd

ed
 to

 a
t l

ea
st

 th
re

e 
ye

ar
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
re

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
ca

pi
ta

l b
ud

ge
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

pe
rly

 a
lig

ne
d.

 

21



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
15

 

 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 

C
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

fin
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
ac

tic
es

, 
ta

ki
ng

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
f 

ou
r 

re
po

rt
 r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 a

nd
 i

n 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 e
xt

en
d 

th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l b

ud
ge

t h
or

iz
on

 to
 a

t l
ea

st
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s. 

 

3.
3.

 
Be

st 
Va

lu
e 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 P
la

n 
an

d 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
20

03
/4

 B
es

t V
al

ue
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 P

la
n 

(B
V

PP
) w

as
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

by
 o

ur
 e

xt
er

na
l a

ud
it 

pr
ed

ec
es

so
rs

 o
n 

th
e 

ba
si

s 
th

at
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 t

he
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 i

nd
ic

at
or

s 
in

 th
e 

Pl
an

 e
ith

er
 c

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
te

d 
or

 w
er

e 
m

at
er

ia
lly

 
in

co
rr

ec
t. 

 T
hi

s 
ye

ar
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r 
gr

ea
te

r 
sc

ru
tin

y 
of

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
te

st
in

g 
of

 a
 

sa
m

pl
e 

of
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 b
y 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
an

d 
a 

w
id

er
 c

ro
ss

-d
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l t
ea

m
 o

f 
of

fic
er

s 
pr

io
r 

to
 s

ub
m

is
si

on
 to

 u
s 

fo
r 

au
di

t. 
 T

he
se

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 le

d 
to

 th
e 

id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 s
om

e 
er

ro
rs

.  
Th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 re
co

gn
is

es
 th

at
 it

 w
ill

 n
ot

 
al

w
ay

s b
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 fo
r l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s t

o 
ha

ve
 a

ct
ua

l B
V

PI
 d

at
a 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 a
ll 

ca
se

s t
o 

m
ee

t t
he

 3
0 

Ju
ne

 p
ub

lic
at

io
n 

de
ad

lin
e 

an
d 

ac
ce

pt
s 

th
at

 s
om

e 
es

tim
at

es
 w

ou
ld

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
Pl

an
.  

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

pr
op

os
es

 to
 p

ub
lis

h 
er

ra
ta

 o
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s w
eb

si
te

 a
s w

el
l a

s s
en

di
ng

 th
is

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
or

ig
in

al
 re

ci
pi

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 B

V
PP

. 

W
e 

w
er

e 
ab

le
 t

o 
co

nc
lu

de
 i

n 
ou

r 
pr

iv
at

e 
re

po
rt 

to
 t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 o
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ou

ttu
rn

 B
es

t 
V

al
ue

 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 I

nd
ic

at
or

s 
th

at
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

d 
pu

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 w

hi
ch

, a
s 

fa
r 

as
 p

ra
ct

ic
ab

le
, a

re
 p

ro
du

ci
ng

 
in

di
ca

to
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

th
at

 is
 a

cc
ur

at
e 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

e.
  W

e 
ar

e 
ad

vi
se

d 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
, b

as
ed

 o
n 

ou
r r

ep
or

t, 
no

 c
ur

re
nt

 y
ea

r i
nd

ic
at

or
s w

ill
 b

e 
qu

al
ifi

ed
, b

ut
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

rio
r y

ea
r i

nd
ic

at
or

, B
V

PI
 1

75
, w

ill
 b

e 
qu

al
ifi

ed
. 

Th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 a

dv
is

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 th

at
 a

ud
it 

re
po

rts
 o

n 
B

V
PP

s 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 u

nt
il 

af
te

r 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 
th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f t

he
 ‘C

PA
 R

ef
re

sh
’ e

xe
rc

is
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 c

on
si

st
en

t j
ud

ge
m

en
ts

 h
ad

 b
ee

n 
re

ac
he

d.
  W

e 
ar

e 
pl

ea
se

d 
to

 
re

po
rt 

th
at

 w
e 

w
er

e 
ab

le
 t

o 
is

su
e 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
au

di
t 

op
in

io
n 

w
ith

 n
o 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 f
or

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 o
ur

 
st

at
ut

or
y 

re
po

rt.
  O

ur
 m

or
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

om
m

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 c
on

si
de

r i
n 

dr
aw

in
g-

up
 fu

tu
re

 y
ea

rs
’ p

la
ns

 a
re

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s. 

22



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
16

 

C
om

m
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
20

03
/4

 B
V

PP
 to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 in

 d
ra

w
in

g-
up

 fu
tu

re
 p

la
ns

 

❏
 

A
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

th
e 

20
03

/0
4 

B
V

PP
 w

as
 fi

na
lis

ed
, t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

d 
no

t f
or

m
ul

at
ed

 it
s 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

 P
la

n 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 
ke

y 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ov

er
al

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
an

d 
th

e 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 fo
r t

ra
ns

la
tin

g 
na

tio
na

l a
nd

 lo
ca

l 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

in
to

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
da

y-
to

-d
ay

 s
er

vi
ce

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s. 
 N

ex
t 

ye
ar

’s
 B

V
PP

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 a
 c

le
ar

 l
in

ka
ge

 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

es
e 

tw
o 

ke
y 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 (w

hi
ch

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 p

ro
gr

es
se

d)
 a

nd
 C

ou
nc

il’
s s

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

io
rit

ie
s. 

 

❏
 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
n 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
n 

th
at

 p
rio

r y
ea

r t
ar

ge
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
B

V
PP

 a
nd

 a
 c

om
m

en
ta

ry
 in

cl
ud

ed
 o

n 
an

y 
re

vi
si

on
 to

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 

if 
th

is
 h

as
 p

ro
ve

d 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

be
ca

us
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
ha

ve
 c

ha
ng

ed
, o

r t
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
re

so
ur

ce
 p

os
iti

on
 h

as
 a

lte
re

d.
  S

ec
tio

ns
 in

 th
e 

B
V

PP
 

on
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

la
ns

 p
ro

vi
de

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
on

 p
as

t/p
la

nn
ed

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
m

ea
su

re
s 

bu
t 

th
e 

re
as

on
s 

fo
r 

no
t 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
so

m
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

in
 

20
02

/0
3 

ar
e 

no
t a

lw
ay

s e
xp

la
in

ed
. 

❏
 

Th
e 

20
03

/0
4 

B
V

PP
 m

ak
es

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 t

o 
ju

st
 6

 l
oc

al
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 i

nd
ic

at
or

s. 
 H

ow
ev

er
, a

s 
th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f 
th

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
w

or
k 

on
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t a

fte
r t

he
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

B
V

PP
 a

nd
 is

 o
ng

oi
ng

, w
e 

an
tic

ip
at

e 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

a 
m

uc
h 

m
or

e 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 se
t o

f l
oc

al
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rti
ng

 o
n 

ac
tu

al
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 ta

rg
et

 in
 n

ex
t y

ea
r’

s B
V

PP
. 

❏
 

A
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

B
V

PP
 in

cl
ud

es
 c

om
m

en
ta

ry
 o

n 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
rs

, t
he

 u
se

 o
f c

ol
ou

r c
od

in
g 

(g
oo

d,
 a

ve
ra

ge
, n

ee
ds

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

et
c)

 o
r 

ar
ro

w
s 

in
di

ca
tin

g 
tre

nd
s 

in
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

ou
ld

 e
na

bl
e 

us
er

s 
to

 g
ai

n 
a 

be
tte

r 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

. T
he

re
 sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 m
or

e 
di

sc
us

si
on

 o
n 

ho
w

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

pr
op

os
es

 to
 im

pl
em

en
t t

he
se

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. 

❏
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
ou

tli
ne

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pl

an
 i

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
B

V
PP

 a
s 

is
 t

he
 i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
an

d 
au

di
t 

pl
an

 f
or

 t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 y
ea

r. 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 th

e 
A

nn
ua

l A
ud

it 
Le

tte
r i

s p
ro

vi
de

d,
 b

ut
 d

oe
s n

ot
 m

ak
e 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

au
di

to
rs

 
on

 th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

its
 q

ua
lit

y 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ov

er
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rti

ng
 d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n.

 
G

iv
en

 th
at

 th
e 

un
de

rly
in

g 
co

nc
er

n 
le

d 
to

 a
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

au
di

t o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

la
st

 y
ea

r’
s 

B
V

PP
, t

he
 o

m
is

si
on

 o
f t

hi
s 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

(a
nd

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s r

es
po

ns
e)

 d
oe

s, 
in

 o
ur

 v
ie

w
, g

iv
e 

an
 in

co
m

pl
et

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f t

he
 a

ud
ito

r’
s v

ie
w

s. 

❏
 

M
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
on

 a
 c

on
si

st
en

t 
ba

si
s 

on
 t

he
 o

ut
co

m
e 

of
 t

he
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
an

d 
th

e 
op

tio
ns

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

(b
ut

 
m

ay
be

 d
is

m
is

se
d)

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

 p
ro

ce
ss

.  
Fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e,
 th

e 
di

sc
us

si
on

 o
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
Fi

rs
t C

on
ta

ct
 r

ev
ie

w
 s

et
s 

ou
t t

he
 

co
nc

lu
si

on
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

bu
t t

hi
s 

is
 n

ot
 r

ef
er

re
d 

to
 in

 th
e 

co
m

m
en

ta
ry

 o
n 

ot
he

r 
re

vi
ew

s 
w

hi
ch

 te
nd

 to
 ju

st
 m

ak
e 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 w
ho

 w
as

 c
on

su
lte

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

❏
 

Th
e 

B
V

PP
 d

oe
s 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 a

n 
up

da
te

 o
n 

al
l a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
s, 

ta
rg

et
s 

an
d 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
sa

vi
ng

s 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nc
ie

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 in
 p

ra
ct

ic
e.

 

 

23



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
17

 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 

C
on

si
de

r, 
w

ith
 o

ffi
ce

rs
, p

ot
en

tia
l 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
o 

th
e 

fo
rm

at
 a

nd
 c

on
te

nt
 o

f 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

BV
PP

 i
n 

lig
ht

 o
f 

ou
r 

co
m

m
en

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
20

03
/4

 B
VP

P.
 

 

3.
4.

 
CP

A 
‘R

ef
re

sh
’ 

In
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
2,

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f i
ts

 fi
rs

t C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t. 
 

H
ar

ro
w

 w
as

 j
ud

ge
d 

to
 b

e 
‘w

ea
k’

 i
n 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 i
t 

pr
ov

id
ed

 t
o 

its
 c

iti
ze

ns
.  

Th
is

 y
ea

r 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 h
as

 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t a
 li

m
ite

d 
‘r

ef
re

sh
’ o

f t
hi

s 
ex

er
ci

se
, p

ub
lis

hi
ng

 a
 s

er
vi

ce
 s

co
re

ca
rd

 fo
r e

ac
h 

re
le

va
nt

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
al

on
gs

id
e 

a 
qu

al
ita

tiv
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
m

ad
e 

ov
er

 th
e 

la
st

 y
ea

r a
ga

in
st

 it
s 

ke
y 

pr
io

rit
ie

s. 
 T

he
 o

ut
co

m
e 

of
 th

is
 w

as
 th

at
 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 m
ov

ed
 fr

om
 “

w
ea

k”
 to

 “
fa

ir”
. 

Th
is

 q
ua

lit
at

iv
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

re
co

gn
is

es
 t

he
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

w
e 

ha
ve

 s
ee

n 
ov

er
 t

he
 l

as
t 

ye
ar

 i
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
o 

se
rv

ic
es

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g,

 fr
om

 a
 lo

w
 b

as
e,

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t o
f p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 B

or
ou

gh
, s

oc
ia

l s
er

vi
ce

s a
nd

 h
ou

si
ng

.  
It 

al
so

 re
co

gn
is

es
 th

e 
im

po
rta

nc
e 

of
 o

ng
oi

ng
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
na

l i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

fu
rth

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 m

or
e 

ro
bu

st
 f

in
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
ac

tic
es

 (
se

e 
se

ct
io

n 
3.

2)
, d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f a
n 

IC
T 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 th
e 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
in

g 
of

 s
en

io
r a

nd
 m

id
dl

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
 T

he
 q

ua
lit

at
iv

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
ls

o 
m

ak
es

 it
 c

le
ar

 th
at

 H
ar

ro
w

 n
ee

ds
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

 w
ith

 it
s 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

ag
en

da
, a

gr
ee

in
g 

its
 c

or
po

ra
te

 p
la

n 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 it
s 

co
rp

or
at

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

s, 
ex

te
nd

in
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t t
o 

th
e 

re
m

ai
nd

er
 o

f t
he

 B
or

ou
gh

, b
rin

gi
ng

 b
en

ef
its

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
up

 to
 n

at
io

na
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 
ot

he
r s

er
vi

ce
 a

re
as

. 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s a

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

n 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
es

e 
is

su
es

 a
nd

 h
as

 m
on

ito
re

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
pl

an
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ye

ar
. 

O
ur

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
C

PA
 R

ef
re

sh
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 ‘

sc
or

ed
 ju

dg
em

en
ts

’ 
ab

ou
t t

he
 a

de
qu

ac
y 

of
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
by

 th
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
in

 th
e 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
of

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

nd
in

g,
 in

te
rn

al
 fi

na
nc

ia
l c

on
tro

l, 
st

an
da

rd
s 

of
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

24



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
18

 

co
nd

uc
t 

an
d 

th
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
de

te
ct

io
n 

of
 f

ra
ud

 a
nd

 c
or

ru
pt

io
n,

 t
he

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 t

he
 l

eg
al

ity
 o

f 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 f
in

an
ci

al
 t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
. 

 T
hi

s 
fo

llo
w

ed
 a

 m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 a
im

ed
 a

t 
pr

od
uc

in
g 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 a

nd
 o

bj
ec

tiv
e 

ju
dg

em
en

ts
 b

y 
au

di
to

rs
.  

Th
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

 su
m

m
ar

is
es

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s s
co

re
s i

n 
th

es
e 

ca
te

go
rie

s a
nd

, w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, t

he
 p

rin
ci

pa
l r

ea
so

ns
 w

hy
 th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 sc

or
e 

of
 fo

ur
 w

as
 n

ot
 o

bt
ai

ne
d.

 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Sc

or
e 

th
is

 ti
m

e 
Sc

or
e 

la
st

 ti
m

e 
A

re
as

 fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

nd
in

g 
3 

3 
W

hi
ls

t t
he

re
 is

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
th

at
 a

 ri
sk

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t, 

th
is

 h
as

 n
ot

 
be

en
 c

os
te

d 
(s

ee
 se

ct
io

n 
3.

2)
. 

Th
e 

lin
ks

 w
ith

 c
or

po
ra

te
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

co
rp

or
at

e 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 
fo

r 
th

e 
m

os
t 

re
ce

nt
ly

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

ud
ge

t 
pr

oc
es

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
sy

st
em

at
ic

 a
nd

 
pe

rv
as

iv
e 

(s
ee

 se
ct

io
n 

3.
2)

. 

Th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l b

ud
ge

t i
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 f
ul

l f
or

 o
nl

y 
on

e 
ye

ar
.  

Th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 h
or

iz
on

 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
ex

te
nd

ed
 t

o 
at

 l
ea

st
 t

hr
ee

 y
ea

rs
 t

o 
en

su
re

 r
ev

en
ue

 a
nd

 c
ap

ita
l 

bu
dg

et
s a

re
 p

ro
pe

rly
 a

lig
ne

d 
(s

ee
 se

ct
io

n 
3.

2)
. 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
m

em
be

rs
 

w
ith

 
th

e 
op

tio
n 

of
 

as
se

ss
in

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

-li
ne

. 

Es
ta

bl
is

hi
ng

 a
 lo

ng
er

 tr
ac

k 
re

co
rd

 in
 m

ee
tin

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 ta

rg
et

s a
nd

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 t

ar
ge

ts
 s

et
 f

or
 a

ll 
ca

te
go

rie
s 

of
 i

nc
om

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

an
d 

ar
re

ar
s, 

w
ith

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
to

 m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 a

ct
io

n 
ta

ke
n 

w
he

n 
ne

ed
ed

. 

St
an

da
rd

s 
of

 f
in

an
ci

al
 c

on
tro

l 
an

d 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

an
d 

de
te

ct
io

n 
of

 fr
au

d 
an

d 
co

rr
up

tio
n 

3 
3 

Em
be

dd
in

g 
an

ti 
fr

au
d 

an
d 

co
rr

up
tio

n 
an

d 
ne

w
 

co
rp

or
at

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
. 

O
pe

ra
tio

n 
of

 n
ew

 tr
ea

su
ry

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 n
ot

 e
va

lu
at

ed
 a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 o
ur

 su
bm

is
si

on
. 

25



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
19

 

 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Sc

or
e 

th
is

 ti
m

e 
Sc

or
e 

la
st

 ti
m

e 
A

re
as

 fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

In
te

rn
al

 fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

tro
l 

3 
3 

W
id

er
 u

se
 o

f 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 m

ea
su

re
s 

by
 t

ho
se

 w
ho

 m
an

ag
e 

th
e 

sy
st

em
 t

o 
m

on
ito

r t
he

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
of

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ys

te
m

s. 

Pr
op

os
ed

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r r
is

k 
id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n,

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t n
ot

 
ye

t f
ul

ly
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
(s

ee
 se

ct
io

n 
5.

3)
. 

R
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
 n

ot
 in

 p
la

ce
 w

hi
ch

 is
 re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 u

pd
at

ed
 (s

ee
 se

ct
io

n 
5.

3)
. 

Em
be

dd
in

g 
of

 ri
sk

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
es

 (s
ee

 se
ct

io
n 

5.
3)

 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
3 

2 
A

cc
ou

nt
s 

pr
es

en
te

d 
fo

r 
au

di
t 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
er

ro
rs

 w
hi

ch
, w

hi
ls

t 
im

m
at

er
ia

l, 
w

er
e 

no
t ‘

tri
fli

ng
’ i

n 
na

tu
re

 (s
ee

 se
ct

io
n 

4)
. 

N
ot

 a
ll 

of
 th

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s r
eq

ue
st

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
au

di
to

r w
er

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
 th

e 
st

ar
t 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t, 

bu
t w

er
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t (
se

e 
se

ct
io

n 
4)

. 

Le
ga

lit
y 

of
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

fin
an

ci
al

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 
4 

3 
H

ar
ro

w
 d

o 
no

t a
ct

iv
el

y 
(e

.g
. p

ro
vi

de
 s

om
e 

fo
rm

 o
f 

tra
in

in
g 

or
 p

ro
m

pt
 to

 th
es

e 
do

cu
m

en
ts

) m
ak

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 s

ta
ff

 a
nd

 m
em

be
rs

 in
te

rn
al

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 s

et
tin

g 
ou

t 
ro

le
s a

nd
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s o
f t

he
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
fic

er
 a

nd
 se

ct
io

n 
15

1 
of

fic
er

. 
 R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

Ag
re

e 
an

d 
m

on
ito

r 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 a
re

as
 w

he
re

 th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 s
co

re
 w

as
 n

ot
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
‘a

ud
ito

r s
co

re
d 

ju
dg

em
en

ts
’ f

or
m

in
g 

pa
rt

 o
f C

PA
. 

  

26



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
20

 

4.
 

St
at

em
en

t o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

W
e 

m
et

 w
ith

 a
 S

ub
-c

om
m

itt
ee

 o
f 

th
e 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
18

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

03
 t

o 
di

sc
us

s 
th

e 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 o
ur

 a
ud

it 
of

 t
he

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

of
 a

cc
ou

nt
s. 

 I
t 

is
 a

 n
ew

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
of

 A
ud

iti
ng

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 (

St
at

em
en

t 
of

 
A

ud
iti

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 N
o 

61
0 

– 
‘S

A
S 

61
0’

) 
to

 d
is

cu
ss

 c
er

ta
in

 m
at

te
rs

 w
ith

 t
ho

se
 c

ha
rg

ed
 w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
pr

io
r 

to
 

is
su

in
g 

ou
r a

ud
it 

op
in

io
n.

  I
n 

th
e 

pa
st

, i
t w

as
 g

en
er

al
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

in
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t t
o 

di
sc

us
s 

th
es

e 
m

at
te

rs
 s

ol
el

y 
w

ith
 

of
fic

er
s, 

br
ie

fin
g 

m
em

be
rs

 o
n 

th
e 

m
or

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 is
su

es
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

cl
os

ur
e 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t. 

Th
e 

ke
y 

po
in

ts
 w

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 o
ur

 re
po

rt 
to

 th
e 

Su
b-

co
m

m
itt

ee
 a

re
 a

s f
ol

lo
w

s. 

K
ey

 p
oi

nt
s r

ep
or

te
d 

in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 o

ur
 a

ud
it 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s 

❏
 

O
ur

 fi
rs

t y
ea

r a
ud

it 
ha

d 
ch

al
le

ng
ed

 se
ve

ra
l a

re
as

 o
f t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
s a

nd
 c

ha
ng

es
 a

ris
in

g 
w

er
e 

re
po

rte
d.

 

❏
 

O
ff

ic
er

s h
av

e 
ag

re
ed

 to
 lo

ok
 a

t a
 fe

w
 it

em
s i

n 
th

e 
20

03
/4

 a
cc

ou
nt

s p
ro

ce
ss

. 

❏
 

W
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

to
 is

su
e 

an
 u

nq
ua

lif
ie

d 
au

di
t o

pi
ni

on
.  

 

❏
 

W
e 

re
po

rte
d 

un
ad

ju
st

ed
 e

rr
or

s. 
 M

an
ag

em
en

t j
ud

ge
d 

th
es

e 
am

ou
nt

 to
 b

e 
no

t m
at

er
ia

l, 
bo

th
 in

di
vi

du
al

ly
 a

nd
 in

 a
gg

re
ga

te
, a

nd
 d

id
 

no
t p

ro
po

se
 to

 p
ro

ce
ss

 c
or

re
ct

in
g 

jo
ur

na
ls

.  
W

e 
so

ug
ht

 a
nd

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
co

nf
irm

at
io

n 
fr

om
 th

e 
Su

b-
co

m
m

itt
ee

 o
f t

hi
s a

ss
es

sm
en

t. 

❏
 

A
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

re
po

rt 
w

as
 is

su
ed

 to
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
n 

w
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l I
T 

co
nt

ro
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
 W

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 o
th

er
 s

ys
te

m
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

po
rte

d 
se

pa
ra

te
ly

 b
y 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it.
  A

 fo
rm

al
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 fr

om
 o

ff
ic

er
s 

on
 th

e 
IT

 c
on

tro
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

t p
oi

nt
s 

w
as

 s
til

l 
aw

ai
te

d.
 

❏
 

W
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

 th
at

 w
e 

ha
ve

 a
de

qu
at

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
ou

r i
nd

ep
en

de
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 

 W
e 

m
ak

e 
th

re
e 

ob
se

rv
at

io
ns

 c
on

ce
rn

in
g 

th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 a
nd

 a
ud

it 
pr

oc
es

s:
 

!
 

Th
e 

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
A

ud
it 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 re
qu

ire
 a

pp
ro

va
l o

f t
he

 d
ra

ft 
St

at
em

en
t o

f A
cc

ou
nt

s 
by

 e
ith

er
 fu

ll 
co

un
ci

l 
or

 b
y 

a 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 o
f t

he
 c

ou
nc

il.
  F

or
 th

e 
20

02
/3

 a
cc

ou
nt

s, 
th

is
 a

pp
ro

va
l n

ee
de

d 
to

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
by

 3
0 

Se
pt

em
be

r 

27



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
21

 

20
03

.  
A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 a
 m

is
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g,

 a
pp

ro
va

l w
as

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
fr

om
 C

ab
in

et
 w

ho
, b

y 
la

w
, a

re
 n

ot
 a

bl
e 

to
 

pe
rf

or
m

 th
is

 fu
nc

tio
n.

  F
ul

l c
ou

nc
il 

ra
tif

ie
d 

C
ab

in
et

 a
pp

ro
va

l i
n 

O
ct

ob
er

, i
.e

. a
fte

r t
he

 d
ea

dl
in

e.
 

!
 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t i

nt
ro

du
ce

d 
by

 th
e 

ne
w

 A
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
A

ud
it 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 (
w

hi
ch

 c
am

e 
in

to
 f

or
ce

 w
ith

 
ef

fe
ct

 fr
om

 1
 A

pr
il 

20
03

) f
or

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 to
 b

e 
si

gn
ed

 a
nd

 d
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ch

ai
r o

f t
he

 c
ou

nc
il/

co
m

m
itt

ee
 w

hi
ch

 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
.  

Th
is

 h
ad

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
do

ne
. 

!
 

Th
e 

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
A

ud
it 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 2
00

3 
br

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f a

pp
ro

va
l o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 b
y 

a 
m

on
th

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 th

ro
ug

h 
to

 2
00

5/
6 

w
he

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 a

pp
ro

ve
 it

s 
ac

co
un

ts
 b

y 
30

 Ju
ne

 a
nd

 p
ub

lis
h 

by
 3

0 
Se

pt
em

be
r. 

 In
 o

rd
er

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

is
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
it:

 

- 
B

rin
gs

 fo
rw

ar
d 

its
 a

cc
ou

nt
s 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

an
d 

ap
pr

ov
al

 p
ro

ce
ss

 b
y 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
tw

o 
m

on
th

s. 
 T

hi
s 

ye
ar

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 w
er

e 
no

t a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 C
ab

in
et

 u
nt

il 
9 

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
00

3.
 

- 
Im

pr
ov

es
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 f
or

 c
ol

la
tio

n 
of

 s
ch

ed
ul

es
 a

nd
 w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

th
e 

dr
af

t 
fin

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 to

 re
sp

on
d 

to
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 re
qu

es
ts

 fo
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

an
d 

ex
pl

an
at

io
ns

 fr
om

 it
s 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
ud

ito
rs

.  
Th

e 
au

di
ts

 th
is

 y
ea

r a
nd

 la
st

 y
ea

r w
er

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 le

ng
th

en
ed

 b
y 

de
la

ys
 in

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
is

 y
ea

r 
m

an
y 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

or
ig

in
al

ly
 i

nc
lu

de
d 

on
 a

n 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

qu
es

t 
w

e 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 o
ff

ic
er

s 
in

 
A

pr
il 

20
03

. 
 S

ta
ff

 a
bs

en
ce

s 
an

d 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 s
ta

ff
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 c

on
tri

bu
te

d 
to

 t
he

se
 d

el
ay

s, 
w

ith
 t

he
 

H
ou

si
ng

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t c

au
si

ng
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s. 

- 
Ta

ke
 st

ep
s t

o 
m

iti
ga

te
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f m

ov
in

g 
th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 a

nd
 a

ud
it 

pr
oc

es
s i

nt
o 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
ho

lid
ay

 se
as

on
. 

- 
En

su
re

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 g

oo
d 

‘f
it’

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
ac

co
un

ts
 a

nd
 a

ud
it 

tim
et

ab
le

 o
n 

th
e 

on
e 

ha
nd

 a
nd

 th
e 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 

cy
cl

e 
on

 th
e 

ot
he

r. 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 

C
al

l f
or

 a
nd

 c
on

si
de

r 
a 

re
po

rt
 o

n 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

pl
an

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 n
ew

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 ti

m
et

ab
le

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ap

pr
ov

al
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

St
at

em
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s. 

28



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
22

 

5.
 

In
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 a
nd

 r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 

5.
1.

 
In

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 d

up
lic

at
io

n 
of

 e
ff

or
t, 

ou
r n

or
m

al
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

is
 to

 p
la

ce
 s

om
e 

re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it.

  
Th

e 
ex

te
nt

 o
f t

ha
t r

el
ia

nc
e 

de
pe

nd
s b

ot
h 

on
 th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f i

nt
er

na
l a

ud
it’

s w
or

k 
an

d 
th

e 
re

le
va

nc
e 

of
 th

ei
r a

nn
ua

l w
or

k 
pl

an
 to

 o
ur

 o
w

n 
au

di
t o

bj
ec

tiv
es

.  
W

e 
ca

rr
y 

ou
t a

n 
an

nu
al

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f i
nt

er
na

l a
ud

it 
an

d 
ca

rr
y 

ou
t a

 re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

ir 
w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s i
n 

ar
ea

s w
he

re
 w

e 
pl

an
 to

 p
la

ce
 d

ire
ct

 re
lia

nc
e.

 

In
 o

ur
 a

ud
it 

pl
an

, w
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 t
o 

pl
ac

e 
re

lia
nc

e 
pr

in
ci

pa
lly

 o
n 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it’
s 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
ke

y 
co

nt
ro

ls
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

m
ai

n 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ys
te

m
s. 

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
ou

r 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

ge
ne

ra
l 

in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
ud

ito
r 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, a
nd

 a
 re

vi
ew

 o
f r

el
ev

an
t w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

 fi
le

s, 
w

e 
w

er
e 

ab
le

 to
 c

on
fir

m
 o

ur
 d

ec
is

io
n 

to
 p

la
ce

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it’
s w

or
k 

in
 th

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
ar

ea
s o

f r
el

ia
nc

e.
 

A
s 

pa
rt 

of
 o

ur
 r

ev
ie

w
, w

e 
di

sc
us

se
d 

is
su

es
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 t

he
 r

ol
e 

of
 i

nt
er

na
l 

au
di

t, 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

nd
 

re
so

ur
ci

ng
 w

ith
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
w

ith
 s

en
io

r m
an

ag
em

en
t a

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il.

  K
ey

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 p

la
nn

ed
 o

r 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 e

xa
m

in
ed

 in
cl

ud
e:

 

!
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

pl
an

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 c

ov
er

 th
e 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
s 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 1
 A

pr
il 

20
04

.  
Th

e 
dr

af
t p

la
n 

ha
s b

ee
n 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 b

y 
C

M
T 

an
d 

is
 d

ue
 to

 b
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 m
em

be
rs

 sh
or

tly
 o

nc
e 

th
e 

le
ve

l o
f i

nt
er

na
l 

au
di

t r
es

ou
rc

es
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
nf

irm
ed

.  
R

ec
en

t i
nt

er
na

l a
ud

it 
pl

an
s h

av
e 

be
en

 a
nn

ua
l o

pe
ra

tio
na

l p
la

ns
. 

!
 

D
ef

in
in

g 
th

e 
ro

le
.  

W
e 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 th

at
 th

e 
dr

af
t s

tra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

 g
iv

es
 g

re
at

er
 c

la
rit

y 
bo

th
 to

 w
ha

t i
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it 

ac
tiv

ity
 a

nd
, a

s 
im

po
rta

nt
, w

ha
t f

al
ls

 o
ut

si
de

.  
W

e 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

m
em

be
rs

 to
 c

on
si

de
r t

he
se

 
te

rm
s 

of
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 c
ar

ef
ul

ly
 a

nd
 to

 c
on

fir
m

, i
n 

ag
re

ei
ng

 th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
th

at
 th

ey
 m

ee
t t

he
ir 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 
th

e 
ne

ed
s o

f t
he

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n.
 

!
 

A
 b

id
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t b

ud
ge

t c
yc

le
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
by

 th
re

e 
fu

ll 
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

s. 
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it’

s 
ow

n 
be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
 h

as
 s

ho
w

n 
th

at
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t t
ea

m
 is

 u
nd

er
re

so
ur

ce
d 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 o
th

er
 L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
s. 

 
Th

is
 is

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 o

ur
 o

w
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e.
 

29



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
23

 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 

C
on

si
de

r a
nd

 c
on

fir
m

 te
rm

s o
f r

ef
er

en
ce

 fo
r I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

an
d 

en
su

re
 th

at
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

is
 a

de
qu

at
el

y 
re

so
ur

ce
d 

to
 

de
liv

er
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

 th
at

 fl
ow

s f
ro

m
 th

os
e 

te
rm

s o
f r

ef
er

en
ce

. 

 

5.
2.

 
In

te
rn

al
 fi

na
nc

ia
l c

on
tro

ls 

In
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it’
s w

or
k 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f k
ey

 c
on

tro
ls

 w
he

re
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
co

nt
ro

l w
as

 e
ith

er
 n

ot
 d

oc
um

en
te

d 
or

 
w

he
re

 d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
re

ta
in

ed
 w

as
 o

nl
y 

pa
rti

al
. 

 I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 t
he

ir 
w

or
k 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 o

th
er

 a
re

as
 f

or
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t, 

in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 o

pe
ni

ng
 b

us
in

es
s 

ra
te

s 
an

d 
co

un
ci

l 
ta

x 
de

bi
ts

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
o 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fr
om

 t
he

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
O

ff
ic

e.
  

Th
es

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
po

rte
d 

in
 i

nt
er

na
l 

au
di

t 
re

po
rts

 a
nd

 
su

m
m

ar
is

ed
 in

 th
e 

St
at

em
en

t o
f I

nt
er

na
l F

in
an

ci
al

 C
on

tro
ls

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s. 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
ac

tiv
ity

, o
ur

 c
om

pu
te

r a
ud

it 
sp

ec
ia

lis
ts

 u
nd

er
to

ok
 a

 re
vi

ew
 o

f g
en

er
al

 c
om

pu
te

r c
on

tro
ls

 
w

hi
ch

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f s
ig

ni
fic

an
t c

on
ce

rn
s. 

H
ig

h 
pr

io
ri

ty
 a

re
as

 fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 c
om

pu
te

r 
co

nt
ro

l e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t 
❏

 
W

e 
fo

un
d 

20
6 

us
er

s h
ad

 b
ee

n 
gi

ve
n 

th
e 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 "
se

lf-
au

th
or

is
e"

 b
ot

h 
or

de
rs

 a
nd

 in
vo

ic
es

 o
n 

th
e 

eF
in

an
ci

al
s s

ys
te

m
. 

❏
 

Th
er

e 
w

as
 n

o 
do

cu
m

en
te

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

to
 g

ui
de

 th
e 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 u

pd
at

es
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
so

ftw
ar

e.
 D

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
te

st
in

g 
of

 th
e 

up
da

te
d 

so
ftw

ar
e 

is
 n

ot
 re

ta
in

ed
.  

Si
m

ila
rly

, d
oc

um
en

ta
ry

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 te
st

in
g 

be
fo

re
 th

e 
up

gr
ad

e 
fr

om
 C

FA
C

S 
to

 e
Fi

na
nc

ia
ls

 
w

as
 n

ot
 re

ta
in

ed
.  

W
ith

ou
t a

n 
au

di
t t

ra
il 

of
 te

st
 d

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

th
er

e 
is

 a
 ri

sk
 th

at
 a

ny
 te

st
in

g 
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 is
 in

co
m

pl
et

e 
or

 in
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

, 
or

 th
at

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

rr
or

s r
em

ai
n 

un
ad

dr
es

se
d 

pr
io

r t
o 

liv
e 

us
e 

of
 m

od
ifi

ed
 o

r n
ew

 sy
st

em
s. 

❏
 

D
ue

 to
 th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ov
er

he
ad

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 g

iv
e 

ac
ce

ss
 ri

gh
ts

 to
 O

ra
cl

e 
D

is
co

ve
re

r o
n 

an
 in

di
vi

du
al

 b
as

is
, u

se
r a

cc
es

s 
is

 v
ia

 a
 

si
ng

le
 s

ha
re

d 
ac

co
un

t a
nd

 p
as

sw
or

d,
 w

ith
 n

o 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

da
ta

 th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

vi
ew

ed
.  

Th
er

e 
is

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
ris

k 
th

at
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
m

ay
 a

tte
m

pt
 t

o 
vi

ew
 o

r 
re

co
rd

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
pe

rs
on

al
 d

et
ai

ls
 w

ith
ou

t 
au

th
or

is
at

io
n,

 s
uc

h 
as

 h
om

e 
ad

dr
es

se
s, 

ne
xt

 o
f 

ki
n 

or
 p

ay
 a

nd
 

be
ne

fit
s d

et
ai

ls
. 

30



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
24

 

H
ig

h 
pr

io
ri

ty
 a

re
as

 fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 c
om

pu
te

r 
co

nt
ro

l e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

❏
 

C
ur

re
nt

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 g

iv
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 A
na

ly
st

 P
ro

gr
am

m
er

s, 
Se

ni
or

 A
na

ly
st

 P
ro

gr
am

m
er

s 
an

d 
Pr

oj
ec

t L
ea

de
rs

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 c

ha
ng

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 c

od
e 

w
ith

ou
t a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 te

st
in

g 
or

 a
ut

ho
ris

at
io

n.
 

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 

M
on

ito
r a

ct
io

n 
ta

ke
n 

in
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 k
ey

 in
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 e
xt

er
na

l a
ud

it 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

n 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
s. 

 

5.
3.

 
Ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 

H
ar

ro
w

’s
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

in
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 h

as
 a

ttr
ac

te
d 

cr
iti

ci
sm

 f
ro

m
 e

xt
er

na
l 

au
di

t 
an

d 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

ag
en

ci
es

 in
 th

e 
pa

st
. 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

so
m

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r t
he

 id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f k

ey
 fi

na
nc

ia
l a

nd
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l 
ris

ks
.  

Th
es

e 
in

cl
ud

e 
a 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 a
ll 

ke
y 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 (
as

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

d 
ag

re
ed

 i
n 

A
pr

il 
20

03
), 

th
e 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t 

by
 i

nt
er

na
l 

au
di

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

pl
an

 a
nd

 t
he

 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

of
 i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

on
 s

er
vi

ce
 r

is
ks

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
po

si
tio

n 
st

at
em

en
t 

do
cu

m
en

t 
w

hi
ch

 w
as

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 

ov
er

 th
e 

su
m

m
er

. 

Th
es

e 
ar

e 
al

l n
ew

 o
r r

el
at

iv
el

y 
ne

w
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

.  
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
al

so
 a

gr
ee

d 
a 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 w

or
k 

to
 s

ys
te

m
at

ic
al

ly
 

do
cu

m
en

t s
tra

te
gi

c 
ris

ks
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 ri

sk
s 

an
d 

to
 m

ap
 th

em
 to

 c
on

tro
ls

.  
Th

is
 c

om
m

en
ce

d 
la

te
 O

ct
ob

er
 w

ith
 a

 d
et

ai
le

d 
tim

et
ab

le
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

o 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

4,
 a

ga
in

st
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

so
m

e 
sl

ip
pa

ge
. 

 T
he

 p
ro

ce
ss

 o
f 

em
be

dd
in

g 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

nd
 c

ul
tu

re
 h

as
 n

ot
 y

et
 b

ee
n 

pl
an

ne
d 

in
 d

et
ai

l. 

M
em

be
rs

 h
av

e 
so

m
e 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
, i

n 
pa

rti
cu

la
r t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
re

ce
ip

t o
f r

ep
or

ts
 o

n 
ris

k 
be

fo
re

 
ap

pr
ov

in
g 

la
rg

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
.  

Th
ey

 a
re

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 h
av

e 
a 

gr
ea

te
r 

ro
le

 g
oi

ng
 f

or
w

ar
d 

as
 th

e 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 
be

co
m

es
 m

or
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
 

31



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
25

 

M
or

e 
th

an
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

ris
ks

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

ss
es

se
d,

 b
ut

 a
 ri

sk
 re

gi
st

er
 is

 n
ot

 y
et

 in
 p

la
ce

. 

In
 th

e 
sc

or
ed

 ju
dg

em
en

t w
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
‘C

PA
 R

ef
re

sh
’, 

w
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
d 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 L
ev

el
 2

 (
ou

t o
f 

fo
ur

 le
ve

ls
) 

as
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
a 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 w

or
k 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
ba

se
d 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ra
m

ew
or

k,
 b

ut
 th

is
 is

 a
t a

n 
ea

rly
 s

ta
ge

, w
ith

 p
oc

ke
ts

 o
f 

cu
rr

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
e 

in
 p

la
ce

.  
N

ex
t y

ea
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
to

 p
ub

lis
h 

a 
St

at
em

en
t o

f 
In

te
rn

al
 C

on
tro

ls
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 it
s 

St
at

em
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s. 

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
pr

og
re

ss
 in

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

its
 ri

sk
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ra

ct
ic

es
 w

ill
 fo

rm
 a

 k
ey

 p
ar

t o
f 

its
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t i
n 

m
ak

in
g 

th
is

 S
ta

te
m

en
t. 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 

Ag
re

e 
an

d 
m

on
ito

r p
ro

gr
es

s a
ga

in
st

 p
la

ns
 fo

r t
he

 fu
rt

he
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 e

m
be

dd
in

g 
of

 ri
sk

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
es

 
an

d 
cu

ltu
re

. 

 

32



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
26

 

6.
 

St
an

da
rd

s o
f c

on
du

ct
 a

nd
 fr

au
d 

an
d 

co
rr

up
tio

n 

A
s 

au
di

to
rs

 w
e 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 t

he
 C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

Pr
ac

tic
e 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 p

ut
 i

n 
pl

ac
e 

by
 H

ar
ro

w
 t

o 
pr

ev
en

t a
nd

 d
et

ec
t f

ra
ud

 a
nd

 c
or

ru
pt

io
n 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
e 

hi
gh

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 c

on
du

ct
.  

A
s 

th
is

 is
 o

ur
 fi

rs
t y

ea
r a

s 
au

di
to

rs
 to

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

 w
e 

ha
ve

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t a

n 
in

-d
ep

th
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t, 
fo

cu
si

ng
 o

n 
ov

er
al

l a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
. 

O
ur

 o
ve

ra
ll 

as
se

ss
m

en
t s

ho
w

ed
 th

at
 H

ar
ro

w
 h

ad
 in

 p
la

ce
 m

os
t o

f t
he

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 th

at
 w

e 
w

ou
ld

 e
xp

ec
t t

o 
fin

d 
in

 a
 

si
m

ila
rly

 si
ze

d 
au

th
or

ity
.  

W
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

ed
 a

 fe
w

 a
re

as
 w

he
re

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

ad
e.

 

A
re

as
 fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

fr
au

d 
an

d 
co

rr
up

tio
n 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 

❏
 

A
 c

or
po

ra
te

 b
us

in
es

s c
on

tin
ui

ty
 p

la
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

to
 si

t o
ve

r t
he

 p
la

ns
 fo

r i
nd

iv
id

ua
l s

er
vi

ce
s, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f f

ra
ud

 a
nd

 c
or

ru
pt

io
n.

 

❏
 

H
os

pi
ta

lit
y 

re
gi

st
er

s s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
by

 C
hi

ef
 O

ff
ic

er
s a

nd
 th

e 
sy

st
em

 fo
r m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 th

em
 re

vi
ew

ed
 b

y 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it.

 

❏
 

Fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
ap

po
in

tm
en

t o
f t

he
 n

ew
 IT

 m
an

ag
er

, p
la

ns
 sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

to
 b

rin
g 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

se
cu

rit
y 

po
lic

y 
in

to
 

lin
e 

w
ith

 B
S 

77
99

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s t
o 

im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 p
ol

ic
y.

 

❏
 

O
ff

ic
er

s 
w

ith
in

 I
nt

er
na

l A
ud

it 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 to

 s
pe

ci
al

is
e 

in
 th

e 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

of
 f

ra
ud

 a
nd

 c
or

ru
pt

io
n 

(o
th

er
 th

an
 H

ou
si

ng
 

B
en

ef
it 

Fr
au

d 
w

hi
ch

 i
s 

al
re

ad
y 

de
al

t 
w

ith
 b

y 
a 

de
di

ca
te

d 
te

am
). 

 W
e 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 t

ha
t 

re
se

ar
ch

 i
s 

be
in

g 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t 
in

to
 t

he
 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f a

n 
an

ti-
fr

au
d 

te
am

 a
t H

ar
ro

w
. 

❏
 

W
hi

ls
t s

ta
ff

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 h
as

 c
ov

er
ed

 th
e 

le
ga

l a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

H
um

an
 R

ig
ht

s 
A

ct
 a

nd
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 

in
te

rv
ie

w
s 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 P

ol
ic

e 
an

d 
C

rim
in

al
 E

vi
de

nc
e 

A
ct

, 
th

is
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 e
xt

en
de

d 
to

 c
ov

er
 t

he
 R

eg
ul

at
io

n 
of

 
In

ve
st

ig
at

or
y 

Po
w

er
s A

ct
 fo

r s
ta

ff
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 fr
au

d 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

w
or

k.
 

❏
 

A
nt

i-f
ra

ud
 a

nd
 c

or
ru

pt
io

n 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 c

on
du

ct
 is

su
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

w
id

er
 e

ff
or

ts
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

 Th
is

 y
ea

r 
H

ar
ro

w
 h

as
 a

ls
o 

be
en

 in
sp

ec
te

d 
by

 th
e 

B
en

ef
its

 F
ra

ud
 I

ns
pe

ct
or

at
e 

(B
FI

). 
 T

he
ir 

re
po

rt,
 is

su
ed

 in
 A

ug
us

t 
20

03
, r

ai
se

d 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ab
ou

t 
in

te
rn

al
 s

ec
ur

ity
 a

nd
 c

ou
nt

er
-f

ra
ud

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 t
he

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 

33



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
27

 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 b

as
ic

 a
re

as
 s

uc
h 

as
 p

os
t-o

pe
ni

ng
 a

nd
 c

he
qu

e 
se

cu
rit

y.
  O

f m
or

e 
co

nc
er

n 
ar

e 
th

ei
r r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

re
la

tin
g 

to
: 

!
 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r f

ra
ud

 a
w

ar
en

es
s t

ra
in

in
g 

!
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 re
qu

ire
d 

in
 th

e 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

pr
oc

es
s i

nc
lu

di
ng

 ti
m

el
in

es
s a

nd
 le

ve
l o

f m
an

ag
em

en
t r

ev
ie

w
 

!
 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
er

-F
ra

ud
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
e.

 

In
 f

ut
ur

e 
ye

ar
s 

w
e 

w
ill

 u
pd

at
e 

ou
r 

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 w
or

k 
in

 s
pe

ci
fic

 a
re

as
, w

hi
ch

 is
 

lik
el

y 
to

 i
nc

lu
de

 f
ol

lo
w

-u
p 

w
or

k 
on

 H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x 

B
en

ef
it 

to
 g

au
ge

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
on

 i
m

pl
em

en
tin

g 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
B

FI
. 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 

Ag
re

e 
an

d 
m

on
ito

r 
pr

og
re

ss
 a

ga
in

st
 p

la
ns

 i
n 

re
sp

on
se

 t
o 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
an

d 
BF

I 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 

co
un

te
r f

ra
ud

 a
nd

 c
or

ru
pt

io
n 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. 

 

34



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
28

 

7.
 

L
eg

al
ity

 

U
nd

er
 t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

Pr
ac

tic
e,

 w
e 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
ad

eq
ua

cy
 o

f 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
e 

le
ga

lit
y 

of
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 th

at
 m

ig
ht

 h
av

e 
a 

fin
an

ci
al

 c
on

se
qu

en
ce

.  
O

ur
 w

or
k 

co
m

pr
is

es
: 

!
 

re
vi

ew
 o

f C
ou

nc
il 

m
in

ut
es

 

!
 

re
vi

ew
 o

f a
ny

 n
at

io
na

l i
ss

ue
s r

ai
se

d 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 

!
 

ov
er

vi
ew

 o
f a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 

!
 

re
sp

on
di

ng
 to

 sp
ec

ifi
c 

is
su

es
 ra

is
ed

 w
ith

 u
s b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
or

 b
y 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

. 

B
as

ed
 o

n 
ou

r 
w

or
k,

 n
ot

hi
ng

 h
as

 c
om

e 
to

 o
ur

 a
tte

nt
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 w
e 

w
is

h 
to

 d
ra

w
 to

 th
e 

at
te

nt
io

n 
of

 M
em

be
rs

.  
In

 th
e 

C
PA

 re
fr

es
h 

ex
er

ci
se

, u
si

ng
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
, w

e 
sc

or
ed

 th
is

 a
re

a 
at

 L
ev

el
 4

 (t
he

 h
ig

he
st

 le
ve

l) 
as

 th
er

e 
w

e 
w

as
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
at

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
ne

w
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
le

ga
lit

y 
of

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t f

in
an

ci
al

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 a
re

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
 a

 fo
rm

al
 w

ay
.  

Th
e 

on
ly

 a
re

a 
fo

r i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 fr

om
 th

is
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

is
 th

at
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t t

he
 

ro
le

s 
an

d 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 t
he

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

fic
er

 a
nd

 s
ec

tio
n 

15
1 

of
fic

er
 i

s 
ac

tiv
el

y 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 s
ta

ff
 a

nd
 

M
em

be
rs

 (s
ee

 se
ct

io
n 

3.
4)

. 

W
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 n
o 

fo
rm

al
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 o
r o

bj
ec

tio
ns

 fr
om

 re
si

de
nt

s. 

35



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
29

 

8.
 

N
ex

t y
ea

r’
s a

ud
it 

pl
an

 

La
st

 y
ea

r 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
fe

e 
an

d 
au

di
t 

ac
tiv

ity
 i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

se
ve

nt
ee

n 
m

on
th

s 
en

de
d 

31
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
4 

an
d 

in
vi

te
d 

au
di

to
rs

 t
o 

dr
aw

 u
p 

au
di

t 
pl

an
s 

co
ve

rin
g 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d.

  
A

s 
th

is
 w

as
 a

 n
ew

 a
ud

it 
ap

po
in

tm
en

t a
nd

 in
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 p
ac

e 
of

 c
ha

ng
e 

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
in

 2
00

3,
 w

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 it
 in

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

 
dr

aw
 u

p 
pl

an
s 

fo
r 

th
is

 l
en

gt
h 

of
 p

er
io

d.
  

A
s 

a 
re

su
lt,

 w
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

is
su

in
g 

an
 a

ud
it 

pl
an

, w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
br

ou
gh

t 
to

 
m

em
be

rs
 in

 th
e 

N
ew

 Y
ea

r, 
co

ve
rin

g 
th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 fi
ve

 m
on

th
s 

of
 th

is
 s

ev
en

te
en

 m
on

th
 p

er
io

d.
  T

hi
s 

w
ill

 c
ov

er
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 2
00

3/
4 

fin
an

ci
al

 st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 re
gu

la
rit

y 
as

pe
ct

s o
f o

ur
 C

od
e 

au
di

t. 
 It

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
an

y 
st

ud
ie

s 
to

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t i

n 
th

is
 s

ho
rt 

pe
rio

d 
an

d 
w

ill
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

jo
in

t a
ud

it 
an

d 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

lre
ad

y 
pu

t 
in

 p
la

ce
. 

W
e 

w
ill

 is
su

e 
a 

fu
rth

er
 a

ud
it 

pl
an

 in
 th

e 
Sp

rin
g 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 c

ov
er

 th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

5.
  T

hi
s 

pl
an

 w
ill

 b
e 

dr
iv

en
 i

n 
pa

rt 
by

 t
he

 “
ro

un
dt

ab
le

” 
m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
sc

he
du

le
d 

in
 l

at
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

 d
is

cu
ss

in
g 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 a

ud
it 

an
d 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
ac

tiv
ity

 in
 li

gh
t o

f p
ro

gr
es

s o
n 

yo
ur

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

la
n.

 

36



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
30

 

9.
 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
nd

 a
ud

it 
fe

es
 

O
ur

 a
ud

it 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 f

or
 y

ou
r 

C
ou

nc
il 

re
qu

ire
s 

us
 to

 c
on

fir
m

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
ou

r 
fir

m
’s

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

its
 m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 o

ff
ic

er
s. 

 O
ur

 c
he

ck
s 

on
 a

pp
oi

nt
m

en
t 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 r
ev

ea
le

d 
an

y 
co

nf
lic

ts
 th

at
 e

ith
er

 p
re

ve
nt

 u
s 

fr
om

 a
ct

in
g 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

 o
r 

re
qu

ire
 s

pe
ci

fic
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ou

r 
on

go
in

g 
au

di
t i

nd
ep

en
de

nc
e.

  W
e 

as
k 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

 it
s 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 o
ff

ic
er

s 
to

 a
le

rt 
th

e 
A

pp
oi

nt
ed

 A
ud

ito
r a

s 
to

 a
ny

 n
ew

 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
w

ith
 D

el
oi

tte
 &

 T
ou

ch
e 

LL
P 

or
 a

ny
 o

f i
ts

 st
af

f s
o 

th
at

 th
is

 c
an

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 in

 th
is

 c
on

te
xt

. 

O
n 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 o

ur
 2

00
2/

3 
au

di
t a

nd
 g

ra
nt

s 
w

or
k,

 p
ar

ts
 o

f 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 in

 p
ro

gr
es

s, 
w

e 
w

ill
 d

is
cu

ss
 a

nd
 

fin
al

is
e 

fe
es

 w
ith

 o
ff

ic
er

s a
nd

 re
po

rt 
ac

tu
al

 o
ut

tu
rn

 fe
es

 to
 m

em
be

rs
 in

 o
ur

 a
ud

it 
pl

an
 fo

r n
ex

t y
ea

r. 

 

37



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
31

 

10
. 

St
at

em
en

t o
f r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 

W
e 

ta
ke

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r t
hi

s r
ep

or
t w

hi
ch

 is
 p

re
pa

re
d 

on
 th

e 
ba

si
s o

f t
he

 li
m

ita
tio

ns
 se

t o
ut

 b
el

ow
. 

  D
el

oi
tte

 &
 T

ou
ch

e 
LL

P 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

04
 

 

 C
on

ta
ct

 P
er

so
ns

: 
N

ig
el

 J
oh

ns
on

 –
 P

ar
tn

er
 

A
ng

us
 F

is
h 

– 
Se

ni
or

 M
an

ag
er

 

 01
72

7 
88

51
78

 

01
72

7 
88

50
38

 

O
ur

 re
vi

ew
 w

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
's 

A
ud

it 
C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e.

  T
he

 li
m

ita
tio

ns
 o

f o
ur

 w
or

k 
an

d 
th

e 
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 

au
di

to
rs

 a
nd

 th
e 

A
ud

ite
d 

B
od

y 
in

 re
sp

ec
t o

f t
he

 w
or

k 
ar

e 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

's 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
"S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s o
f A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 o

f A
ud

ite
d 

B
od

ie
s"

. 

Th
e 

m
at

te
rs

 r
ai

se
d 

in
 th

is
 r

ep
or

t a
re

 th
os

e 
th

at
 c

am
e 

to
 o

ur
 a

tte
nt

io
n 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

.  
H

ow
ev

er
, w

e 
w

ou
ld

 e
m

ph
as

is
e 

th
at

 o
ur

 re
vi

ew
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t b
e 

re
lie

d 
on

 to
 d

et
ec

t a
ll 

er
ro

rs
 a

nd
 w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
th

at
 m

ig
ht

 e
xi

st
. Y

ou
 s

ho
ul

d 
as

se
ss

 o
ur

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 f
or

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t f

or
 th

ei
r 

fu
ll 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 b
ef

or
e 

th
ey

 a
re

 im
pl

em
en

te
d.

  
In

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 w

e 
w

ou
ld

 e
m

ph
as

is
e 

th
at

 w
e 

ar
e 

no
t r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 fo

r t
he

 a
de

qu
ac

y 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ne
ss

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
it 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 a
s t

he
y 

ar
e 

de
riv

ed
 so

le
ly

 fr
om

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

O
ur

 c
om

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
re

pa
re

d 
fo

r y
ou

r p
riv

at
e 

us
e.

  P
le

as
e 

do
 n

ot
 q

uo
te

 o
r r

ef
er

 to
 it

s c
on

te
nt

s, 
in

 w
ho

le
 o

r i
n 

pa
rt,

 to
 a

ny
 th

ird
 p

ar
ty

 w
ith

ou
t o

ur
 p

rio
r w

rit
te

n 
co

ns
en

t. 
 W

e 
ac

ce
pt

 n
o 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 a
ny

 th
ird

 p
ar

ty
, a

s o
ur

 re
po

rt 
ha

s n
ot

 b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 a

nd
 is

 n
ot

 in
te

nd
ed

 fo
r a

ny
 o

th
er

 p
ur

po
se

. 

38



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
32

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
1:

  A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 

Se
ct

io
n 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
 

Pr
io

ri
ty

 
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t c

om
m

en
ts

 
 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

 
B

y 
w

he
n 

2.
1 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 t

hr
ee

 y
ea

r 
H

R
A

 b
ud

ge
t 

lin
ke

d 
to

 t
he

 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

M
ed

iu
m

 
Te

rm
 

B
ud

ge
t 

St
ra

te
gy

 
an

d 
pr

ud
en

tia
l 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 

an
d 

un
de

rta
ke

 
a 

th
or

ou
gh

 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

H
R

A
 b

ud
ge

t, 
lo

ok
in

g 
at

 h
ow

 t
hi

s 
su

pp
or

ts
 c

or
po

ra
te

 p
rio

rit
ie

s. 

2 
A

gr
ee

d 
by

 m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

T 
Le

ar
 

3 
ye

ar
 b

ud
ge

t b
y 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

4 

R
ev

ie
w

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4 

2.
1 

R
ev

ie
w

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

cu
rr

en
t 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

an
d 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
fo

r 
m

an
ag

in
g 

an
d 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
an

d 
en

su
re

 t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ad
eq

ua
te

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 i

n 
pl

ac
e 

to
 e

ff
ec

tiv
el

y 
m

an
ag

e 
an

d 
m

on
ito

r i
ts

 c
ap

ita
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

2 
A

gr
ee

d 
by

 m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

N
 B

el
l 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

4 

2.
3.

2 
C

al
l 

fo
r 

an
d 

co
ns

id
er

 a
 r

ep
or

t 
on

 i
m

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 o

f, 
an

d 
th

e 
ris

ks
 a

nd
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Pr
ud

en
tia

l 
C

od
e 

by
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
so

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 p
os

iti
on

ed
 t

o 
w

or
k 

w
ith

in
 t

hi
s 

ne
w

 
fin

an
ci

ng
 re

gi
m

e.
 

2 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

po
rt 

al
re

ad
y 

do
ne

 in
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

, w
ith

 C
od

e 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 to
 

go
 to

 C
ab

in
et

 in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
04

. 

N
 B

el
l 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

4 

2.
3.

2 
En

su
re

 re
po

rts
 to

 m
em

be
rs

 se
t o

ut
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

f p
la

nn
ed

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t i

n 
re

sp
ec

t o
f 

th
e 

ne
w

 L
IF

TC
O

 s
o 

th
at

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
re

 p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 
by

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 

2 
C

ab
in

et
 h

av
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 e

ar
ly

 ri
sk

 
ar

ea
s. 

G
 W

in
gr

ov
e 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

3.
2 

C
on

tin
ue

 
to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
fin

an
ci

al
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
ac

tic
es

, 
ta

ki
ng

 
ac

co
un

t 
of

 
ou

r 
re

po
rt 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
an

d 
in

 
pa

rti
cu

la
r 

ex
te

nd
 

th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l b

ud
ge

t h
or

iz
on

 to
 a

t l
ea

st
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s. 

2 
A

cc
ep

te
d.

 
N

 B
el

l 
O

ng
oi

ng
 

39



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
33

 

 

Se
ct

io
n 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
 

Pr
io

ri
ty

 
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t c

om
m

en
ts

 
 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

 
B

y 
w

he
n 

3.
3 

C
on

si
de

r, 
w

ith
 o

ff
ic

er
s, 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
th

e 
fo

rm
at

 a
nd

 c
on

te
nt

 o
f 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
B

V
PP

 i
n 

lig
ht

 o
f o

ur
 c

om
m

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

20
03

/4
 B

V
PP

. 

2 
A

cc
ep

te
d 

J R
ot

hw
el

l 
Ju

ne
 2

00
4 

3.
4 

A
gr

ee
 

an
d 

m
on

ito
r 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 

to
 

se
cu

re
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 i
n 

ar
ea

s 
w

he
re

 t
he

 m
ax

im
um

 s
co

re
 

w
as

 n
ot

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

‘a
ud

ito
r s

co
re

d 
ju

dg
em

en
ts

’ 
fo

rm
in

g 
pa

rt 
of

 C
PA

. 

2 
A

cc
ep

te
d.

 
N

 B
el

l 
O

ng
oi

ng
 

4 
C

al
l f

or
 a

nd
 c

on
si

de
r a

 re
po

rt 
on

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s p
la

ns
 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 n

ew
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 ti
m

et
ab

le
s 

fo
r t

he
 a

pp
ro

va
l a

nd
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

St
at

em
en

t o
f 

A
cc

ou
nt

s. 

1 
A

cc
ep

te
d.

  R
ep

or
t w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 fo

r 
M

ay
 2

00
4 

C
ou

nc
il 

m
ee

tin
g.

 
N

 B
el

l 
M

ay
 2

00
4 

5.
1 

C
on

si
de

r a
nd

 c
on

fir
m

 te
rm

s o
f r

ef
er

en
ce

 fo
r I

nt
er

na
l 

A
ud

it 
an

d 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

is
 a

de
qu

at
el

y 
re

so
ur

ce
d 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 a

ga
in

st
 t

he
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

 t
ha

t 
flo

w
s f

ro
m

 th
os

e 
te

rm
s o

f r
ef

er
en

ce
. 

2 
Th

re
e 

ye
ar

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
pl

an
 n

ow
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 a
nd

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

ap
pr

ov
ed

. 

N
 B

el
l 

20
04

 

5.
2 

M
on

ito
r a

ct
io

n 
ta

ke
n 

in
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 k
ey

 in
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 
ex

te
rn

al
 

au
di

t 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

on
 

in
te

rn
al

 
co

nt
ro

ls
. 

2 
R

ep
or

t o
n 

re
vi

se
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 st

ru
ct

ur
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

pu
t t

o 
th

e 
M

ay
 C

ou
nc

il 
m

ee
tin

g.
 

G
 B

al
ab

an
ov

 
M

ay
 2

00
4 

5.
3 

A
gr

ee
 a

nd
 m

on
ito

r 
pr

og
re

ss
 a

ga
in

st
 p

la
ns

 f
or

 t
he

 
fu

rth
er

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
an

d 
em

be
dd

in
g 

of
 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
es

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
re

. 

1 
Ex

te
rn

al
 a

dv
is

er
s h

av
e 

be
en

 e
ng

ag
ed

 
to

 p
re

pa
re

 ri
sk

 m
at

er
ia

l a
nd

 n
o 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
s a

re
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 to

 c
ov

er
 

th
es

e 
ke

y 
ris

ks
. 

D
 W

ar
d 

O
ng

oi
ng

 

40



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
34

 

 

Se
ct

io
n 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
 

Pr
io

ri
ty

 
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t c

om
m

en
ts

 
 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

 
B

y 
w

he
n 

6 
A

gr
ee

 
an

d 
m

on
ito

r 
pr

og
re

ss
 

ag
ai

ns
t 

pl
an

s 
in

 
re

sp
on

se
 

to
 

ex
te

rn
al

 
au

di
t 

an
d 

B
FI

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 

co
un

te
r 

fr
au

d 
an

d 
co

rr
up

tio
n 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. 

2 
A

cc
ep

te
d.

 
N

 B
el

l 
O

ng
oi

ng
 

K
ey

 to
 p

rio
rit

is
at

io
n:

  

1 
-S

tra
te

gi
ca

lly
 Im

po
rta

nt
 a

nd
 U

rg
en

t 

2 
– 

Im
po

rta
nt

  

3 
– 

D
es

ira
bl

e,
 b

ut
 n

ot
 u

rg
en

t 

41



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
35

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
2:

  U
pd

at
e 

on
 r

is
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

W
e 

se
t o

ut
 b

el
ow

 a
n 

up
da

te
 to

 th
e 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t c

on
ta

in
ed

 in
 o

ur
 a

ud
it 

pl
an

. 

R
es

id
ua

l r
is

ks
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 o

ur
 a

ud
it 

pl
an

 
U

pd
at

e 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f c

or
po

ra
te

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ra
m

ew
or

k.
 

 A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r c
ol

la
tin

g,
 a

na
ly

si
ng

 a
nd

 a
ct

in
g 

on
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ac
ro

ss
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
. 

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
IC

T 
st

ra
te

gy
. 

 Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t p

la
n.

 

  Es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f n

ew
 c

or
po

ra
te

 s
tru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t o
f n

ew
 

ke
y 

se
ni

or
 o

ff
ic

er
s. 

 A
 

st
ud

y 
lo

ok
in

g 
at

 
th

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

ha
s b

ee
n 

de
fe

rr
ed

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s p

ro
je

ct
 to

 re
vi

ew
 

an
d 

up
gr

ad
e 

its
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 in
 th

is
 a

re
a 

ha
s b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
.  

 

O
ur

 
te

st
in

g 
of

 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 
B

es
t 

V
al

ue
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
In

di
ca

to
rs

 f
ou

nd
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
d 

m
ad

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 w

ith
 t

he
se

 
pr

oc
es

se
s, 

th
ou

gh
 th

is
 n

ee
ds

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
. 

 W
e 

ha
ve

 r
ec

en
tly

 c
om

m
en

ce
d 

a 
sm

al
l 

st
ud

y 
lo

ok
in

g 
at

 t
he

 I
C

T 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

gr
ee

d 
in

 la
te

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

3.
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 

re
gu

la
rly

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

pr
og

re
ss

 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pl

an
 

it 
se

t 
its

el
f. 

 
Th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 

qu
al

ita
tiv

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
co

nf
irm

s 
th

at
 i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

m
ad

e 
an

d 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r H
ar

ro
w

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 w

ith
 it

s p
la

ns
. 

Th
e 

ne
w

 
se

ni
or

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

is
 

in
 

pl
ac

e 
an

d 
ap

po
in

tm
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
to

 a
ll 

bu
t 

tw
o 

of
 t

he
 s

ec
on

d 
tie

r 
po

st
s. 

 T
he

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

an
no

un
ce

d 
a 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
m

id
dl

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
in

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

3 
an

d 
ha

s 
en

ga
ge

d 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s 
to

 
as

si
st

 in
 th

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
.  

W
e 

w
ill

 k
ee

p 
ab

re
as

t o
f 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 a
s 

ch
an

ge
s a

re
 e

xt
en

de
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

an
d 

be
d 

do
w

n.
 

42



 

  Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
36

 

R
es

id
ua

l r
is

ks
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 o

ur
 a

ud
it 

pl
an

 
U

pd
at

e 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

nd
in

g 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f f

in
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g:
 

!
 

A
gr

ee
in

g 
m

ed
iu

m
 te

rm
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 p

la
ns

 

!
 

A
gr

ee
in

g 
ca

sh
 li

m
ite

d 
bu

dg
et

s 

!
 

C
or

re
ct

in
g 

ba
se

 b
ud

ge
ts

 in
 c

er
ta

in
 a

re
as

. 

A
gr

ee
in

g 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
N

ew
 H

ar
ro

w
 P

ro
je

ct
, 

ta
ki

ng
 i

nt
o 

ac
co

un
t 

ce
nt

ra
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

sp
en

di
ng

 g
ui

de
lin

es
 a

nd
 t

he
 

re
su

lts
 o

f c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

on
 b

ud
ge

t o
pt

io
ns

. 

W
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t a

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

in
iti

al
 M

TB
S 

in
 J

ul
y/

A
ug

us
t 

20
03

 a
nd

 c
on

cl
ud

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

d 
re

sp
on

de
d 

to
 a

ll 
of

 
th

e 
ke

y 
po

in
ts

 r
ai

se
d 

by
 t

he
 C

or
po

ra
te

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

in
 t

hi
s 

ar
ea

 
an

d 
is

 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

fu
rth

er
 

to
 

de
al

 
w

ith
 

lim
ita

tio
ns

 i
n 

th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
ca

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

tig
ht

 
tim

et
ab

le
 fo

r t
he

 p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
fir

st
 S

tra
te

gy
. 

H
ar

ro
w

 a
gr

ee
d 

a 
C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x 
ris

e 
w

hi
ch

 f
el

l 
in

 t
he

 u
pp

er
 

qu
ar

til
e.

  I
t c

ur
re

nt
ly

 e
st

im
at

es
 th

at
 it

 c
an

 c
on

ta
in

 th
e 

ris
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

ye
ar

 b
el

ow
 t

he
 l

ev
el

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
in

iti
al

 
M

TB
S.

 

In
te

rn
al

 fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

tr
ol

s 

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

ud
it 

w
or

k 
to

 c
ov

er
 f

in
an

ci
al

 
co

nt
ro

l s
ys

te
m

s. 

A
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
ke

y 
co

nt
ro

ls
 w

as
 i

nc
lu

de
d 

in
 I

nt
er

na
l 

A
ud

it’
s 

20
03

/4
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
(lo

ok
in

g 
at

 2
00

2/
3 

tra
ns

ac
tio

ns
) 

an
d 

w
as

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 t

im
et

ab
le

 w
e 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 t

he
m

. 
 W

e 
w

er
e 

ab
le

 to
 p

la
ce

 re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

ei
r w

or
k.

 

St
at

em
en

t o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
to

 p
re

pa
re

 a
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
of

 i
nt

er
na

l 
fin

an
ci

al
 

co
nt

ro
l e

ff
ec

tiv
en

es
s f

or
 th

e 
fir

st
 ti

m
e.

 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

el
ec

te
d 

to
 p

re
pa

re
 a

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

of
 i

nt
er

na
l 

fin
an

ci
al

 c
on

tro
l, 

ra
th

er
 t

ha
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
op

tio
ns

 o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 
co

nt
ro

l o
r 

fu
ll 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

ta
te

m
en

t. 
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ne

ed
s 

to
 

de
ve

lo
p 

its
 p

la
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 in

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 p

ub
lis

hi
ng

 a
 

St
at

em
en

t o
f I

nt
er

na
l C

on
tro

l w
ith

 it
s 2

00
3/

4 
ac

co
un

ts
. 

 

43



44

This page is intentionally left blank



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54

This page is intentionally left blank



  

HARROW COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Meeting: 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: 
 

Tuesday, 3rd February 2004 

Subject: 
 

Progress report on the draft HR Strategy 
 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Responsible 
Chief Officer: 
 

Executive Director (Organisational Development) 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holders: 
 

Portfolio Holder For Finance, Human Resources & Performance 
Management 

Status: 
 

Part 1 

Ward: 
 

N/A 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1 – Progress Report and Draft HR Strategy for 
consultation 

 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report details progress on developing the council’s HR Strategy and includes a 

copy of the draft Strategy for consultation.  
 
2.  Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Overview & Scrutiny Committee note the progress made and that any 

comments on the draft strategy are reported to the Interim Head of Personnel 
for consideration as part of the consultation process.  

 
 
3. Consultation with Ward Councillors 
 
3.1 N/A 
 
4. Background Information 
 
4.1 Development of an HR Strategy for the council is a key action in the Working Draft 

Improvement Plan in response to the Comprehensive Performance Assessment 
and IDeA Peer Review, agreed by Cabinet. 

 
4.2 The Improvement Plan requires the council to ‘Develop Human Resources Strategy 

incorporating vision and values (Key Priority 2) and the need to bring about 
organisational change as part of the New Harrow Project’. 

Agenda Item 6
Pages 55 to 84

55



  

 
4.3 Consultation workshops for key partners and stakeholders took place in July 2003 

and the final Strategy was due to be presented to Cabinet in January 2004.  
However, further development was postponed, pending the drafting of Council’s 
Corporate Plan. 

 
4.4 The draft Strategy is now being circulated for consultation and is scheduled to be 

presented to Cabinet for approval in March 2004.  A Progress Report, which 
includes a revised schedule and a copy of the draft Strategy, is attached. 

 
5. Background Documents 
 
5.1 None. 
 
6. Author 
 
6.1 Jon Turner,  Interim Head of Personnel, Tel:  0208 424 1225 

Email: jon.turner@harrow.gov.uk 

56



 

 

 
Project Title HR Strategy  
 
 
Project Leader Jon Turner 
 
 
Sponsor: Jill Rothwell  
 
 
Spend to date:  Consultation events incurred less than the £1000 estimate and were 
contained within current estimates  
 
 
Progress to date: 
The initial project predicted that the Strategy would be presented to Cabinet in January 
2004. However, the development of the Corporate Plan is critical to the development of 
the strategy, therefore the strategy could not be finalised until the initial draft was 
available and CMT subsequently agreed that the Strategy would be presented to 
Cabinet in March.   
 
The extension in time will also enable the initial results from the staff survey to be 
reflected in the strategy. 
 
The draft strategy is attached, a revised schedule is outlined below. 
 
 Remaining Action  
 

Deadline  Who? Who else 
involved  

Draft considered by CMT  
 

21 January JT CMT 

Revise in light of comments 
from CMT and send to 
stakeholders (inc TU, 
Employee Support Groups and 
members) for comments and 
include on O&S agenda for 3 
Feb and ECF agenda for 4 Feb 
 

W/C 26 January for final comments 
by 9 February  

YM JT/MR 
Those people who 
attended focus 
groups  

Commission design and plan 
design and printing schedule  
 

End January  MR YM 

Meet  with project group to 
review action plan 

W/C 2 February JT/MR YM 
SC/ VY/BF/RB 
  

Draft considered by O&S 
 

3 February JT Cllr Dighe /O&S 

Draft considered by ECF 
 

4 February JT JR/ECF 

Review in light of comments 
from stakeholders/O&S/ECF 
and prepare final draft for CMT 
on 18 Feb  
 

13 February JT/MR YM/JT/JR 

Feedback from consultation 
and final draft considered by 

18 February JT CMT 

Progress Report Essentials Essentials 

57



 

CMT  
 
Agree communication strategy 
for the launch of the strategy  
 

End February  JT/MR YM/JR/ Directors  

Revise in light of comments 
from CMT and prepare final 
Strategy & report for clearance 
by Leader / Portfolioholder  
 

23 February MR/JT JR/YM 

Formal clearance of report by 
Leader or Portfolioholder 
 

26 February JT AB/Cllr Dighe 

Report to Cabinet 
 

16 March JT JR/Cabinet 

Printing and advertising  
 

From 22 March MR YM 

Launch to staff  
 

From 5 April JT/MR JM/JR/ Directors  

 

 
Signed Project Leader Jon Turner 
 
 

 
Date: 21 Jan 2004 

 
Signed Sponsor 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
Sponsor comments on progress 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

58



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 1 of 26 
 

 

 
 

Strategy for managing and developing 
people 

 
 

Becoming an employer of choice through 
 a valued, committed and diverse workforce 
 
 
 

2004 – 2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 2 of 26 
 

 
Strategy for managing and developing 

people 
 

Becoming an employer of choice through a valued, committed and diverse 
workforce 

 
 
 
 
Introduction 
 
At Harrow we understand that without a valued, committed and diverse workforce we cannot achieve 
the council’s vision.  
 
The council aims to raise the standard of all our services and we recognise that excellence can only be 
achieved through people’s enthusiasm, dedication and talent.  We will support, encourage, value and 
engage all the people who provide Harrow council’s services and we will encourage partners and 
contractors to embrace and adopt the principles of the strategy, so that all services are delivered to the 
same high standards. 
 
This strategy will underpin the New Harrow Project and how people who work for the council deliver 
services, which result in real improvements for residents and users 
 
The strategy describes the council’s aims for our people, what we will do to achieve those aims, and 
how we will measure our achievements. The ultimate measures of success however, will be the 
achievement of the council’s vision and strategic priorities and how the people of Harrow assess the 
service they receive from the council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Joyce Markham          Sanjay Dighé 
Chief Executive          HR Portfolio Holder 

60



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 3 of 26 
 

 
Index 

Achieving the vision 
•  Harrow’s Vision 
•  The New Harrow Project 
 
Harrow’s strategic framework 
 
The strategy for people framework 
•  Aims 
•  Roles and expectations 
 
Working for Harrow council in 2004 
 
Building the strategy 
•  National guidance 
•  Outside feedback 
•  Listening to people 
 
Putting the strategy into practice 
 
The key priorities 
•  Finding and developing the right people with the right skills 
•  Recognising the value of diversity 
•  Motivating for results 
•  Keeping people up-to-date 
•  Building capacity 
 
Measuring success 
•  Index of success measures 
 
Key Priorities 1 to 5 

 
Keeping the strategy up to date 
 
Acknowledgements 

61



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 4 of 26 
 

 
Achieving the vision 
 
Harrow’s vision  
 
Harrow’s strategy for its people aims to make a direct and significant contribution to achieving the 
objectives in the Community Strategy and Corporate Plan.  The strategy for people has been 
developed in line with the vision: 
 
‘We are proud to live in Harrow because of the richness of our cultural backgrounds and diversity of our 
communities.  We are ambitious for the future of our children, our town and our place in London.  For 
these reasons we want to enhance the life opportunities for everyone by improving the quality of life, 
freeing everyone to achieve their potential and removing barriers to personal development and 
community growth  
 
In Harrow we look forward to a community:  
 

" Where everyone can aspire to a better life for themselves and their families  
" Where diversity can be celebrated and social cohesion promoted 
" Where everyone has an equal chance to fulfil their potential 
" Where the quality of life is enhanced by a safe, secure and clean environment 
" Where standards of education are rising and there is wider participation in lifelong learning 
" Where good health and social care is available to all who need those services 
" Where there is a vibrant local economy  
" Where there is a strong sense of civic pride 
" Where there is a dynamic council supported by a valued workforce, working in partnership with 

the community to improve public services’ 
 
The New Harrow Project  
 
The council will strive to achieve its vision and become recognised as a quality provider through the 
implementation of the New Harrow Project sustained by a rolling 3 year Medium Term Budget Strategy.  
The New Harrow Project will seek to raise the standards of service so that there is a real improvement 
for residents and users.  
 
The project is:  
 

" Fundamentally re-shaping the structure of the Council in order to align the structure to providing 
customer focussed services and break down traditional service barriers  

" Developing an area based model for the delivery of services  
" Developing community schools as the focus for the delivery of its community services 

  
The New Harrow Project needs people to work more flexibly; across professional boundaries supported 
by the development and application of new competencies.  

62



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 5 of 26 
 

 
Harrow’s strategic framework   

 
 

COMMUNITY STRATEGY

CORPORATE PLAN

Harrow and its Communities 

CORPORATE STRATEGIES  
Asset management plan,  

Medium Term Budget Strategy 
Strategy for People 

ICT strategy 
Communications strategy 
Race Equality Scheme,  
Procurement Strategy   

DIRECTORATE SERVICE PLANS 

SERVICES TO CUSTOMERS 

IMPROVE 

REVIEW 
AND LISTEN  

63



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 6 of 26 
 

 
The strategy for people framework  
 
Aims   
 
Harrow council is committed to investing in its people to ensure those people are able to deliver 
excellent services   
 
The council is committed to ensuring ever improving services through: 
 

•  Developing and supporting members and managers to lead and manage effectively  
•  Searching for talent outside and developing talent within to build capacity  
•  Managing and developing people in the continuous improvement process 

 
In striving for excellence the council’s change agenda demands change of everyone who contributes to 
the work of the Council.  This strategy outlines what the Council aims to achieve through its people, 
how it intends to measure the success of those actions, and who will be responsible for it.  It ensures 
improved outcomes for the community and for service users at the heart of the strategy for people. 
 
Roles and expectations  
 
Specific responsibility for each action are outlined in relation to the 5 key priorities for managing and 
developing people, however the council as a whole and all people involved with it have a responsibility 
to contribute to the achievement of the council’s vision 
  
The council will:  
•  Provide a clear vision of what the Council wants to achieve for Harrow and its communities  
•  Take action to promote equality that has a real meaning for the people who work in Harrow  
•  Act with integrity, value and respect people   
•  Encourage innovation, learning and managed risk taking 
•  Develop policies and processes which focus on outcomes for users and customers  
•  Work with staff and managers to define clear standards and common values 
•  Provide clear frameworks to manage performance and recognise achievement  
•  Involve and engage everyone in change   
 
The council expects employees to: 
•  Seek to improve what they do for the benefit of the customer  
•  Help define, then work within a framework of shared values     
•  Take personal responsibility for what they are required to do  
•  Innovate, learn and take managed risks 
•  Help develop and then work to clear standards   
•  Engage in and take a constructive approach to change 
•  Manage their own and others performance effectively 

64



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 7 of 26 
 

 
 
Working for Harrow council in 2004  
 

" The council employs over 5600 people, over 2500 of whom are based in schools 
" The workforce is based in over 100 locations across the borough 
" Over 45% of people work part time - the council is are committed to developing work/life balance 

solutions  
" Turnover in the council is stable at around 11%. However there are pockets where turnover is 

higher and this raises key issues for recruitment and retention  
" Absence is an average of 9.9 days per annum, which is above the government target  
" Women make up 75% of the workforce but only 35% are employed at senior levels 
" People from black and minority ethnic groups account for 27% of the workforce but only 5% are 

employed at senior levels  
" 3% of the people the council employs declare they have a disability. This is good for the sector 

but lower than the proportion of people with a disability in the working population 
" Over 55% of the workforce which have achieved Investors in People status 

  
 
Building the strategy  
 
The strategy takes account of the council’s need to respond to a wide range of external and local 
factors such as: 
 

" Greater public involvement and influence in the level and nature of the public services provided 
locally.  

" Area based provision of services with increased and more effective consultation. 
" The increasing diversity of the local community.  
" The organisational change required to achieve the objectives of the council’s Corporate Plan 

and the New Harrow Project. 
" Increasing focus on working in partnership with other sectors to deliver services e.g. National 

Health Service and the Police 
" Central government policies and increasing customer expectations which require improved and 

changed methods of service provision and working arrangements to show value for money e.g. 
best value, e-government, local strategic partnerships and re-modelling the workforce. 

" Ongoing changes to national and European employment legislation.  
 

65



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 8 of 26 
 

 
 
Building the strategy  
 
National guidance  
 
The strategy takes a number of national workforce, skills and e-government strategies into account.  In 
particular, it reflects the 5 priority areas from the Pay and Workforce Development Strategy for Local 
Government developed by the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister  
 

" Developing Leadership capacity 

" Developing the skills and capacity of the workforce 

" Developing the organisation 

" Resourcing Local government  

" Pay and Rewards  

 
Outside feedback  
 
Feedback from inspections has been influential in developing the strategy for the council’s people, e.g 
SSI, Ofsted, IiP assessment and accreditation and in particular the IDeA Peer Review and 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment and the resulting improvement plans  
 
 
Listening to people 
 
In addition to considering external factors, the council has listened to what staff, managers, trade 
unions and our partner organisations have told us through focus groups and a comprehensive staff 
survey. 
 
Key issues were: 
 

•  Improve the way we recruit and retain staff and re-shape the workforce in order to tackle issues 
that that have arisen as a result of national and London wide skills shortages  

•  Celebrate the diversity of our workforce  
•  Improve the way we communicate, particularly about change  
•  Break down professional and departmental silos and improve cross functional working  
•  Develop leadership capability and management competence 
•  Develop ways to recognise contribution and manage performance  

66



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 9 of 26 
 

 
 
Putting the strategy into practice  
 
The strategy will form the over-arching framework for managing and developing people over the next 3 
years. It will form the basis for key decision making on resource allocation and policy development on 
people management issues across the council.  
 
Directorate Service plans will ensure specific services meet each of the 5 key priorities for the council, 
set out overleaf. The broad objectives, outcomes and success measures outlined in the strategy will 
have explicit targets, action plans, and project plans to ensure they are achieved.  
 
The strategy flows from the Community Strategy and Corporate Plan.  It also has clear links to, and is 
consistent with, other strategies, including the ICT, Communications, and medium term budget 
strategies   
 
The Organisational Development Directorate will monitor the implementation of the strategy.  It will 
report regularly to the Corporate Management Team and the Employees’ Consultative Forum on 
progress and the achievement of key outcomes.  
   
The strategy will ensure the work programme of all staff involved in human resources across the 
council focuses on delivering the 5 key priorities. The council’s performance will be monitored and 
measured, and the contribution of the human resource function to the achievement of these priorities 
will be subject to Best Value Inspection in 2004/05.  
 

67



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 10 of 26 
 

 
The key priorities 
 
The council’s Corporate Plan includes the following priorities for managing and developing people: 
 
•  Becoming an employer of choice through a valued, committed and motivated workforce 
•  Ensuring staff are supported and trained to undertake their tasks and develop their full 

potential  
•  Embracing diversity by ensuring services are culturally appropriate and through an 

increase in the diversity of staff providing services 
 
To achieve these priorities the strategy for people focuses on the following: 
 
1. Finding and developing the right people with the right skills 
 
To recruit, develop, promote and retain the right people, making the most of their skills and potential by: 
 

" Developing effective recruitment and retention strategies and processes  
" Developing and promoting attractive employment recognition and reward packages that 

people value  
" Embedding learning and development opportunities for people  

 
 
2. Recognising the value of diversity 
 
To value diversity and promote equality of opportunity in employment and in the provision of excellent 
services by: 
 

" Eliminating discrimination and ensuring staff are treated fairly and consistently 
" Building on the council’s reputation and its role in Community leadership to lead and 

promote diversity and equality of opportunity through demonstrating best practice in 
employment 

" Using management information to improve practices and resolve imbalances 
 
 
3. Motivating for results 
 
To develop safe, supportive and rewarding working environments and practices to achieve continuous 
improvement in performance by: 
 

" Looking after people who work for us 
" Acting with integrity; trusting, empowering and fairly rewarding the council’s workforce     
" Helping people to build a good work life balance  
" Fostering a pride in people’s achievements   

68



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 11 of 26 
 

 
 
 
4. Keeping people up-to-date 
 
To improve communications and use new technologies to increase the capacity to deliver services 
effectively by:   
 

" Communicating and consulting with people inside and outside the council more 
effectively using appropriate methods and technologies 

" Making best use of technology for learning  
" Making access to HR information and services readily available to customers and 

partners 
" Providing management information for managers to take action to improve services  

 
 
5. Building capacity 
 
To drive and support change and improvement for individuals, teams and services and through working 
in partnership build capacity for the council as a whole: 
 

" Developing competent and confident leaders and managers 
" Optimising the potential of team and project work for innovation and change  
" Involving and engaging everyone in change at the earliest opportunity  
" Developing effective partnerships with trade unions and other partners 
" Making sure supportive processes are in place for managers to manage performance 

 
 
Measuring success  
 
Each of the actions set out in the strategy have specific measures, identified in the index overleaf, that 
will not only enable monitoring of continuous improvement but also, where possible, benchmark 
performance against key indicators.  
 
The measures that will be used to assess the success of these actions will enable the council to 
demonstrate, in real terms, the progress made in implementing this strategy. 
 
 

69



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 12 of 26 
 

 
Index of success measures  
 
Measures of success  Key Priorities  
 1 2 3 4 5 
Staff survey      
How well does your job provide you with the following features…….. abd  e  af 
How far do you agree / disagree with the following statements on t&d…. ghj abce a  fh 
How far do you agree with the following statements about your manager. j b c ab acefh 
How far do you agree with the following statements about Harrow Council.  abg ace ab ef 
How far do you agree with the following statements about your job   ce abfg a 
How far do you agree with the following statements about communication   a ab ef 
How far do you agree with the following statements about senior managers   b ac ab egh 
How far do you agree with the following statements about change   c ab aef 
Internal monitoring statistics      
Web-site hits    cd  
Workforce monitoring statistics (discipline/grievance/harassment etc)  bgi  f  
Workforce profile statistics  i i  f  
Health and Safety statistics   d f  
Absence statistics   def f  
Turnover  abc   f  
Applicant monitoring  abc i  f  
Recruitment statistics aeg f b f  
Development review and programme statistics  k fghi  cefgh  
Development review and programme evaluation gh efgh  cefgh  
Referrals to tribunals/ disputes to members/ region/national      b 
Exit interviews  h     
Externally benchmarked standards and inspection       
CPA inspection     acdfg

h 
Member Development Charter standards      gh 
People skills scoreboard gh  ac   
HSE standard   d   
Investors in People accreditation  fhj e  abe agh 
National Best Value Performance indicators       
2a Equality standard level     ef f 
2b Score against checklist for race equality scheme    ef f 
11 a %age of top 5% earners who are women gi ci b f  
11b %age of top 5% earners who are from b&me communities  gi abfi b f  
12 levels of sickness absence    def f  
15 no of early retirements on grounds of ill–health    f f  
16 %age of staff declaring they meet DDA disability definition compared with  
%age economically active disabled people in local population 

ik efi b f  

17 %of staff from b&me communities compared with  % economically active from 
b&me communities in local population  

ik abfi b f  

Customer information       
Customer satisfaction survey   ab bc acg cdf 
Customer complaints statistics   g c   
 

70



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 13 of 26 
 

 
Key priority 1  
 
Finding and developing the right people with the right skills  
 
Harrow council will become an organisation people want to work for by; 
 

" Developing effective recruitment and retention strategies and processes  
" Developing and promoting attractive employment recognition and reward packages that 

people value  
" Embedding learning and development opportunities for people  

 
The actions the council will take: 
 
Ref. What the council 

will do  
To achieve what How the council will 

measure success 
Responsibilities  
& links  

1a Develop and 
implement an 
effective reward 
package  

The way in which the 
council rewards people is 
seen to be fair across the 
council, and rewards 
contribution 
  
Improved staff morale 
 
The council will attract and 
recruit talented applicants 
for posts 

" Reduction in turnover 
in skill shortage areas 

" Increase in 
applications for hard 
to fill posts 

" Reduction in number 
of re-adverts 

" Staff survey results 

Organisational 
Development  
  
 
 
 
Local 
Government 
Pay 
Commission 
report 

1b Develop and 
implement a flexible 
benefits package  

People will be able to 
choose benefits to suit 
their current needs 
 
People will be able to 
change their benefits 
package as their needs 
change  

" Increase in 
applications in hard to 
fill posts 

" Decrease in turnover 
in skill shortage areas 

" Staff survey results 
 

Organisational 
Development   
 

1c Promote a range of 
flexible working 
opportunities  

Maximises the potential 
pool of people able to 
work for the council 

" Increase in 
applications for hard 
to fill posts 

" Reduction in turnover 
in skill shortage areas 

All Directorates 
 
ICT Strategy 
School 
Workforce 
Remodelling 
Project 

71



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 14 of 26 
 

 
Ref. What the council 

will do  
To achieve what How the council will 

measure success 
Responsibilities  
& links  

1d Produce annual 
reward statements 
for staff 

A motivated workforce 
who understand and 
appreciate the total reward 
package they receive  

" Staff survey results  Organisational 
Development   
 
 

1e Develop and 
implement a 
streamlined, 
professional 
recruitment service 

The council will attract 
talented applicants who 
recognise the fairness and 
efficiency of the process  

" Reduction in the 
time taken to fill 
posts 

" Reduction in number 
of re-adverts  

" Reduction in 
average advertising 
spend per 
appointment 

" Feedback from 
applicants 

Organisational 
Development 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Procurement 
Strategy 
ICT Strategy 

1f Achieve Investors 
in People status 
across the whole 
council by January 
2005 

A workforce developed to 
meet the business and 
service needs of the 
council 

" IiP assessment and 
accreditation 

 

All Directorates  

1g Develop and 
implement a 
structured 
approach to career 
and individual 
development  

A stable and suitably 
skilled workforce which 
increases capacity 

" Increase in internal 
applicants for jobs 

" Career development 
programmes 
established 

" Evaluation of one to 
one advice on 
careers 

" Evaluation of 
coaching, mentoring, 
secondment and 
shadowing 
programmes 

" Results of exit 
interviews 

All Directorates 
 
 

72



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 15 of 26 
 

 
Ref. What the council 

will do  
To achieve what How the council will 

measure success 
Responsibilities  
& links  

1h Develop and 
implement a 
learning and 
development 
strategy  

Maximum access to, and 
equality of opportunity 
across the council for, 
learning and development 
opportunities for informal 
and formal learning  

•  IiP assessment and 
accreditation 

•  Staff survey results 
•  People Skills 

Scoreboard results 
•  Monitoring 

information 

Organisational 
Development 
 
 

1i Develop and 
implement a 
process to enable 
effective 
succession 
planning  

A workforce which reflects 
the community, effective 
business continuity and 
increased capacity  

" Year on year 
improvement against 
BVPI 11a&b 

Organisational 
Development 
 
 

1j Develop managers 
as coaches  

Continuing improvement 
in the number of effective, 
learning opportunities in 
the workplace  

" Staff appraisals 
" IiP assessment and 

accreditation 
" Staff survey results 

Organisational 
Development 
 
 

1k Promote career 
opportunities in the 
council with the 
local community, in 
local schools 
colleges and 
universities  

The council will be 
recognised as the 
employer of choice by 
people in all Harrow’s 
communities  

" Improved 
representation of 
local communities in 
the workforce 

" Increase in numbers 
of internships, 
industrial 
placements, work 
experience 
opportunities and 
trainee programmes 
for local people  

Organisational 
Development 
 
People First 

 
 

73



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 16 of 26 
 

 
Key priority 2  
 
Recognising the value of diversity   
 
Harrow council will value diversity and promote equality of opportunity in employment and in the 
provision of excellent services by: 
 

" Eliminating discrimination and ensuring staff are treated fairly and consistently 
" Building on the council’s reputation and its role in Community leadership to lead and 

promote diversity and equality of opportunity through demonstrating best practice in 
employment 

" Using management information to improve practices and resolve imbalances 
 
The actions the council will take: 
 
Ref. What the council 

will do  
To achieve what How the council will 

measure success 
Responsibilities  
& links  

2a Develop and 
implement a 
Corporate Equality 
Plan incorporating 
the council’s Race 
Equality Scheme 

Embed diversity and 
equality of opportunity in 
all aspects of people 
management and service 
delivery across the council 

" Year on year 
improvement against 
local and BV 
performance 
indicators 

" Staff survey results 
" Customer satisfaction 

survey results 

All Directorates 
Corporate 
Equality Group 
 
Equal 
Opportunities 
Policy 
Race Equality 
Scheme 

2b 
 

Consult and involve 
community and 
representative 
groups in 
developing key 
employment 
policies and 
practices 

Minimise adverse impact 
in employment policies 
and practices and promote 
diversity 

" Year on year 
improvement against 
local and BV 
performance 
indicators 

" Staff survey results 
" Customer satisfaction 

survey results 

Organisational 
Development 
Corporate 
Equality Group 
Harrow Strategic 
Partnership 
 
Equal 
Opportunities 
Policy 
Race Equality 
Scheme 

74



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 17 of 26 
 

 
Ref. What the council 

will do  
To achieve what How the council will 

measure success 
Responsibilities  
& links  

2c Introduce a fair 
treatment in 
employment policy 

Effective resolution of 
people’s complaints  

" Improvement in %age 
of complaints resolved 
at early stages 

" Reduction in 
complaints to outside 
bodies  

Organisational 
Development 
 
Equal 
Opportunities 
Policy 
Race Equality 
Scheme  

2d Undertake an Equal 
Pay review  
 

A fair and equal reward 
system 
  

" Outcome of review 
" Avoidance of 

complaints to outside 
bodies  

Organisational 
Development 
Corporate 
Equality Group 
 
Equal 
Opportunities 
Policy 

2e Conduct a learning 
and development 
equalities audit 

Equality and diversity 
issues are mainstreamed 
in all learning and 
development activity  

" Outcome of audit 
" Staff survey results 
" IiP assessment and 

accreditation 

Organisational 
Development 
Corporate 
Equality Group 
 
Equal 
Opportunities 
Policy 
Race Equality 
Scheme  

2f Develop and 
implement a 
positive action 
programme in 
consultation with 
representative 
groups  

A workforce which reflects 
the community it serves 

" Show a year on year 
improvement against 
local and BV 
performance 
indicators 

 

Organisational 
Development 
Corporate 
Equality Group 
 
Equal 
Opportunities 
Policy 
Race Equality 
Scheme 

75



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 18 of 26 
 

 
Ref. What the council 

will do  
To achieve what How the council will 

measure success 
Responsibilities  
& links  

2g Develop and 
implement a 
disability and 
cultural awareness 
programme for all 
staff  

People in the council will 
treat each other with 
respect and understand 
and work to meet the 
needs of a diverse 
community 
 
 

" Reduction in 
harassment and 
grievances cases 

" Reduction in 
customer complaints  

" Staff survey 

Organisational 
Development 
Corporate 
Equality Group 
 
Equal 
Opportunities 
Policy 
Race Equality 
Scheme 

2h Develop and 
implement a 
programme to 
share best practice 
with partner 
organisations 
 

The council will encourage 
its partners to embrace 
best practice in equalities 
issues 

" Attendance at events 
" Feedback from 

participants 
 

All Directorates 
Corporate 
Equality Group 
 
 
Procurement 
Strategy 

2i Develop the 
provision and 
reporting of 
management 
information  

Continuing improvement 
in management 
information to enable 
Identification of patterns 
and trends 
and eliminate adverse 
impact  

" A year on year 
improvement against 
local and BV 
performance 
indicators 

 

Organisational 
Development 
Corporate 
Equality Group 
 
Equal 
Opportunities 
Policy 
Race Equality 
Scheme 

76



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 19 of 26 
 

 
Key priority 3  
 
Motivating for results 
   
Harrow council will develop safe, supportive and rewarding working environments and practices by: 
 

" Looking after people who work for us 
" Acting with integrity; trusting, empowering and fairly rewarding the council’s workforce     
" Helping people to build a good work life balance  
" Fostering a pride in people’s achievements   

 
The actions the council will take: 
 
Ref. What the council 

will do  
To achieve what How the council will 

measure success 
Responsibilities  
& links  

3a Provide a 
systematic 
approach to 
celebrating 
organisational, 
team and individual 
success 

Individual and team 
contributions and 
achievements are 
recognised and the 
workforce is motivated  

" Staff survey results 
" IiP assessment and 

accreditation 

All Directorates 

3b Promote flexible 
benefits and 
working options  

A more motivated 
workforce 
 
Improving the service to 
customers  

" Show a year on year 
improvement against 
local and BV 
performance 
indicators  

" Increase in 
applications for hard 
to fill jobs 

" Customer satisfaction 
survey results 

All Directorates 
 
Local 
Government Pay 
Commission 
report 
ICT Strategy 
School 
Workforce 
Remodelling 
Project 

3c Define and embed 
what behaviours 
and competencies 
the council expects 
from staff  

People are clear about 
what and how they are 
expected to contribute 
towards achieving the 
council’s vision 

" Staff survey results 
" IIP assessment and 

accreditation 
" Customer satisfaction 

survey results 
" Reduction in customer 

complaints 

All Directorates 
 
 
 
 
Competency 
framework 

77



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 20 of 26 
 

 
Ref. What the council 

will do  
To achieve what How the council will 

measure success 
Responsibilities  
& links  

3d Develop and 
implement an 
effective health and 
safety strategy 
which meets the 
changing 
requirements of the 
council  

Healthy and safe places to 
work 
  
Safe ways of working 
 
Ensure peoples personal 
safety and security 

" Reduction in numbers 
of incidents/accidents  

" Reduction in number 
of days lost through 
accidents BVPI 12 

" Compliance with 
Health & Safety 
legislation and 
achievement of HSE 
standards 

All Directorates 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Health & safety 
Policy 

3e Provide structured 
encouragement, 
support and 
initiatives for people 
to adopt healthy 
lifestyles  

A healthier workforce  " Reduction in levels of 
sickness absence 
BVPI 12 

" Staff survey results 

All Directorates 
 
 
 
Health & safety 
Policy 

3f Provide structured 
pro-active support 
to people who 
become sick  

A healthier workforce " Reduction in levels of 
sickness absence 
BVPI 12 

" Reduction in number 
of early retirements on 
the grounds of ill 
health BVPI 15  

All Directorates 
 
 
 
 
Health & safety 
Policy 

 

78



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 21 of 26 
 

 
Key priority 4  
 
Keeping people up to date  
 
Harrow council will improve communications and use new technologies to deliver services more 
efficiently by; 
 

" Communicating and consulting with people inside and outside the council more 
effectively using appropriate methods and technologies 

" Making best use of technology for learning  
" Making access to HR information and services readily available to customers and 

partners 
" Providing management information for managers to take action to improve services  

 
The actions the council will take: 
 
Ref. What the council 

will do  
To achieve what How the council will 

measure success 
Responsibilities  
& links  

4a Develop and 
implement a staff 
communications 
strategy which uses 
new technologies to 
the full  

People can give 
customers up-to-date 
information about what the 
council is doing and can 
use the information to 
improve services  

" Staff survey results 
" IiP assessment and 

accreditation 
" Customer satisfaction 

survey results 
 

Organisational 
Development, 
Business 
connections, 
Communications 
Unit 
 
Communications 
strategy 
ICT strategy 

4b Develop and 
implement a 
standard framework 
for face to face 
briefings across the 
council 

A two way process of 
communication on new 
developments and 
changes to the council  

" Staff survey results 
" IiP assessment and 

accreditation 
 

Organisational 
Development, 
Communications 
Unit 
 
Communications 
strategy 
ICT strategy 

79



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 22 of 26 
 

 
Ref. What the council 

will do  
To achieve what How the council will 

measure success 
Responsibilities  
& links  

4c Develop an 
interactive HR 
intranet site  

People able to access 
services more easily and 
at a time to suit them. 
Improved communication  

" Increase in the 
number of 
transactions 

" Increase in the use of 
learning resources 

" User evaluation and 
feedback  

" Customer satisfaction 
survey results 

Organisational 
Development, 
Business 
connections, 
Communications 
Unit 
 
Communications 
strategy 
ICT strategy 

4d Develop and 
implement an 
integrated 
personnel /payroll 
system  

Efficient processing of 
transactions and 
information transfer  

" Reduction in 
administrative costs  

" Reduction in number 
of transactions  

" Improvement in 
management 
information and BVPI 
12 

Organisational 
Development, 
Business 
connections,  
 
ICT strategy 
Medium Term 
Budget Strategy 

4e Develop and 
implement an 
integrated learning 
management 
system 

People have greater 
access to development  
 
Improved management 
information and evaluation 
of learning and 
development  

" Reports show staff 
development 
undertaken 
systematically  

" Reports show 
performance reviews 
are being undertaken  

" IiP assessment and 
accreditation 

" BVPI 2 a+b 

Organisational 
Development, 
Business 
connections,  
 
 
 
 
 
ICT strategy  

4f Develop more 
effective reporting 
of management 
information on 
people issues  

More effective 
management of 
performance  

" Year on year 
improvement against 
local and BV 
performance 
indicators 

" Staff survey results 
" Customer satisfaction 

survey results 

Organisational 
Development, 
Business 
connections,  
 
 
 
ICT strategy 

80



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 23 of 26 
 

 
Ref. What the council 

will do  
To achieve what How the council will 

measure success 
Responsibilities  
& links  

4g Make sure people 
have the skills to 
make best use of 
new technologies  

People make full use of 
new technologies to 
improve service to the 
customer  

" Staff survey results 
" IiP assessment and 

accreditation 
" Customer satisfaction 

survey results 

Organisational 
Development, 
Business 
connections,  
 
ICT strategy  

4h Develop and 
implement an e-
learning 
programme  

Mandatory procedural 
training is undertaken by 
all in a timely way  
 
Increased access to 
opportunities for personal 
and career development  

" Attendance at 
mandatory 
programmes  

" Reduction in breaches 
of procedures  

" Uptake of optional 
programmes  

 

Organisational 
Development, 
Business 
connections,  
 
 
 
ICT strategy 

 

81



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 24 of 26 
 

 
Key priority 5   
 
Building capacity 
 
Harrow council will drive and support change and improvement for individuals, teams and services and 
through working in partnership build capacity for the council as a whole by; 
 

" Developing competent and confident leaders and managers 
" Optimising the potential of team and project work for innovation and change  
" Involving and engaging everyone in change at the earliest opportunity  
" Developing effective partnerships with trade unions and other partners 
" Making sure supportive processes are in place for managers to manage performance 

 
The actions the council will take: 
 
Ref. What the council 

will do  
To achieve what How the council will 

measure success 
Responsibilities  
& links  

5a Develop and 
implement a 
performance 
management and 
development 
framework across 
the council  

A consistent approach to 
managing performance 
and development across 
the council 
 
People are clear about 
their role and their 
contribution to delivering 
services 

" Outcome of CPA 
" Staff survey results 
" IiP assessment and 

accreditation 
 

Organisational 
Development 
 
 
Performance 
Management 
framework 
Competency 
framework 

5b Develop effective 
partnerships with 
the trade unions 

Effective employee 
relations which contribute 
to achieving the council’s 
objectives  

" Reduction in the 
number of disputes 
raised with 
members/regional/nati
onal bodies 

Organisational 
Development 
 
 

5c Develop and 
implement a 
capability / 
competence 
procedure  

Poor performance in the 
council is identified and 
remedied 
 
People achieve minimum 
levels of competence 

" Outcome of CPA 
" Staff survey results 
" Customer satisfaction 

survey results 

Organisational 
Development 
 
Performance 
Management 
framework 
Competency 
framework 

5d Review, develop 
and implement 
employment 
policies procedures  

Effective use of people 
and improved service 
delivery  

" Outcome of CPA 
" Customer satisfaction 

survey results 

Organisational 
Development 
 
 

82



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 25 of 26 
 

 
Ref. What the council 

will do  
To achieve what How the council will 

measure success 
Responsibilities  
& links  

5e Develop and 
implement a 
process which 
makes sure people 
are consulted and 
engaged in 
changes from the 
start  

A more effective change 
process for both minor 
and major changes  

" Staff survey results 
 

Organisational 
Development 
 

5f Introduce team 
based improvement 
reviews in work and 
project teams  

Improvements in 
performance through 
people working 
collaboratively 
 
A learning culture is 
established  

" CPA 
" Year on year 

improvement against 
local and BV 
performance 
indicators 

" Staff survey results 
" Customer satisfaction 

survey results 

Organisational 
Development 
 

5g Develop and 
implement a 
programme of 
member leadership 
development  

Highly effective members 
able to fulfil their 
leadership, 
representational and 
scrutiny roles 

" CPA 
" Investors In People 
" Member Development 

Charter standards   
 

Organisational 
Development 
 

5h Develop and 
implement 
leadership and 
management 
programmes based 
on   competency 
frameworks  

Highly effective, ethical 
leaders and managers 
who are customer 
focussed, performance 
driven and empower their 
staff 

" CPA 
" Staff survey results 
" Customer satisfaction 

survey results 
 

Organisational 
Development 
 

 

83



 
Strategy for people 

 

Draft 2     Page 26 of 26 
 

 
 
Keeping the strategy up-to-date 
  
It is important that the strategy is updated as the council changes.  The strategy will be formally 
reviewed and amended every two years. 
 
 
 
Acknowledgements 
 
The council is grateful to the following organisations and people who have contributed to the 
development of this strategy: 
 
ColArt Fine Art & Graphics Limited 
Clementine Churchill Hospital 
Harrow Association of Disabled People 
Harrow Council for Racial Equality 
Harrow Refugee Forum 
Ladbrokes Racing Limited 
Land Registry 
North West London Health Authority 
University of Westminster 
UNISON 
 
Maureen De Beer, LEA  Governor’s Working Group 
Russell Sutcliffe, Govenors’ Forum 
 
 
And the Project Group members 
 
Russell Beech, Divisional Manager 
Lesley Clarke, Personnel Manager 
Sam Curling, IT Manager 
Bernie Flaherty, Provided Services Manager 
Maggie Rees, Training & Development Manager 
Vanessa Young, Assistant Personnel Officer 

84



HARROW COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Meeting: 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: 
 

Tuesday, 2nd March 2004 

Subject: 
 

Annual Report of HR Portfolio Holder for 2002/2003 
 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Responsible Chief 
Officer: 
 

Executive Director (Organisational Development) 

Relevant Portfolio 
Holder: 
 

Portfolio Holder For Finance, Human Resources & Performance 
Management 

Status: 
 

Part 1 

Ward: 
 

N/A 

Enclosures: 
 

None. 

 
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report sets out the HR work of the council over 2002/03, the key service objectives 

and progress made to date implementing these objectives. 
 
 
2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Overview & Scrutiny Committee note the report of the HR Portfolio Holder.
 
 
 
3. Consultation with Ward Councillors 
 
3.1 N/A 
 
 
4. Background Information 
 
4.1 Your meeting on 22nd January 02 received a report from the Human Resources Portfolio 

holder which set out how the Personnel service was delivered and work carried out over 
2000/01, the key service objectives and progress made to date implementing these 
objectives. The report also outlined the composition of the council's workforce in terms of 
ethnicity and gender and detailed the representation of disabled people in the workforce. 

 
4.2 The Chair asked for such a report on an annual basis, and this report details progress 

during 2002/03. 

Agenda Item 7
Pages 85 to 94

85



5. How The Personnel Service Is Delivered 
 
5.1 The HR work in the authority is delivered via the Personnel Services division.  Personnel 

Services is a service unit within the Chief Executives department.  There are 8 separate 
units within the service.  These include departmental Personnel units that provide a 
comprehensive service to all departments of the council; the occupational health and 
health and safety units; payroll; pensions; training and development; and the workplace 
nursery. 

 
5.2 The service is delivered by the council's staff  who are largely based at the civic centre.  

The Occupational Health Service is provided under an agreement with Northwick Park 
Hospital Trust. 

 
 
6. Key Performance Indicators 
 
6.1 Personnel Services are responsible for monitoring and reporting the Council’s 

performance against a range of indicators, including a number of Corporate Health 
BVPIs. 

 
6.2 Compared to 2001/02 the Council has improved its performance against all those 

Corporate Health BVPIs monitored by Personnel Services.  However it has not achieved 
all its performance targets.  Performance compared to last year and the targets for 
2002/03 is set out in the table below: 

 
Performance Indicator 2001/2002  

Performance 
2002/2003 
Targets 

2002/2003 
Performance 

(a) BV2 - The level of the Equality 
Standard for Local Government to 
which the authority conforms. 

BVPI 
amended 

Level 1 Level 1 

(b) Success Ratio for black and ethnic 
minority job applicants 

0.47 0.7 0.53 
 

(c) The proportion of black and ethnic 
minority appointments reflect the 
proportion of black and ethnic 
minorities in the local community.  

39% 42% 44% 
 
 

(d) BV17 - The percentage of black and 
ethnic minority employees of the 
total workforce.  

23% 25% 27.4% 

(e) BV11b – The percentage of black 
and black and ethnic minority staff in 
senior management in the top 5% of 
earners. 

BVPI 
amended 

10% 5.3% 

(f) To achieve a balanced workforce 
which reflects the economically 
active ethnic profile of the local 
community of Harrow.   

23% 25% 27.4% 

(g) The proportion of women 
appointments reflect the proportion 
of women in the local community 

59% 51% 64% 

(h) To achieve a balanced workforce 
which reflects the gender profile of 
the local community of Harrow. 

77% women 
 
23% Men 

51% women 
 
49% men 

76% women 
 
24% men 

86



Performance Indicator 2001/2002  
Performance 

2002/2003 
Targets 

2002/2003 
Performance 

(i) BV11a - The percentage of Senior 
Management posts filled by women, 
based on the top 5% of earners. 

BVPI 
amended 

40% 
 

35% 

(j) BV16 - The percentage of staff of 
the total workforce declaring a 
disability. 

2.1% 3% 2.4% 

(k) The numbers of employees using or 
subject to the procedures is 
proportionate to the workforce profile 
in terms of ethnicity, gender and 
disability. 

Overall black 
and ethnic 
minority staff 
appear to be 
disproportiona
tely affected 
except in 
relation to ill 
health 
dismissals. 

Proportionate 
to the 
workforce 
profile. 

Potentially 
adverse 
impact on 
black and 
ethnic 
minority staff 
only appears 
in the 
disciplinary & 
probationary 
procedures 

(l) That access to training is at least 
proportionate to the workforce profile 
in terms of ethnicity, gender and 
disability.  

 

Target 
achieved 
except for 
black and 
ethnic 
minority 
employees 
participating 
in training 
courses, 
which is 22%. 

Target will not 
prevent 
positive action 
for black and 
ethnic 
minority staff, 
women or 
disabled staff. 

Target 
exceeded for: 
BEM 39% 
Disabled 4% 
Women 71% 

(m)BV12 – The number of working days 
lost due to sickness absence 

10.65 9.50 9.98 

(n) BV14 – The percentage of 
employees retiring early 

0.32 0.45 0.12 

(o) BV15 – The percentage of 
employees retiring on grounds of ill 
health 

0.74 0.50 0.47 

 
 
7. Composition Of The Workforce 
 
7.1 The number of employees 5637 has marginally decreased compared to 5689 in 2002.  

(NB all figures are as at 31 March). 
 

Black and Ethnic Minorities 
 
7.2 The overall proportion of ethnic minority employees in the workforce is now 27.4%. 
 

Payband Profile as 
at 

31.03.03 

Profile as 
at 

31.03.02 

Profile as 
at 

31.03.01 

Profile as 
at 

31.03.00 
Band 1   White 67% 70% 68% 71% 

 1   Ethnic Minority 33% 30% 32% 29% 

87



Payband Profile as 
at 

31.03.03 

Profile as 
at 

31.03.02 

Profile as 
at 

31.03.01 

Profile as 
at 

31.03.00 
Band 2   White 67% 77% 79% 79% 

 2  Ethnic  Minority 33% 23% 21% 21% 
Band 3  White 81% 82% 79% 84% 

 3  Ethnic Minority 19% 18% 21% 16% 
Band 4  White 88% 93% 92% 93% 

 4  Ethnic Minority 12% 7% 8% 7% 
 
7.3 The Council’s local performance indicator for 2002/3 was that the proportion of black and 

ethnic minority appointments reflects the proportion of black and ethnic minorities in the 
general population and was set at 42.7%.  As can be seen from the figures below, the 
Council exceeded its target. 

 
ETHNIC MINORITY APPLICANT MONITORING 

Year Applications Shortlisted Appointed 
2002-03 59% 52% 44% 

2001-02 58% 51% 39% 

2000-01 53% 46% 38% 

1999-2000 49% 45% 39% 
 
7.4 The table also shows that the proportion of ethnic minority appointments is lower than the 

proportion of ethnic minority applicants hence the Council has fallen short of its success 
ratio target of 0.7. 

 
Disability 

 
7.5 The Council's target for the employment of disabled people is 3% of the workforce.  

There as been a marginal increase in the number of staff declaring they have a disability, 
which is 2.4% compared to 2.1% last year. 

 
7.6 The number of applications received from people who declared that they considered 

themselves to have a disability is 92(2.3%).  The number of applicants with a disability 
shortlisted is 34 (2.6%), and 3 applicants with a disability were appointed out of 382 
appointments (0.8%). 

 
Gender 

 
7.7 The Council set a target of 51% for it’s local performance indicator that the proportion of 

women appointments reflects the proportion of women in the local community.  The 
proportion of women appointments for 2001/02 was 64%.  The Council has exceeded its 
performance target. 

 
7.8 The proportion of women applying for posts is 63% compared with 37% for men. The 

proportion of women being shortlisted is 64% compared with 36% for men.  The 
proportion of women appointed is also 64%.  The proportion of women appointed is 
higher than men at all paybands and is consistently at 60% or above. 

 

88



7.9 An analysis of the number of appointments by payband and comparisons with the 
previous two years is shown below: 

 
Appointment of Women by Payband 

Payband  2002/03 2001/02 2000/01 1999/2000 
Band 1 Men 43 88 45 93 
Band 1 Women 68 90 102 210 
     
Band 2 Men 66 50 39 72 
Band 2 Women 123 132 91 90 
     
Band 3 Men 21 32 20 15 
Band 3 Women 41 24 21 48 
     
Band 4 Men 8 14 5 8 
Band 4 Women 12 20 12 10 

 
 
8. Sickness Absence 
 
8.1 Employees in Harrow took an average of 9.98 days sickness absence in 2002/03.  This 

compares with 10.65 days last year and is the 3rd year on year reduction.  However, our 
sickness absence e remains in excess of the target set by government of 9.1 days.  

 
8.2 An absence management project has commenced with the intention of accelerating the 

rate of improvement so that we are able to reach the government target by 2004/05 
 
 
9. Turnover 
 
9.1 Around 10% of the workforce leaves each year for voluntary reasons, with 0.12% retiring 

early and 0.47% of the workforce retiring on grounds of ill health during 2002/03. 
 
 
10. Review Of 2002/03 
 
10.1 The launch of the New Harrow Project and the subsequent re-build of the organisation 

has been the subject of much of HR focus and attention during the year including the 
restructuring of the Senior Management Team. 

 
10.2 Significant numbers of staff were involved in the national strike by UNISON and GMB in 

support of their national pay claims and the continuing regional strikes by UNISON and 
GMB and the NUT in support of the London Allowance claim.  Although locally the action 
was, in the main, handled in a responsible manner the disputes created a significant 
distraction, which adversely affected progress on local employee relations issues. 

 
10.3 As part of the continuing programme of development of the workforce, the majority of 

managers have now attended a development centre where they have been assessed 
against Harrow’s management competencies and as a result attended management 
development programmes and developed personal development plans. 

 

89



10.4 Supporting the transfer of the Council’s domiciliary care service to BNA provided 
significant challenges but was successfully accomplished including ensuring the 
transferring staff retained their membership of  the LGPS. 

 
10.5 Following Harrow’s award of Beacon Status for its work in promoting racial equality.  The 

Council hosted a very successful Beacon Conference, which involved Personnel 
Services presenting its achievements and disseminating information on best practice in 
employment monitoring with other Councils and communities. 

 
 
11. Progress Against Key Objectives 
 

Key Objective 
 

Progress 

❏  To review and develop Harrow's 
recruitment and retention policies, to 
ensure that it can attract and retain 
high quality staff in the current labour 
market. 

 

❏  A protocol for implementing market 
supplements has been developed which 
has been used for LGV drivers and 
Planning staff 

❏  To ensure that the workforce has the 
skills and competencies required to 
deliver high quality services. 

 

❏  The emphasis in the year was on the 
development of managers in relation to 
defined competencies. 

 
❏  Over 2000 staff undertook off the job 

training through the corporate unit with 
all training courses clearly defining the 
skills and competencies to be achieved 

 
❏  To produce a revised integrated 

equality policy, ensuring that it meets 
the CRE Code of Practice and other 
equality standards and guidance. 

 

❏  The Council’s revised Equality Policy 
‘Making a Difference’ was launched in 
June 2002 

❏  To implement Harrow's Equality 
Policies to ensure that its Employment 
Policies and Service Delivery Policies 
address the needs of Harrow's diverse 
community. 

 

❏  The Council’s Race Equality Scheme 
and 3 year action plan to impact assess 
all functions and policies was launched 
in June 02. 

 
❏  Three Council Guides on disability were 

launched in January 03 
 

❏  To have a workforce that is 
representative of Harrow's diverse 
community. 

 

❏  The Council improved it’s performance in 
all areas of workforce representation 

90



Key Objective 
 

Progress 

❏  To ensure Harrow's resourcing needs 
are met via effective management of 
absence and ill health retirement - 
ensuring that turnover is not excessive 
and analysing the reason for leaving.    

 

❏  Days lost through absence improved but 
continues to be above target.  The 
number of ill-health retirements remains 
within acceptable limits 

 
❏  Turnover remains within acceptable 

limits 
 

❏  To review and modernise Harrow's 
Personnel Policies and Policies 
ensuring that they support service 
delivery, including developing new 
ways of working. 

 

❏  The Protocol for Managing 
Organisational Change was developed 
which underpins the restructuring 
required to achieve the objectives of the 
New Harrow Project 

 
❏  E-HR - to use technology including the 

Inter & Intranets to improve, personnel 
administration transactions, process 
and performance.  

 

❏  Personnel Services launched their 
intranet site, which contains up to date 
information for staff on a range of HR 
information. 

 
❏  LGOL funding was obtained to develop 

an e-learning strategy and e-learning 
opportunities for Council staff, with an 
initial e-learning programme developed 
for recruitment and selection. 

 
❏  To ensure that elected members are 

inducted into the organisation and that 
they are supported to meet their 
changed roles in the new political 
structure. 

 

❏  A comprehensive induction programme 
for new members was developed. A 
member development panel was formed 
and funding obtained to provide an on-
going programme of member 
development 

 
❏  To develop and implement the 

Council's response to Single Status 
 

❏  Negotiations commenced but became 
protracted and stalled as a result of 
UNISON’s failure to engage.  
Negotiations recommenced in 2003. 

 
❏  Ensure achievement of IIP within Chief 

Executive’s department 
 

❏  The Chief Executive’s department was 
re-accredited as an IiP and the external 
assessor was impressed by the progress 
made since initial accreditation three 
years ago 

 
 

What has gone well? 
 
11.1 2002/03 was relatively successful for Personnel Services despite resource constraints 

and a challenging employee relations climate. 
 

91



11.2 Personnel Services has achieved: - 
 

•  A second annual benefit statement was issued to all members of the local 
government pension scheme 

•  Introduced a task management system to payroll and pensions 
•  Negotiated an admission agreement for transferring Domiciliary Care staff 
•  Exceeded the targets for provision of Information Advice and Guidance in training and 

career opportunities 
•  Co-hosted a Job and Career Fair focussing on employment opportunities for 

members of local minority ethnic communities 
•  Held a series of conferences on Diversity throughout the autumn 
•  Re-established the in house Certificate in Management and created a pool of 

coaches and mentors for managers 
•  Completed a pay and grading review for all jobs in Contract Services 
•  Health & Safety promoted activities to mark European Safety Week including lifestyle 

screening, yoga and ‘stress busting’ classes and supported a working group to 
address violence and aggression at work. 

•  Additional support was provided on fire safety during the Fire Brigade Strike. 
•  Management of Harrow’s response and contingency arrangements during the 

national and regional industrial action by the NUT, Unison & GMB. 
•  Developed published and launched the Council’s revised Equal Opportunities Policy 

and Race Equality Scheme 
•  Developed published and launched a series of Council Guides on Disability 
•  Reviewed and revised the Council’s Maternity, Adoption and Paternity Policies to 

bring them into line with statutory changes and national agreements. 
•  Contributed to the satisfactory OfsteD assessment of the LEA  

 
What has not gone so well? 

 
11.3 We had intended to review the way we recruit in order to improve both the efficiency and 

quality of our processes and product for example the way we advertise.  Recruitment and 
retention continues to be a problem in specific work areas, though the initiatives 
introduced during the year are easing the problems for some staff groups.  Whilst minor 
improvements have been implemented a full review is required and is a priority for the 
next year. 

 
11.4 The success rate for black and minority ethnic applicants continues to be below our 

target.  Further work needs to be undertaken to identify potential causes and any 
remedial action. 

 
11.5 Although we have improved our performance, the number of days lost through absence 

is below the Council and government target.  Improving the way we manage absence will 
be a priority for the next year. 

 
11.6 Negotiations to implement Single Status have been delayed by the local UNISON 

Branch’s failure to engage on some of the more difficult issues.  Both the Branch and the 
Council sought support from UNISON Regional Officers but the response was poor and 
negotiations stalled. 

 
11.7 Similar difficulties were encountered during discussions on the Protocol for Managing 

Organisational Change.  As a consequence there was a significant delay in reaching 

92



agreement on the protocol, which is key to the roll out of the restructuring required to 
achieve the objectives of the New Harrow Project.  

 
11.8 A more systematic approach to member development needs to be developed and 

greater clarity of roles and responsibility in the member development processes defined 
  
 
12. Key Service Objectives For 2003/04 
 

o To develop appropriate change management policies, practices and procedures to 
ensure the effective implementation of the New Harrow Project. 
 

o To develop and align the HR Strategy and HR Development Strategy to the New 
Harrow Project Corporate Objectives. 
 

o To develop and implement individual performance management schemes that 
translate corporate objectives into individual targets. 
 

o To develop and implement development programmes for Elected Members and 
Senior Managers to develop their leadership skills. 
 

o To review and develop Harrow’s recruitment and retention policies, to ensure that it 
can attract and retain high quality staff in the current labour market. 
 

o To ensure that elected members and the workforce have the skills and competencies 
required to lead and deliver high quality services 
 

o To implement Harrow's Equality Policies to ensure that its Employment Policies and 
Service Delivery Policies address the needs of Harrow's diverse community. 
 

o To have a workforce that is representative of Harrow's diverse community. 
 

o To ensure Harrow's resourcing needs are met via effective management of absence 
and ill health retirement - ensuring that turnover is not excessive and analysing the 
reason for leaving. 
 

o To review and modernise Harrow's HR Policies and Procedures, ensuring that they 
support service delivery, including developing new ways of working. 
 

o To promote a healthy and safe workplace through appropriate policies and practices. 
 

o To review the structure of the personnel function to ensure that Harrow is managing 
people in the best possible way and that the Council's strategic objectives are 
achieved. 
 

o E-HR to use technology including the Internet & Intranet to improve, personnel 
administration transactions, process and performance. 
 

o To ensure that elected members are inducted into the organisation and that they are 
supported to meet their changed roles in the new political structure. 
 

o To develop and implement the Council's response to Single Status. 
 

93



CPA/IDeA Improvement Plan 
 
12.1 In March 2003 Cabinet agreed a Working Draft Improvement Plan in response to the 

Comprehensive Performance Assessment and IDeA Peer Review. 
 
12.2 Service objectives will be prioritised to focus on achievement of the 2003 tasks set out 

under Priority 9 (Human Resources Strategy) of the Improvement Plan which are 
detailed below: 
 
o Commission bi-annual staff attitude survey 
o Programme of measures to address sickness absence  
o Review current management competencies and management development 

programme 
o Develop Human Resources Strategy incorporating vision and values (Key Priority 2) 

and the need to bring about organisational change as part of the New Harrow Project 
 
o Areas For Further Development At End Of 2003 
 Audit 6 key policies and then re-write in light of new organisation.  Key policies are 

those for Recruitment and Retention, Grievance, Disciplinary Procedure, Performance 
Management, Absence, and Training & Development. 

  
 
13. Author 
 
13.1 Jon Turner 

Interim Head of Personnel 
Tel:  0208 424 1225 
Email: jon.turner@harrow.gov.uk 

 
 
14. Background Papers  
 
14.1 Reports to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings on 22 January 2002 and 12 

February 2003 
 

94



170204_CabRep_Capital Prog 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARROW 
 
 
 

Meeting: 
 

Cabinet 

Date: 
 

17 February 2004 

Subject: 
 

Medium Term Capital Budget Strategy & Capital Investment Plan 

Key decision: 
 

Yes 

Responsible 
Chief Officer: 
 

Executive Director, Urban Living 
Executive Director, Business Connections 

Relevant 
Portfolio Holder: 
 

Finance, Human Resources and Performance Management 
Planning, Development, Housing and Best Value 

Status: 
 

Part  1  

Ward: 
 

All 

Enclosures: 
 

None 

 
1. Summary/ Reason for urgency (if applicable) 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval to make changes in management of the 

capital programme to confirm fixed elements of this years programme, and the 
‘Prudential Borrowing’ indicators.    

 
2. Recommendations  
 
Cabinet are asked to : - 
 
2.1 Agree the improvements to capital programme management set out in 6.1 

(a) to (c) 
2.2 Agree the delegations as follows: - 

6.1 c) ii)   Invest to Save Fund  -  Executive Director, Business 
Connections in consultation with the Portfolio holder. 
6.1 c)  iii) Small Projects/ New Innovations fund  -  Executive Director, 
Business Connections.   

2.3 Agree development of the project plan set out in 6.2 
2.4 Confirm the fixed capital programme in 6.3 
2.5 Recommend to Council the ‘Prudential Borrowing’ Indicators for approval. 
 

REASON:  To improve the management and delivery of the Capital 
Programme whilst operating under the new ‘Prudential Borrowing’ 
indicators 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 8
Pages 95 to 102

95



170204_CabRep_Capital Prog 

3. Consultation with Ward Councillors 
 
3.1 None 
 
4. Policy Context (including Relevant Previous Decisions) 
 
4.1 Cabinet agreed on 18th February 2003 to approve the approach to management and 

monitoring of the capital programme and its extent for 2003/4.  Cabinet in July also 
received budget guidelines which included a move to three year capital programmes.  
Throughout this year the new ‘Prudential Borrowing’ indicators have emerged from the 
Government.  From these the Council must integrate as far as possible its capital and 
revenue spending plans.  For these reasons the Council should move forward from its 
position at this time last year to ensure greater effectiveness in its Capital Programme 
development and delivery. 

 
5.  Relevance to Corporate Priorities 
 
5.1 These recommendations relate to all of the Corporate Priorities 
 
 
6. Background Information and options considered 
 

6.1 The following key tasks should be undertaken to ensure sound management of 
the capital programme in line with both Government requirements and best 
practice:-  

  
 a) ‘Fast tracking’ of the 2004/5 capital programme in order to minimise ‘slippage’ 

throughout the year.  ‘Fast tracking’ will involve acceleration of the 
programme by engaging professional resources in the normal manner to 
prepare suitable project briefs, project design and project delivery, but doing 
so both as early as possible in the financial year and with significantly more 
schemes in progress at any one time than at present.   

  
 b) By November 2004 members to receive a three year, needs based proposed 

capital programme with an element of consultation built in together with 
identified revenue consequences linked to revenue budget proposals 
 

 c) Establishment of the following Capital funds to provide flexibility in 
development of the programme, and engender innovations in capital 
investment opportunities : - 

   
 i) Feasibility Studies Fund  - £500,000 (funded from capital programme). 
   
 ii) Invest to Save Fund  -  £500,000 (individual business cases to be approved 

by Executive Director Business Connections in consultation with the Portfolio 
holder) - self financing in terms of consequential year on year revenue 
effects.  
 

 iii) Small Projects/ new innovations fund -  £250,000 (individual business cases 
up to £25,000 to be approved by Executive Director Business Connections).  

   
 iv) For 2004/5 only £50,000 for development of outline business cases for 

projects seen as urgent/opportune to develop, but which are not part of the 

96



170204_CabRep_Capital Prog 

agreed 2004/5 capital programme.  Outline Business Cases for capital 
projects will form part of the Medium Term Budget Strategy, and be revenue 
funded for subsequent years. 

   
 v) Confirm that in respect of acquisitions and disposals professional fees will 

form part of the total costs, or will be netted off against the gross receipt. 
   
6.3 Confirm the following fixed aspects of the programme for 2004/5: 
 i) Transport for London £4.011 million 
 ii) Education £3.455 million 
 iii) Disabled Facilities Grants £667,000 
 iv) Improvement Grants £1.2 million  
   
6.4 Recommend for approval to Council the ‘Prudential Borrowing’ indicators set 

out in Appendix I which the Council needs to follow in complying with good 
practice.  

  
6.5 Note that a further report will be presented to Cabinet in March proposing a 

detailed Capital Programme for 2004-05. 
 
7. Consultation 
 
7.1 None 
 
8. Finance Observations 
 
8.1 All included within the body of the report 
 
9. Legal Observations 
 
9.1 Prudential Borrowing compliance is the Councils Section 151 Officer’s responsibility.  

The relevant legislation is set out in Appendix 1 of the report.  
 
10. Conclusion 
 
10.1 More effective delivery of a medium term needs based capital programme will make a 

significant contribution to the development and support of services to the community 
provided by the Council. 

 
11. Background Papers  
 
11.1 Prudential Borrowing Regulations ODPM - 10 December 2003 

Prudential Borrowing Guidelines from CIPFA – November 2003 
 Councils Capital Programme 2003/4 
 
12. Author 
 
12.1 Ian C Brown, Interim Director of Strategy, Urban Living 

e-mail: ianc.brown@harrow.gov,.uk 
Tel: 020 8424 1998 

97



170204_CabRep_Capital Prog 

 
 APPENDIX 1 
 
Note: the Council Tax Band D rates quoted in this appendix are provisional at this stage and 
may be subject to change when the revenue budget is finalised. 
 
Prudential Indicators 
 
1. The Local Government Act 2003, has replaced the existing regime set out in Part IV of the 

Local Government and Housing Act 1989, with the Prudential Code for Capital Finance 
with effect from 1 April 2004.  The key objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure that 
the capital investment plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent, sustainable, and 
follow good practice.  The Section 151 Officer has to recommend to Council a series of 
indicators in relation to the above.  This sets out the proposed indicators for the Council.  

 
2. To demonstrate that each authority fulfils these objectives the Code sets out a 

number of indicators and factors that must be considered.  Set out below are the 
indicators which must be approved at the same time as the council’s revenue and 
capital budgets are set. 

 
Capital Expenditure 
 
2. The actual capital expenditure that was incurred in 2002-03 and the estimates of capital 

expenditure to be incurred for the current and future years that are recommended for 
approval are shown in Table 1.  The current capital programme has recently been 
reclassified to reflect the revised departmental structure, the actual for 2002-03 is not 
available in this format and therefore totals only are shown. 

98



170204_CabRep_Capital Prog 

 
Table 1 
      
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE      
 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 
 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
 Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Approved Programme      
Business Connections  3,235
Chief Executive's  125   
People First  6,409 2,331  
Urban Living - Housing (non HRA)  1,617 1,916  
Urban Living – Other  12,159 4,794 489 213
Organisational Development  0   
Capitalisation  1,914   
Total non HRA 15,801 25,459 9,041 489 213
HRA 5,441 6,380 3,087  
Total 21,242 31,839 12,128 489 213
ADDITIONAL EXPENDITURE FUTURE YEARS    
Specific Funding Items      
Transport for London   4,010 4,010 4,010
Education Grant Funding   1,588 1,588 1,588
Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA)      
Major Repairs Allowance   3,660 3,687 3,719
Rev Contrib to Capital Outlay   873 825 1,210
Borrowing (£12m in total)      
Supported   4,674 4,674 4,674
Unsupported   7,326 7,326 7,326
Capital Receipts      
General Fund   1,700 2,300 1,000
Right to Buy   2,200 1,650 1,100

Sub total 21,242 31,839 38,159 26,549 24,840
Over programming at 15% of 
additional expenditure   3,905 3,909 3,694

Total Proposed Programme 21,242 31,839 42,064 30,458 28,534
 
 
Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 
 
4. The financing costs of the council include interest payable in respect to borrowing, finance 

leases and other long-term liabilities and the minimum revenue provision or its successor 
under the new legislation.  Netted off against these expenses is interest earned on 
investments.  In order that comparisons may be made between authorities the Prudential 
Code states that figures should be taken directly from a council’s accounts and balance 
sheets. 

 
 
 

99



170204_CabRep_Capital Prog 

5. Estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream for the current and future 
years, and the actual figures for 2002-03 are: 

 
 2002-03  2003-04 2004-05  2005-06  2006-07 
 £000  £000 £000  £000  £000 
 Actual  Estimate Estimate  Estimate  Estimate 
Non-HRA   4.5%    4.3%   4.0%   4.1%    4.1% 
HRA 31.3%  25.8% 26.4% 29.0%  28.1% 

 
6. Estimates of the end of year Capital Financing Requirement for the authority for the 

current and future years and the actual Capital Financing Requirement at 31 March 2003 
are: 

 
As at 31 March  2003  2004  2005  2006  2007 
 £000  £000  £000  £000  £000 
 Actual  Estimate  Estimate  Estimate  Estimate 
Non-HRA 77,989  81,509  90,249    98,639  106,694 
HRA 27,878  21,650  22,050    22,450    22,850 

 
7. In day-to-day cash management no distinction can be made between revenue cash and 

capital cash, meaning that external borrowing can arise as a result of the combined 
financial transactions of the authority and not simply those that arise from capital 
expenditure.  In contrast, the Capital Financing Requirement measures the council’s 
underlying need to borrow purely for capital purposes.  In accordance with best practice, 
the council does not associate borrowing with particular items or types of expenditure.  
The Cabinet approves a treasury management strategy on an annual basis and has 
adopted the ‘CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services’.  

 
8. The Band D Council Tax that would result for the 2004-05 from the totality of the capital 

and revenue plans recommended in the Budget report is £1,041.  With respect to the HRA 
the average weekly rent that would result for 2004-05 is £77.42. 

 
9. Forward estimates for the Band D Council Tax for 2005-06 and 2006-07 are £1,074 and 

£1,105 respectively, and for the HRA the average weekly rent would be £79.51 and 
£81.65.  These forward estimates are not fixed and do not commit the council.  They are 
based on the Council’s existing commitments, current plans and the totality of the capital 
and revenue plans recommended in this budget report.  There are no known significant 
variations beyond this timeframe that would result from past events and decisions or the 
proposals in this budget. 

 
10. The estimate of the incremental impact of the capital investment decisions proposed in this 

report, over and above capital investment decisions that have previously been taken by 
the council are: 

 
  2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 
Band D Council Tax  £2.19 £10.07 £17.95 
     
Average weekly housing rents  £1.50 £1.52 £1.54 
 
 
 
 

100



170204_CabRep_Capital Prog 

 
 
Borrowing 
 
11. The Code includes the following as a key indicator of prudence: 
 

 “In order to ensure that over the medium term borrowing will only be for a capital 
purpose, the local authority should ensure that net external borrowing does not, 
except in the short term, exceed the total of the Capital Financing Requirement 
in the previous year plus the estimates of any additional Capital Financing 
Requirement for the current and next two financial years.” 

 
12. In respect of its external debt, it is proposed that Cabinet recommends to Council that it 

approve the following Authorised Limits for its total external debt gross of investments for 
the next three financial years.  These limits separately identify borrowing from other long-
term liabilities such as finance leases.  When approving these limits it is also 
recommended that authority be delegated to the Council’s Chief Finance (Section 151) 
Officer to effect movement between the separately agreed limits for borrowing and other 
long term liabilities, in accordance with option appraisal and best value for money for the 
authority, always providing that the total limit for the year is not exceeded. 

 
 Authorised Limit for External Debt 
  2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 
   £m £m £m £m 
 Borrowing 228 206 222 238 
 Other long term liabilities n/a     3     6     6 
 Total 228 209 228 244 
  
13. The limit shown for 2003-04 is that reported to Cabinet at its meeting on 18 February 2003 

approved under the previous system of capital controls. 
 
14. These authorised limits are consistent with the authority’s current commitments, existing 

plans and the proposals in the body of this report, for capital expenditure and financing.  
The Limits are based on the estimate of most likely, prudent but not worst case scenario, 
with in addition sufficient headroom to allow for operational management e.g. unusual 
cash movements.  Plans for capital expenditure, estimates of the Capital Financing 
requirement and estimates of cash flow requirements for all purposes have been taken 
into account. 

 
15. Cabinet is also asked to recommend to Council approval of the following Operational 

Boundary for external debt for the same time period.  The proposed Operational Boundary 
for external debt is based on the same estimates as the Authorised Limit, but excludes the 
additional headroom included to allow for example for unusual cash movements.  The 
Operational Boundary represents a key management tool for in year monitoring by the 
Chief Finance Officer.  As with the Authorised Limit figures for borrowing and other long 
term liabilities are separately identified.  When approving these limits it is also 
recommended that authority be delegated to the Council’s Chief Finance (Section 151) 
Officer to effect movement between the separately agreed limits for borrowing and other 
long term liabilities, in a similar to fashion to the Authorised limit.  Any such changes will 
be reported to Cabinet at the earliest opportunity following the change. 

 
 
 

101



170204_CabRep_Capital Prog 

 
 
 Operational Boundary for External Debt 
 
   2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 
   £m £m  £m      £m 
 Borrowing 205 179 195 211 
 Other long term liabilities n/a      3     6     6 
 Total 205 182 201 217 
  
 The limit shown for 2003-04 is that reported to Cabinet at its meeting on 

18 February 2003, excluding the allowance made for short term debt. 
 
16. The Council’s actual external debt at 31 March 2003 was £163.0m with additional long-

term liabilities of £0.1m. 
 
17. In making its recommendations to Council with regard to this report Cabinet is asked to 

note that the Authorised Limit determined for 2004-05 will be the statutory limit determined 
under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003. 

 

102



O:shared/jill/committees/CABINET March 04 BVPI 

HARROW COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Meeting: 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 
 

2 March 2004  

Subject: 
 

Improvement Progress Report and Best Value Performance Indicators - 
Quarterly Monitoring Report 
 

Key decision: 
 

No 

Responsible 
Chief Officer: 
 

Executive Director (Organisational Development) 

Relevant 
Portfolio Holder: 
 

Finance, Human Resources and Performance Management 

Status: 
 

Part I 

Ward: 
 

N/A 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix A – CPA/IDeA Improvement Plan – Progress Report 
Proforma 
Appendix B – Quarterly Performance Monitoring Statement 
 

 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 This report provides a progress report on the action taken to implement the Council’s 

Improvement Plan in response to the Improvement & Development Agency’s (IDeA) and 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) reviews of last year.  It also presents 
the quarterly monitoring report of the Best Value Performance Indicators for 2003-4.  

 
2. Recommendations (for decision by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee) 
 
2.1 That the Committee note the progress report proforma attached as appendix A. 
 
2.2 That a further report be made to the July Committee detailing progress over the year 

together with an amended Improvement Plan for the coming year. 
 
2.3 That the BVPI Monitoring report be noted. 
 
REASON: To assess progress against the CPA/IDeA Improvement Plan and to enable 

progress against the Council’s performance targets to be assessed and action 
taken where necessary to improve performance. 

 
 
3. Consultation with Ward Councillors 
 
 Not Applicable 
 

Agenda Item 9
Pages 103 to 142

103



O:shared/jill/committees/CABINET March 04 BVPI 

4. Policy Context (including Relevant Previous Decisions) 
 
4.1 The Improvement Plan is closely related to the decisions involved in setting up the New 

Harrow Project, as agreed by Cabinet in July 2002.  Cabinet at its meeting on 17th 
December 2002 agreed (Minute 35) the plan as a working draft and that progress be 
reported to Cabinet on a quarterly basis.  Cabinet on 18th March 2003 (Minute 215) 
agreed an updated version of the plan.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
considered the Improvement Plan on 10 July 2003, and considered quarterly progress 
against the Plan on 23 September and 25 November 2003. 

 
4.2 The council is required to report annually on a series of Best Value Performance 

Indicators that are determined by the Audit Commission.  Progress is reported annually 
through the council’s Best Value Performance Plan. 

4.3 Quarterly monitoring of the indicators enables the council to assess progress against the 
targets set and take corrective action when performance is not on track.  

5.  Relevance to Corporate Priorities 
 
5.1 This report is relevant to all of the vision and the strategic corporate priorities as agreed 

by Cabinet in May 2002. 
 
6. Background Information and options considered 
 
 Improvement Plan 
 
6.1 During 2002, the Council underwent two external assessments – the IDeA Peer Review 

and Comprehensive Performance Assessment.  Both reports reached similar 
conclusions, that Harrow had both strengths and weaknesses and that there was room 
for improvement, particularly in some areas of delivering services to customers.  CPA 
assessed the Council as ‘weak’ overall.  This has now been revised to ‘fair’. 

 
6.2 Attached as appendix A is a proforma which details the action taken to date against the 

nine priority areas contained within the Improvement Plan.  The proforma identifies the 
priority area, the Chief Officer and Designated Portfolio Holder responsible for that 
priority area, the task to be completed, the officer responsible for the task and, in the final 
column, progress to date and an additional column to earlier report progress against 
target dates. 

 
6.3 Significant action has been taken on all priority areas although further work is required to 

complete the following: 
 

•  Corporate Plan 
•  Recruitment to Senior Management Structure 
•  Performance Management Systems 
•  Review of Financial Regulations 
•  Community Strategy for Harrow  

 

104



O:shared/jill/committees/CABINET March 04 BVPI 

Best Value Performance Indicators 
 

6.4 The Council is required each year to report progress against the Best Value Performance 
Indicators and our local targets in its Best Value Performance Plan.  We must set that 
information in context by reporting their out-turn performance against the targets set for 
each indicator at the start of the year, and explain significant differences between targets 
and actual performance. 

 
6.5 The council has instituted quarterly monitoring  to enable progress to be established and 

where necessary corrective action taken. 
 
6.6 This report presents the quarterly monitor of Best Value Performance Indicators for the 

first nine months of the year. 
 
6.7 The detailed information is contained in appendix B which provides data for Quarter 3, 

2003/04 (September - December) and, where available separately, Quarters 1 (April - 
June) and 2 (July - September). 

 
The appendix provides information on the: - 
 
•  2002/3 out turn 
•  the council’s’ quartile position in London (NB this has been updated to reflect the 

2002/3 data now available) 
•  the target for 2003/4 
•  out turn performance for the quarter  
 
The symbols in the Target and Trend columns have the following meanings: 

 
Symbol In the Target Column In the Trend Column 
 Performance in the quarter has 

surpassed the target plus tolerance*
 

Performance in the quarter is better 
than that in the previous quarter 

 `Performance is on target or within 
tolerance* 
 

No change in performance from 
previous quarter/no clear trend 

 Performance is below target and 
tolerance* 
 

Performance is worse than in previous 
quarter. 
 
NB there is no arrow in the trend 
column – where there is no data in the 
previous quarter 

 
*’Tolerance’ has initially been set at ± 5% from target. 

 
6.8 Managers have been asked to provide an exception report where variance from target 

exceeds tolerance and these commentaries appear in the rightmost column of the 
spreadsheet.  In some cases the word “Exception” appears on its own: this is generated 
by a formula, which compares Q2 performance with target, and indicates that an 
exception report is due but has yet to be received. 

 
6.9 A considerable number of BV indicators are not (or not currently) capable of quarterly 

reporting.  For completeness, they have been included in appendix 3. 

105



O:shared/jill/committees/CABINET March 04 BVPI 

 
6.10 It is proposed that the next (Quarter 4) will be provided to Cabinet in May 2004 and to the 

next Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
7. Consultation 
 
7.1 Within the process for the IDeA review and the Corporate Assessment element of the 

CPA, a wide range of partner organisations were consulted by those carrying out the 
assessment.  For the reviews and inspections contributing to the core services, which 
were included in the CPA, consultation was a key part of Best Value Review and was 
incorporated by inspectors within their new agreed frameworks. 

 
8. Finance Observations 
 
8.1 None 
 
9. Legal Observations 
 
9.1 None 
 
10. Conclusion 
 
10.1 All services have set targets for improvement for 2003/04 to 2005/06 in the Best Value 

Performance Plan.  Quarterly reporting of performance on the Best Value Performance 
Indicators enables the Authority to monitor progress on achieving targets in a more 
effective way and will highlight potential problem areas in advance.  

 
11. Background Documents 
 
 Improvement and Development Agency Review (May 2002) 
 Comprehensive Performance Assessment (July 2002) 

Improvement Plan for the IDeA Review and the Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment 

 
12. Author 
 
 Jill Rothwell, Executive Director (Organisational Development) 
 Tel: 020 8424 1024 
 Email: jill.rothwell@harrow.gov.uk  
 

 

106



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
1 

16
/0

2/
04

 6
:0

4 
PM

 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
re

a 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r 

lo
ca

l c
iti

ze
ns

 

PO
/T

L 
BS

/M
D

/P
O

’D
 

An
dr

ew
 T

re
he

rn
 

 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

N
ew

 H
ar

ro
w

 P
ro

je
ct

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

Ar
ea

 D
el

iv
er

y 
M

od
el

 
an

d 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 e
xt

en
si

on
 to

 
ot

he
r a

re
as

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 p

ilo
t. 

 J
oi

nt
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 

Pr
im

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
Tr

us
t a

nd
 o

th
er

 
pa

rtn
er

s 
to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 

So
ut

h 
H

ar
ro

w
 P

ub
lic

 re
al

m
 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Pi

lo
t, 

la
un

ch
ed

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

02
, h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
by

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 

In
sp

ec
to

rs
, S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

nd
 th

e 
N

ew
 

H
ar

ro
w

 P
ro

je
ct

 P
ilo

t P
an

el
. 

Al
l d

ee
m

ed
 it

 to
 b

e 
a 

su
cc

es
s.

 
 

✔
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

ab
in

et
 o

n 
17

th
 J

ul
y 

ag
re

ed
 to

 th
e 

ph
as

ed
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 s

ta
rti

ng
 O

ct
ob

er
 

20
03

 a
nd

 e
nd

in
g 

M
ar

ch
 

20
06

. 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
N

H
P 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l A

re
a 

2 
“C

en
tra

l H
ar

ro
w

” w
as

 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 o
n 

1 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
3.

  T
he

 in
iti

al
 

de
ep

 c
le

an
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r. 

 

✔
 

       

107



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
2 

16
/0

2/
04

 6
:0

4 
PM

 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
A

re
a 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

Po
rt

fo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
ap

ita
l i

nv
es

tm
en

t p
ro

je
ct

 
of

 £
25

0k
 is

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
To

w
n 

C
en

tre
 to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t

he
 

st
re

et
 in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e.

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l A
re

a 
3 

is
 “t

he
 

Ke
nt

on
s”

.  
W

ill 
be

 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 o
n 

5 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

04
. 

 

✔
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l A
re

a 
1 

is
 

op
er

at
in

g 
w

el
l w

ith
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 g
oo

d 
st

an
da

rd
s 

of
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

an
d 

hi
gh

 le
ve

ls
 o

f 
cu

st
om

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

be
in

g 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d.
 

 

✔
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

ki
ng

 th
e 

po
lic

e 
is

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

ve
ry

 
w

el
l. 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
Th

e 
fo

rm
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ne

w
 

Ar
ea

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
an

d 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t h

as
 n

ow
 

be
gu

n.
  T

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 m

er
ge

d 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
ne

w
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t w
ill 

be
 m

ax
im

is
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

20
04

/0
5.

 
 

 

108



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
3 

16
/0

2/
04

 6
:0

4 
PM

 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
A

re
a 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

Po
rt

fo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
 

PO
 

BS
 

Ja
ve

d 
Kh

an
  

Pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

fo
r a

ll 
re

ce
nt

 e
xt

er
na

l i
ns

pe
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
on

 th
e 

pl
an

s 
is

 re
gu

la
rly

 re
po

rte
d 

to
 

M
em

be
rs

 

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
R

e:
  O

fs
te

d 
LE

A 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Al
l k

ey
 a

ct
io

ns
 h

av
e 

ei
th

er
 

be
en

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 o

r h
av

e 
be

en
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 th
at

 is
 

m
on

ito
re

d 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

te
d 

an
nu

al
ly

 a
nd

 re
po

rte
d 

to
 

M
em

be
rs

.  
 

 

✔
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 o

n 
th

e 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 w
as

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

at
 3

 
m

ee
tin

gs
 o

f t
he

 L
ife

lo
ng

 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
. T

he
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 w

as
 s

ig
ne

d 
of

f 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

re
po

rt 
to

 th
e 

C
ab

in
et

. 
 Th

e 
D

fE
S’

s 
SE

U
 a

dv
is

er
 

m
et

 re
gu

la
rly

 w
ith

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 
to

 c
he

ck
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

 H
e 

co
nf

irm
ed

, i
n 

w
rit

in
g,

 th
at

 
al

l a
ct

io
ns

 w
er

e 
be

in
g 

ad
dr

es
se

d.
 

  

                 
    

109



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
4 

16
/0

2/
04

 6
:0

4 
PM

 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
re

a 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
du

lt 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
A 

po
st

-in
sp

ec
tio

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 
th

e 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 &

 S
ki

lls
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 th
e 

pl
an

.  
It 

is
 

no
w

 b
ei

ng
 im

pl
em

en
te

d.
 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ho

 h
av

e 

 

 
PO

’D
 

 
Br

yn
n 

H
od

gs
on

 
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

U
rb

an
 L

iv
in

g 
is

 
un

de
rta

ki
ng

 a
 th

re
e 

st
ag

e 
Be

st
 V

al
ue

 
re

vi
ew

/in
sp

ec
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t. 

 S
ta

ge
 I-

 th
e 

So
ut

h 
H

ar
ro

w
 

Pr
oj

ec
t i

s 
th

e 
on

ly
 re

ce
nt

ly
 

in
sp

ec
te

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
 th

e 
Au

di
t C

om
m

is
si

on
 h

as
 

m
ad

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

an
d 

an
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 h

as
 

be
en

 p
ro

du
ce

d.
 

A 
St

ag
e 

II 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

w
ill 

ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 in

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
4 

an
d 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

ab
ou

t t
he

 
sc

op
e 

of
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

 a
re

 to
 

be
 h

el
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

in
sp

ec
to

rs
 

fro
m

 D
el

oi
tte

 a
nd

 T
ou

ch
e 

in
 O

ct
ob

er
. 

 

   

    

110



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
5 

16
/0

2/
04

 6
:0

4 
PM

 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
re

a 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
is

cu
ss

io
ns

 h
av

e 
ta

ke
n 

pl
ac

e 
an

d 
St

ag
e 

II 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

w
ill 

ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 

in
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4.
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

An
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

n 
 to

 
ad

dr
es

s 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 is
 b

ei
ng

 fi
na

lis
ed

. 

  

  
KB

 
 

M
ic

k 
W

rig
ht

 
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
H

ou
si

ng
 w

as
 a

w
ar

de
d 

Be
ac

on
 S

ta
tu

s 
fo

r T
ac

kl
in

g 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

in
 2

00
3/

4.
 

✔
 

 
 

 
 

 
 Th

e 
BV

R
 o

f Y
ou

r H
om

e 
Yo

ur
 N

ee
ds

 w
as

 re
po

rte
d 

to
 th

e 
BV

AP
 in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r. 

 
C

ab
in

et
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

th
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

in
 

O
ct

ob
er

. A
n 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
w

ill 
ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 in
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
03

 a
nd

 th
e 

ou
tc

om
e 

w
ill 

be
 re

po
rte

d 
to

 B
VA

P 
af

te
r 

th
at

. C
ab

in
et

 w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 

ap
pr

ov
e 

an
 a

m
en

de
d 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n.

  (
N

B 
O

ut
co

m
e 

of
 H

ou
si

ng
 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
2 

st
ar

s 
w

ith
 

pr
om

is
in

g 
pr

os
pe

ct
s 

fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t).

 

   

    

111



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
6 

16
/0

2/
04

 6
:0

4 
PM

 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
re

a 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
 

 
 

 
 

Fo
llo

w
in

g 
 a

pp
ro

va
l t

o 
se

t 
up

 a
n 

Ar
m

s 
Le

ng
th

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t O
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
a 

fu
rth

er
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

of
 

La
nd

lo
rd

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
fu

nc
tio

ns
 is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 
ar

ou
nd

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

4.
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 Th

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
su

bm
itt

in
g 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
M

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 fo

r g
ai

ni
ng

 
M

em
be

r a
pp

ro
va

l t
o 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 w

ill 
de

pe
nd

 
on

 w
he

th
er

 o
r n

ot
 th

e 
fu

nc
tio

n 
is

 d
el

eg
at

ed
 to

 th
e 

AL
M

O
 th

ro
ug

h 
to

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
gr

ee
m

en
t 

bu
t a

 re
vi

se
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Bu

lle
tin

, 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 P
or

tfo
lio

 H
ol

de
r 

w
ill 

co
nt

ai
n 

re
gu

la
r r

ep
or

ts
 

on
 k

ey
 P

ls
 s

uc
h 

as
 re

nt
 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
an

d 
vo

id
 

pr
op

er
tie

s.
 

 

 ✗
  

D
at

e 
fo

r 
AL

M
O

 
‘G

oi
ng

 L
iv

e’
 

ha
s 

be
en

 
de

fe
rre

d 
to

 
en

ab
le

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
ti

on
. 

      

112



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
7 

16
/0

2/
04

 6
:0

4 
PM

 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
A

re
a 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

Po
rt

fo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
 

 
 

Pa
ul

 C
la

rk
 

 
So

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Vi

ct
or

ia
 C

lim
bi

e 
Au

di
t, 

th
e 

SS
I a

na
ly

si
s 

of
 o

ur
 re

tu
rn

 
in

 A
pr

il 
20

03
, i

s 
th

at
 w

e 
ar

e 
se

rv
in

g 
m

os
t c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
el

l w
ith

 p
ro

m
is

in
g 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 to
 im

pr
ov

e.
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
Th

e 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 th
e 

So
ci

al
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 In
sp

ec
to

ra
te

 
An

nu
al

 R
ep

or
t w

as
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 b

y 
C

ab
in

et
 o

n 
11

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

3.
  T

hi
s 

re
po

rts
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
& 

Fa
m

ilie
s.

  S
om

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 w

er
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 

ad
ul

ts
. 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 w

ith
in

  
Pe

op
le

 F
irs

t. 

 

 
 

 
Ji

ll 
R

ot
hw

el
l 

Im
pl

em
en

t a
 p

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r 
tra

ck
in

g 
pr

og
re

ss
 o

n 
th

e 
Pl

an
 

w
hi

ch
 is

 re
gu

la
rly

 re
po

rte
d.

 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rts

 
in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
3 

an
d 

C
ab

in
et

 a
nd

  O
ve

rv
ie

w
 &

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
3.

  

✔
 

 
 

 
 

 
O

ut
co

m
es

 o
f e

xt
er

na
l 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 re

po
rte

d 
to

 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

cr
ut

in
y.

 

 

    

113



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
8 

16
/0

2/
04

 6
:0

4 
PM

 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
re

a 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 ro

le
 

an
d 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
 

ag
en

da
 

JM
/J

R
 

 
Ji

ll 
R

ot
hw

el
l 

Se
t c

le
ar

 o
ve

ra
rc

hi
ng

 v
is

io
n 

an
d 

va
lu

es
, w

ith
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

ne
ed

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
so

ur
ci

ng
. 

 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 C
or

po
ra

te
 P

la
n 

is
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
.  

A 
dr

af
t i

s 
be

in
g 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

by
 H

SP
 B

oa
rd

 o
n 

26
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. 

✗
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

Pl
an

 n
ow

 to
 

be
 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

in
 M

ar
ch

  
20

04
. 

 
 

 
 

 
W

ill 
th

en
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t o
f a

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
ex

er
ci

se
.  

It 
w

ill 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

by
 

C
ab

in
et

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
4.

 
 

 

 
 

 
M

ag
gi

e 
R

ee
s 

 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

sy
st

em
 o

f s
tru

ct
ur

ed
 

pr
oj

ec
t m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
ev

al
ua

tio
n,

 e
nc

om
pa

ss
in

g 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
ss

es
sm

en
t/ 

co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 
w

ith
 in

te
gr

al
 a

tte
nt

io
n 

to
 

re
so

ur
ci

ng
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. 

 

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Sc

he
m

e 
de

vi
se

d 
an

d 
la

un
ch

ed
 2

9 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3.

  I
t 

en
co

m
pa

ss
es

 R
is

k 
As

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
.  

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
to

 s
up

po
rt 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
in

 p
la

ce
.  

14
0 

de
le

ga
te

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

so
m

e 
fo

rm
al

 tr
ai

ni
ng

.  
A 

co
rp

or
at

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t t
ra

ck
in

g 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 Is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

ith
 

Fu
jit

su
 . 

 

 

  

114



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
9 

16
/0

2/
04

 6
:0

4 
PM

 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
re

a 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
 

 
 

Ji
ll 

R
ot

hw
el

l /
 

Pa
ul

 O
sb

ur
n 

/ 
N

ic
k 

Be
ll 

/ T
on

y 
Le

ar
 

 

Ap
po

in
t n

ew
 s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t t
ea

m
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
 

th
e 

di
re

ct
or

at
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
 

 

Al
l f

ou
r E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
ar

e 
no

w
 in

 p
os

ts
.  

9 
of

 th
e 

13
 D

ire
ct

or
 p

os
ts

 a
re

 fi
lle

d,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f 
Fi

na
nc

e 
& 

Bu
si

ne
ss

 
St

ra
te

gy
 (1

51
 O

ffi
ce

r) 
w

ho
 

ta
ke

s 
up

 a
pp

oi
nt

m
en

t o
n 

1.
3.

04
.  

✗
  

Ta
rg

et
 d

at
es

 
fo

r 
ap

po
in

tm
en

t
s 

in
 p

os
t 

de
la

ye
d 

du
e 

to
 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t 

di
ffi

cu
lti

es
. 

 
 

 
 

 
R

em
ai

ni
ng

 2
 p

os
ts

 a
re

 in
 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 b

ei
ng

 fi
lle

d.
 

2 
Ar

ea
 D

ire
ct

or
 p

os
ts

 ro
le

s 
ar

e 
un

de
r f

ur
th

er
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n.
 

 

 
 

 
Jo

n 
Tu

rn
er

 
Pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
an

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l 

ch
an

ge
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t w
ith

 
U

N
IS

O
N

 a
nd

 th
e 

te
ac

he
r t

ra
de

 
un

io
ns

. 

R
ep

or
t t

o 
Em

pl
oy

ee
’s

 
C

on
su

lta
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 8
  

Ju
ly

 2
00

3 
ag

re
ed

 
do

cu
m

en
t –

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 

fu
rth

er
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 o

n 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. 

 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

JM
/J

R
/N

B 
SD

 
Ji

ll 
R

ot
hw

el
l 

 
En

su
re

 th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 v
is

io
n 

an
d 

va
lu

es
 a

re
 fu

lly
 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

, a
nd

 h
el

p 
de

te
rm

in
e,

 th
e 

co
nt

en
t o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s.

 

Vi
si

on
 is

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 
w

ith
in

 C
or

po
ra

te
 P

la
n 

an
d 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

la
n 

w
ill 

sh
ap

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s.

 

✗
 

Ta
rg

et
 d

at
es

 
m

is
se

d 
du

e 
to

 d
el

ay
 in

 
fin

al
is

in
g 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

Pl
an

. 

115



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
10

 
16

/0
2/

04
 6

:0
4 

PM
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
re

a 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
 

 
 

Ji
ll 

R
ot

hw
el

l 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Sy
st

em
 is

 b
ei

ng
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
  W

ill 
ut

ilis
e 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 y
ea

r’s
 

BV
PP

 a
nd

 B
VP

I 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e.

 
  

✗
  

Ta
rg

et
 d

at
e 

of
 

Se
pt

em
be

r  
20

03
 n

ot
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

  
 

 
 

 

D
ev

is
e 

a 
sy

st
em

 o
f c

or
po

ra
te

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

(b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 in
 th

e 
Be

st
 V

al
ue

 P
la

n)
; e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

th
is

 is
 b

ui
lt 

in
to

 a
ll 

se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

s,
 

it 
is

 c
as

ca
de

d 
in

to
 u

ni
ts

’ 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 a
nd

 
in

di
vi

du
al

 o
ffi

ce
rs

’ 
ac

co
un

ta
bi

lit
ie

s,
 a

nd
 th

at
 it

 
pr

ov
id

es
 d

at
a 

fo
r 

M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 to
 m

ak
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 
th

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s.
 

Ag
yl

is
is

 is
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
on

 a
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

ba
si

s 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 C

ou
nc

il-
w

id
e 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
. 

 

 
 

 
N

ic
k 

Be
ll 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
 

di
re

ct
or

at
e 

to
 re

bu
ild

 b
us

in
es

s 
pr

oc
es

se
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
fin

an
ci

ng
 

in
 2

00
2-

04
 a

nd
 in

 fu
tu

re
 

bu
dg

et
s.

 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 &

 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 S

tra
te

gy
 

ad
ve

rti
se

d 
ex

te
rn

al
ly

 –
 

cl
os

in
g 

da
te

 9
 J

ul
y.

 
H

ow
ev

er
 p

os
t w

as
 n

ot
 

fil
le

d.
  P

os
t n

ow
 fi

lle
d 

an
d 

ca
nd

id
at

e 
ta

ke
s 

up
 

ap
po

in
tm

en
t o

n 
1 

M
ar

ch
 

20
04

.  
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f B
us

in
es

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
  f

ille
d 

by
 in

te
rn

al
 

rin
gf

en
ce

. 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
w

en
t ‘

liv
e’

 1
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

3.
 

 

 
 

 
C

ar
ol

 C
ut

le
r 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

IC
T 

St
ra

te
gy

 b
ef

or
e 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g 

w
he

th
er

 to
 e

nt
er

 in
to

 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 a
n 

ex
te

rn
al

 
pr

ov
id

er
 to

  d
riv

e 
fo

rw
ar

d 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

 p
ro

ce
ss

. 

C
ab

in
et

 a
gr

ee
d 

IC
T 

St
ra

te
gy

 1
4 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

3.
   

C
ab

in
et

 1
2 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

 
ag

re
ed

 c
re

at
io

n 
of

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
. 

✔
 

116



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
11

 
16

/0
2/

04
 6

:0
4 

PM
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
re

a 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
 

 
 

 
N

ic
k 

Be
ll 

 
C

om
m

en
ce

 n
ex

t p
ha

se
 o

f 
Im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
El

ec
tro

ni
c 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t (

IE
G

) A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
So

ut
h 

H
ar

ro
w

 P
or

ta
l j

oi
nt

ly
 w

ith
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l S

tra
te

gi
c 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
. 

 

LG
O

L 
fu

nd
in

g 
se

rv
ed

 to
 

de
liv

er
 k

ey
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f e
-

go
ve

rn
m

en
t, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
w

eb
 

si
te

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
 P

IP
 fo

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rte

d 
to

 H
SP

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 

✔
 

 
 

 
N

ic
k 

Be
ll 

Ag
re

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r a

n 
IC

T 
in

ve
st

m
en

t s
tra

te
gy

 in
 th

e 
20

03
/0

4 
bu

dg
et

 to
 m

ee
t 

pr
io

rit
ie

s,
 w

ith
 re

du
ct

io
ns

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 o

ng
oi

ng
 c

os
ts

. 

In
ve

st
m

en
t s

tra
te

gy
 

ag
re

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 M
TB

S 
fo

r M
ar

ch
 2

00
4 

– 
M

ay
 

20
06

.  
Fu

nd
in

g 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

ov
er

 3
 y

ea
rs

 o
f M

TB
S.

  
IC

T 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

du
rin

g 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
3.

 
 

✔
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 
St

ra
te

gy
 

N
B 

SD
 

N
ic

k 
Be

ll 
Ap

po
in

t a
 p

er
m

an
en

t C
hi

ef
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l O
ffi

ce
r. 

  

Po
st

 o
f D

ire
ct

or
 o

f F
in

an
ce

 
& 

Bu
si

ne
ss

 S
tra

te
gy

 h
as

 
be

en
 e

xt
er

na
lly

 a
dv

er
tis

ed
.  

Po
st

 n
ow

 fi
lle

d.
 

✔
 

In
iti

al
 ta

rg
et

 
of

 J
ul

y 
20

03
 

no
t a

ch
ie

ve
d 

du
e 

to
 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t 

di
ffi

cu
lti

es
 

 
       

117



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
12

 
16

/0
2/

04
 6

:0
4 

PM
 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
A

re
a 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

Po
rt

fo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
 

 
 

 
In

st
itu

te
 a

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 

bu
dg

et
-a

w
ar

en
es

s 
tra

in
in

g 
am

on
gs

t a
ll 

of
fic

er
s 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

tra
in

in
g,

 im
pr

ov
ed

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 b

ud
ge

ta
ry

 
ac

co
un

ta
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
le

ve
ls

 o
f 

de
le

ga
te

d 
au

th
or

ity
. 

12
 b

as
ic

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
m

an
ag

em
en

t w
or

ks
ho

ps
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
 M

ay
/J

un
e 

20
03

 to
 ra

is
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 
bu

dg
et

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 re

gu
la

tio
ns

.  
Al

l 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts

 h
av

e 
w

rit
te

n 
sc

he
m

es
 o

f d
el

eg
at

io
n 

al
th

ou
gh

 th
es

e 
w

ill 
ne

ed
 to

 
be

 re
vi

ew
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

in
g 

of
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
in

 th
e 

lig
ht

 o
f a

ny
 

re
vi

se
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

. 
Lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
to

 b
e 

ag
re

ed
 

by
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

3 
al

th
ou

gh
 th

is
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

re
so

ur
ce

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
ue

 
to

 th
e 

la
ck

 o
f c

ap
ac

ity
 in

 
co

rp
or

at
e 

an
d 

de
pa

rtm
en

ta
l f

in
an

ce
 

te
am

s.
  F

in
an

ci
al

 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 re

vi
ew

 s
ta

rte
d 

Ap
ril

 2
00

3 
–c

ur
re

nt
ly

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
 w

ith
 a

 v
ie

w
 to

 b
ei

ng
 

op
er

at
io

na
l f

or
 2

00
4-

05
.  

W
or

k 
on

 a
 b

ud
ge

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t h
an

db
oo

k 
st

ill 
at

 a
 v

er
y 

ea
rly

 s
ta

ge
 

an
d 

ag
ai

n 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

re
so

ur
ce

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
ue

 

✔
             ✗
 

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
du

e 
to

 la
ck

 
of

 re
so

ur
ce

. 

118



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
13

 
16

/0
2/

04
 6

:0
4 

PM
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
re

a 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
to

 th
e 

la
ck

 o
f c

ap
ac

ity
 in

 
co

rp
or

at
e 

an
d 

de
pa

rtm
en

ta
l f

in
an

ce
 

te
am

s.
 

 
 

 
N

ic
k 

Be
ll 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
re

al
is

tic
 a

nd
 ro

bu
st

 
ba

se
 b

ud
ge

ts
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

 w
ith

 n
ew

 a
gr

ee
d 

ba
se

 
bu

dg
et

s 
or

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ol
ic

y 
w

he
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 a

nd
 a

n 
in

-
de

pt
h 

re
vi

ew
 o

f S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

ba
se

 b
ud

ge
ts

. 
 

Ke
y 

hi
gh

 ri
sk

 b
as

e 
bu

dg
et

s 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 m

ad
e 

re
al

is
tic

 d
ur

in
g 

20
03

/0
4 

bu
dg

et
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 
M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 B
ud

ge
t 

St
ra

te
gy

 (M
TB

S)
 w

ith
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l £

1.
7 

m
illi

on
 

ad
de

d 
to

 th
e 

bu
dg

et
.  

Fu
rth

er
 w

or
k 

on
 o

th
er

 b
as

e 
bu

dg
et

s 
w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
 

du
rin

g 
20

03
-0

4 
in

 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 2
00

4-
05

 b
ud

ge
t. 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
Bu

dg
et

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 
ad

di
tio

na
l r

es
ou

rc
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d.
 

 

 
 

 
N

ic
k 

Be
ll 

C
om

pl
et

e 
a 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 

m
ed

iu
m

-te
rm

 p
la

nn
in

g.
 

An
 in

iti
al

 M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 

Bu
dg

et
 S

tra
te

gy
 w

as
 

ag
re

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 s
et

tin
g 

th
e 

20
03

-0
4 

bu
dg

et
. T

he
 

st
ra

te
gy

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 re

fin
ed

 
du

rin
g 

20
03

 in
 th

e 
bu

ild
 u

p 
to

 th
e 

20
04

-0
5 

bu
dg

et
 to

 
ta

ke
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
an

d 
th

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
co

st
 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

Ta
x.

 

 

119



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
14

 
16

/0
2/

04
 6

:0
4 

PM
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
re

a 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
 

 
 

 
N

ic
k 

Be
ll/

Pe
rry

 
Sc

ot
t 

C
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
cr

os
s-

cu
tti

ng
 B

es
t 

Va
lu

e 
re

vi
ew

 o
f p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

t i
ts

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
 a

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
te

am
 a

nd
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t s

tra
te

gy
 is

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

 

Th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t T

ea
m

 w
as

 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
in

 J
an

 2
00

3,
 

w
ith

 th
e 

fin
al

 m
em

be
r o

f 
th

e 
te

am
 b

ei
ng

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 

Ju
ly

 2
00

3.
 

 Th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
Pr

oc
ur

em
en

t B
es

t V
al

ue
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

an
d 

fu
rth

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

o 
th

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 la

un
ch

ed
 in

 O
ct

 
03

.  
 

✔
 

 
 

 
 

 
In

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 

th
e 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t t

ea
m

 
la

un
ch

ed
 th

e 
re

vi
se

d 
C

on
tra

ct
 P

ro
ce

du
re

 R
ul

es
 

in
 O

ct
 0

3,
 th

es
e 

w
ill 

co
ve

r 
al

l a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t. 

 
In

 o
rd

er
 to

 a
ss

is
t O

ffi
ce

s 
th

ey
 w

ill 
al

so
 b

e 
su

pp
lie

d 
w

ith
 a

n 
e-

to
ol

ki
t t

o 
fa

ci
lit

at
e 

ea
se

 o
f c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

th
e 

ru
le

s.
 

 

 

    

120



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
15

 
16

/0
2/

04
 6

:0
4 

PM
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
re

a 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
R

ol
e 

of
 E

le
ct

ed
 

M
em

be
rs

 
JM

 
AF

 
Jo

yc
e 

M
ar

kh
am

 
St

re
ng

th
en

 p
ol

iti
ca

l l
ea

de
rs

hi
p,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
al

ig
ni

ng
 p

or
tfo

lio
 

ho
ld

in
g 

w
ith

 n
ew

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 e

st
ab

lis
hi

ng
 a

n 
al

l 
pa

rty
 C

ab
in

et
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
of

 
Be

st
 V

al
ue

 A
dv

is
or

y 
Pa

ne
l i

n 
pl

ac
e 

an
d 

en
su

rin
g 

C
ab

in
et

 
ov

er
vi

ew
 o

f i
nt

er
ag

en
cy

 w
or

ki
ng

 
on

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g.
 

 

An
 in

iti
al

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
w

ith
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 
of

 B
irm

in
gh

am
 o

n 
ta

ilo
re

d 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fo

r m
em

be
rs

 
on

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
w

as
 s

ch
ed

ul
ed

 fo
r l

at
e 

20
03

.  
 P

ol
iti

ca
l g

ro
up

 
m

en
to

rin
g 

un
de

r 
di

sc
us

si
on

 

 

 
 

 
N

ic
k 

Be
ll 

Id
en

tif
y 

cl
ea

r a
nd

 fo
cu

ss
ed

 
po

lic
y 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
no

n-
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 
bu

dg
et

 p
ro

ce
ss

. 

W
or

k 
on

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

la
n,

 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 th
e 

in
iti

al
 

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 S

tra
te

gy
, 

an
d 

de
si

gn
in

g 
a 

bu
dg

et
 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 2

00
4-

05
 th

at
 

lin
ks

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 
pr

od
uc

ed
 in

 A
ug

us
t 2

00
3.

 

✔
 

 
 

 
 

 
Th

e 
re

su
lti

ng
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

po
si

tio
n 

st
at

em
en

ts
 fo

rm
ed

 
a 

ke
y 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
bu

dg
et

 
pr

oc
es

s 
fo

r 2
00

4/
5.

 

 

 
 

 
 Ji

ll 
R

ot
hw

el
l 

 Id
en

tif
y 

bu
dg

et
 a

nd
 le

ad
 

of
fic

er
(s

) f
or

 M
em

be
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

o 
dr

iv
e 

ch
an

ge
, 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 fo

cu
ss

in
g 

on
 

M
em

be
rs

’ s
tra

te
gi

c 
ro

le
s 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
in

 a
 L

oc
al

 

 Bu
dg

et
 fo

r M
em

be
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 a
nd

 
lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 (O
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t).
  

M
em

be
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 in
 

 ✔
    

121



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
16

 
16

/0
2/

04
 6

:0
4 

PM
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
re

a 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
U

ni
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

on
 p

ol
iti

ca
l 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
. 

 

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 M
em

be
r 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t W
or

ki
ng

 
G

ro
up

 p
ub

lis
he

d 
on

 a
 

re
gu

la
r b

as
is

. 
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
ha

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f 
Bi

rm
in

gh
am

 is
 m

or
e 

ab
le

 
th

an
 L

G
IU

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

ta
ilo

re
d 

pr
og

ra
m

m
ed

 
tra

in
in

g 
fo

r m
em

be
rs

.  
M

em
be

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

 o
n 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 le

ad
er

sh
ip

 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 a

fte
r C

PA
 a

re
 

pl
an

ne
d 

fo
r A

ut
um

n 
20

03
. 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 w
ill 

no
w

 ta
ke

 
pl

ac
e 

in
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
 

    
Ta

rg
et

s 
da

te
s 

m
is

se
d 

as
 

re
su

lt 
of

 
ta

ilo
rin

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 

to
 m

ee
t 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ne
ed

s 

R
en

ew
in

g 
lo

ca
l 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p(

s)
 

N
B 

 
N

S 
Bi

nd
u 

Ar
jo

on
-

M
at

th
ew

s 
D

ev
el

op
 th

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

in
to

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l S
tra

te
gi

c 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 fo
r H

ar
ro

w
 

 

H
ar

ro
w

 S
tra

te
gy

 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 (H
SP

) 
la

un
ch

ed
 o

n 
20

 M
ay

 2
00

3 
 

 ✔
 

 
JR

 
N

S 
Bi

nd
u 

Ar
jo

on
-

M
at

th
ew

s 
D

ev
el

op
, c

on
su

lt 
an

d 
pu

bl
is

h 
th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

n.
 

 

D
ra

ft 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tra

te
gy

 
Pl

an
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
by

 
C

ab
in

et
 fo

r c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

  p
ar

tn
er

s,
 re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 in
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

3.
   

  

  

122



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
17

 
16

/0
2/

04
 6

:0
4 

PM
 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
A

re
a 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

Po
rt

fo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
 

 
 

 
 

In
iti

al
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
ph

as
e 

no
w

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
ou

tc
om

es
 to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

by
 H

SP
 B

oa
rd

 o
n 

26
 

Ja
nu

ar
y.

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

R
eb

ui
ld

 th
e 

D
ru

gs
 A

ct
io

n 
Te

am
 

an
d 

th
e 

C
rim

e 
& 

D
is

or
de

r 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

Pa
ne

l t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

fo
cu

s 
on

 c
rim

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

Sa
fe

r H
ar

ro
w

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

G
ro

up
  m

et
 m

ee
t f

or
 th

e 
fir

st
 ti

m
e 

in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r  
20

03
 w

ith
 a

gr
ee

d 
te

rm
s 

of
 

re
fe

re
nc

e.
  I

t w
ill 

re
po

rt 
to

 
th

e 
H

SP
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

an
d 

le
ad

 o
n 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 th

e 
m

er
ge

d 
D

AT
/C

D
R

P 
 

✔
 

C
us

to
m

er
 

fo
cu

ss
ed

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 

N
B/

JR
 

N
S/

KB
 

Ji
ll 

R
ot

hw
el

l 
Im

pl
em

en
t S

er
vi

ce
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

fro
m

 th
e 

Be
st

 V
al

ue
 F

irs
t 

C
on

ta
ct

 re
vi

ew
.  

O
bt

ai
n 

ag
re

em
en

t o
n 

th
e 

Fu
nd

am
en

ta
l 

St
ep

 C
ha

ng
e 

op
tio

ns
 in

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 b

eg
in

 p
la

nn
in

g 
th

e 
w

ay
 fo

rw
ar

d.
 

M
os

t S
er

vi
ce

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 n

ow
 

Im
pl

em
en

te
d.

  S
ig

na
ge

 is
 

be
in

g 
up

da
te

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ne
w

 c
or

po
ra

te
 lo

go
 

de
ci

si
on

 a
t S

ep
te

m
be

r 
C

ab
in

et
.  

C
on

su
lta

nt
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
en

ga
ge

d 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

ac
tio

ns
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
f t

he
 S

te
p 

C
ha

ng
e 

op
tio

ns
.  

D
ra

ft 
re

po
rt 

to
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
04

. 

 

  

123



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
18

 
16

/0
2/

04
 6

:0
4 

PM
 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
A

re
a 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

Po
rt

fo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
 

 
 

Bi
nd

u 
Ar

jo
on

-
M

at
th

ew
s 

Id
en

tif
y 

w
ha

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 d
oe

s 
to

 e
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

, r
ev

ie
w

 s
tre

ng
th

s 
an

d 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s,
 a

gr
ee

 th
e 

el
em

en
ts

 o
f a

 g
oo

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t s
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 
de

ci
de

 u
po

n 
w

hi
ch

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 to

 
ce

as
e,

 w
hi

ch
 to

 d
o 

di
ffe

re
nt

ly
 

an
d 

w
hi

ch
 to

 in
tro

du
ce

. 
 

4 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 

se
ct

or
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

el
ec

te
d 

to
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 th

e 
H

SP
.  

O
ne

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

si
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e.
  A

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

on
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tra

te
gy

, a
 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
se

ct
or

 fo
ru

m
 is

 
be

in
g 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

.  
Al

on
gs

id
e 

th
e 

G
ra

nt
s 

R
ev

ie
w

 b
ei

ng
 d

on
e 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il,

 a
 re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ill 
be

 s
co

pe
d 

in
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

3.
 

 

 

In
te

rn
al

 &
 

ex
te

rn
al

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 

JM
 

AF
 

Pe
te

r B
ro

w
n 

C
om

pl
et

e 
a 

ne
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

St
ra

te
gy

, t
ak

in
g 

ac
co

un
t o

f t
he

 N
ew

 H
ar

ro
w

 
Pr

oj
ec

t. 
 

N
ew

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 C

ab
in

et
 

in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

3.
  

✔
 

 
 

 
 

O
rg

an
is

e 
m

ed
ia

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fo

r M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 
se

ni
or

 o
ffi

ce
rs

. 
 

M
ed

ia
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 s

es
si

on
 fo

r 
m

em
be

rs
 a

rra
ng

ed
 in

 
Ju

ne
 –

  f
ur

th
er

 s
es

si
on

 to
 

ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 o

n 
10

th
 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

4.
  S

en
io

r 
of

fic
er

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

be
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

ed
. 

 

 

 

124



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
19

 
16

/0
2/

04
 6

:0
4 

PM
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
re

a 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
 

 
 

  
Se

e 
Be

st
 V

al
ue

 F
irs

t C
on

ta
ct

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ex
pa

nd
 in

tra
ne

t, 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 fo
r 

in
te

rn
al

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 
se

rv
ic

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 

Ad
di

tio
na

l s
er

vi
ce

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
in

te
rn

al
 

fe
at

ur
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 c

on
tin

ui
ng

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 

In
tra

ne
t r

e-
la

un
ch

ed
 o

n 
1 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

3.
 

   

 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

St
ra

te
gy

 

JR
 

SD
 

M
ag

gi
e 

R
ee

s/
 

Jo
n 

Tu
rn

er
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 b
i-a

nn
ua

l s
ta

ff 
at

tit
ud

e 
su

rv
ey

. 
W

or
kp

la
ce

 s
ur

ve
y 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
W

or
k 

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

 fo
rm

at
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill 

en
ab

le
 b

en
ch

m
ar

ki
ng

 
ag

ai
ns

t o
th

er
 L

on
do

n 
Bo

ro
ug

hs
. A

 p
ro

je
ct

 
ou

tli
ne

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
su

rv
ey

 
by

 D
ec

 2
00

3.
 

Su
rv

ey
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 
dr

af
t r

ep
or

t o
f o

ut
co

m
es

  
re

ce
iv

ed
. 

 

✔
 

    

125



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
20

 
16

/0
2/

04
 6

:0
4 

PM
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
re

a 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
 

 
 

Jo
n 

Tu
rn

er
 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 

ad
dr

es
s 

si
ck

ne
ss

 a
bs

en
ce

. 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f a
bs

en
ce

 
re

su
lte

d 
in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

pe
r 

em
pl

oy
ee

 lo
st

 d
ue

 to
 

si
ck

ne
ss

 fa
llin

g 
fro

m
 1

0.
65

 
to

 9
.9

8 
in

 2
00

2-
03

 (B
VP

I 
12

). 
  

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
Th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

is
 o

ng
oi

ng
 a

nd
 

M
ar

sh
 C

on
su

lta
nt

s 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 e
ng

ag
ed

 to
 

un
de

rta
ke

 a
n 

au
di

t a
nd

 
re

vi
ew

 o
f c

ur
re

nt
 C

ou
nc

il 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

ac
tic

es
.  

A 
‘d

es
k 

to
p’

 re
vi

ew
 o

f 
re

le
va

nt
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 w

as
 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
in

 M
ar

ch
, 

fo
llo

w
ed

 in
 A

pr
il 

by
 

m
ee

tin
gs

 w
ith

 k
ey

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
tra

de
 u

ni
on

s 
an

d 
O

cc
up

at
io

na
l H

ea
lth

 
Se

rv
ic

e.
  T

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ga

in
ed

 fr
om

 th
es

e 
in

te
rv

ie
w

s 
fo

rm
ed

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
fo

r a
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 fo
cu

s 
gr

ou
ps

 h
el

d 
in

 J
un

e 
in

vo
lv

in
g 

m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
st

af
f f

ro
m

 a
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

.  
M

ar
sh

 re
po

rte
d 

ba
ck

 w
ith

 

 

126



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
21

 
16

/0
2/

04
 6

:0
4 

PM
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
re

a 
C

hi
ef

 O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
Po

rt
fo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
th

ei
r f

in
di

ng
s 

in
 O

ct
ob

er
 

20
03

 a
nd

 a
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 to

 
en

su
re

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

gr
ee

d.
 

 
 

 
 

M
ag

gi
e 

R
ee

s 
R

ev
ie

w
 c

ur
re

nt
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

An
al

ys
is

 o
f t

he
 re

su
lts

 
fro

m
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
ce

nt
re

s 
us

in
g 

th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 

co
m

pe
te

nc
ie

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 k

ey
 a

re
as

 
fo

r i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d.

  A
 re

vi
ew

 
of

 th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 C

er
tif

ic
at

e 
in

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ha
s 

al
so

 b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 
an

d 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r c

ha
ng

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

  A
 D

M
S 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
ill 

ru
n 

fo
r t

he
 

fir
st

 ti
m

e 
in

 2
00

4/
5.

  A
n 

ou
tli

ne
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

fo
r 

re
vi

se
d 

co
m

pe
te

nc
ie

s 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
is

 u
nd

er
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 w

ill 
be

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
fro

m
 F

eb
 

20
04

 

 

      

127



A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

 - 
C

PA
 ID

eA
 –

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PL

A
N

 –
 P

R
O

G
R

ES
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 2
00

3 
 

O
:s

ha
re

d/
Ji

ll/
C

PA
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 S

ch
ed

ul
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

3 
22

 
16

/0
2/

04
 6

:0
4 

PM
 

 
Pr

io
rit

y 
A

re
a 

C
hi

ef
 O

ffi
ce

r 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

Po
rt

fo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r 

O
ffi

ce
r 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

Ta
sk

 

Ta
sk

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

 D
at

e 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

A
ga

in
st

 
Ta

rg
et

 
D

at
es

 
 

 
 

Jo
n 

Tu
rn

er
 

D
ev

el
op

 H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
St

ra
te

gy
 in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

vi
si

on
 

an
d 

va
lu

es
 (K

ey
 P

rio
rit

y 
2)

 
an

d 
th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 b
rin

g 
ab

ou
t 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
na

l c
ha

ng
e 

as
 p

ar
t o

f 
th

e 
N

ew
 H

ar
ro

w
 P

ro
je

ct
. 

A 
Pr

oj
ec

t O
ut

lin
e 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 a

 H
R

 S
tra

te
gy

 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

gr
ee

d.
  I

n 
or

de
r 

to
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

m
ea

ni
ng

fu
l 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n,

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 

da
te

 fo
r c

om
pl

et
io

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

vi
se

d.
  

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
or

ks
ho

ps
 

fo
r k

ey
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 to
ok

  p
la

ce
 

on
 1

8 
Ju

ly
. 

   O
rig

in
al

 
ta

rg
et

 o
f 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

03
 n

ot
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

.  
R

ev
is

ed
 

ta
rg

et
 M

ar
ch

 
20

04
 a

gr
ee

d 
in

 v
ie

w
 o

f 
re

so
ur

ce
 

lim
ita

tio
ns

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
ra

ft 
st

ra
te

gy
 w

ill 
be

 
pr

od
uc

ed
 b

y 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

04
 

an
d 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
by

 
C

ab
in

et
 in

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
4 

 

 K
ey

: 
 ✔

 
 - 

 Ta
sk

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
by

 ta
rg

et
 d

at
e 

    
   

   
  

- 
Ta

sk
 u

nd
er

w
ay

 a
nd

 fu
rth

er
 w

or
k 

re
qu

ire
d 

  ✗
 

-  
   

 T
as

k 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

 d
at

e 
no

t a
ch

ie
ve

d.
 

 
 

128



B
E

S
T

 V
A

L
U

E
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 3
R

D
 Q

R
 2

0
0

3
/0

4
 (

O
c

t-
D

e
c

 0
3

)

2
0
0
2
/3

O
u

tt
u

rn

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

L
o

n
d

o
n

2
0
0
3
/4

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 1

s
t 

Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

2
n

d
 Q

r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

3
rd

 Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 4

th
 

Q
r

T
a
rg

e
t

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

T
re

n
d

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

/C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
I 

N
o

.
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 

1
a

D
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
v
e
 a

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y
,

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 i
n

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
fo

r 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
, 
s
o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
w

e
ll 

b
e
in

g
 i
n
 a

 w
a
y
 t
h
a
t 
is

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

?
  
 

N
o

N
/A

N
o

N
o

N
o

1
b

B
y
 w

h
e
n
 (

m
m

,y
y
) 

w
ill

 a
 f
u
ll 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
?
  
If
 s

u
c
h
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 

fo
r 

th
is

 y
e

a
r,

 w
a

s
 i
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

n
 t

im
e

?
-

N
/A

-
-

-

1
c

H
a
s
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r?

  
If
 n

o
, 
b
y
 w

h
e
n
 (

m
m

,y
y
) 

w
ill

 t
h
is

 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
?

-
N

/A
-

-
-

1
d

B
y
 w

h
e
n
 (

m
m

,y
y
) 

d
o
e
s
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
la

n
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
c
h
 a

 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
?
  
A

re
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
?

1
-M

a
y
-0

4
N

/A
1
-M

a
y
-0

4
1
-M

a
y
-0

4
1
-M

a
y
-0

4

2
a

T
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
(i
f 
a
n
y
) 

o
f 
th

e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

L
o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
to

 w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
o
n
fo

rm
s
.

1
[2

]
2

2
b

T
h
e
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 r
a
c
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
: 
c
h
e
c
k
lis

t 
s
c
o
re

N
/A

6
0
%

8

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

v
o
ic

e
s
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
g
o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 p
a
id

 b
y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 

s
u
c
h
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

.
8
4
.0

0
%

[2
]

8
8
.0

0
%

7
1
.0

0
%

7
9
.3

7
%

T
h
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 p
a
y
a
b
le

 w
a
s
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
d
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
3
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 

h
a
d
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s

p
e
e
d
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 i
n
p
u
t.
  
In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

a
in

ta
in

 

ta
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

v
o
id

in
g
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t,
 

th
e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
d
a
ta

 i
n
p
u
t 
to

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
in

v
o
ic

e
s
 

fo
r 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a

d
v
is

in
g
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 i
n
v
o
ic

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 d

o
n
e
. 
 A

s
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
, 
th

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
.p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 r

o
llo

u
t 
o
f 
p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 c

a
rd

s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
4
/2

0
0
5
 w

ill
 

e
n
a
b
le

 1
0
0
%

 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t.

9
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
.

9
7
.2

0
%

[1
]

9
8
.0

0
%

3
5
.0

8
%

6
4
.1

8
%

8
9
.2

0
%

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
3

/2
0

0
4

.

P
le

a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 f
ig

u
re

s
 a

re
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
; 
th

e
 k

e
y
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
h
o
s
e
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
.

1
0

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
o
n
-d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 r

a
te

s
 d

u
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

.
9
9
.2

0
%

[1
]

9
9
.2

5
%

4
1
.0

1
%

7
3
.9

4
%

9
2
.2

3
%

1
1
a

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 w
o
m

e
n
.

3
5
.3

0
%

[3
]

3
7
.5

0
%

3
2
.7

0
%

T
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 a

t 
1
/2

 a
n
d
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 s

e
n
io

r 

m
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 h

a
s
 t
o
 d

a
te

 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

w
o
m

e
n
 i
n
 S

e
n
io

r 
P

o
s
ts

1
1
b

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 b

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 

m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
.

5
.3

0
%

[4
]

7
.5

0
%

7
.0

0
%

T
h
e

fi
g
u
re

is
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

 a
t
1
/2

 a
n

d
fu

ll 
y
e
a
r.

T
h
e
 s

e
n

io
r

m
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 h

a
s
 t
o
 d

a
te

 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

B
E

M
 i
n
 S

e
n
io

r 
P

o
s
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 i
f 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 w

ill
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 u

s
 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 o

u
r 

fu
ll 

y
e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
t

O
&

S
 2

-3
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 &
 B

V
P

I 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

p
p
x
 B

.x
ls

1
 U

p
d
a
te

d
 0

5
/0

2
/0

4
 b

y

M
 R

a
n
d
a
ll

129



B
E

S
T

 V
A

L
U

E
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 3
R

D
 Q

R
 2

0
0

3
/0

4
 (

O
c

t-
D

e
c

 0
3

)

2
0
0
2
/3

O
u

tt
u

rn

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

L
o

n
d

o
n

2
0
0
3
/4

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 1

s
t 

Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

2
n

d
 Q

r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

3
rd

 Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 4

th
 

Q
r

T
a
rg

e
t

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

T
re

n
d

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

/C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
2

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
/s

h
if
ts

 l
o
s
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
.

9
.9

8
[2

]
9
.5

0
2
.5

8
4
.5

1
7
.3

5

T
h
e

fi
g
u
re

is
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 c

a
n
 o

n
ly

b
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
to

th
e

ta
rg

e
t 
a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o
u
rt

h
 q

u
a
rt

e
r,

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 

o
u
tt
u
rn

 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
lo

w
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

1
4

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 r

e
ti
ri

n
g

 e
a

rl
y
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
ll-

h
e
a
lt
h
 r

e
ti
re

m
e
n
ts

) 
a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
w

o
rk

 

fo
rc

e
.

0
.1

2
%

[1
]

0
.4

5
%

0
.2

3
%

T
h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 s
o
 s

m
a
ll 

th
a
t 
m

in
o
r 

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 

d
is

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s

1
5

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 r

e
ti
ri
n
g
 o

n
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 o

f 
ill

 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
.

0
.4

7
%

[3
]

0
.3

5
%

0
.1

4
%

T
h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 s
o
 s

m
a
ll 

th
a
t 
m

in
o
r 

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 

d
is

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s

1
6

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 d

e
c
la

ri
n
g
 

th
a

t 
th

e
y
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 D

is
c
ri

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
5

 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

a
lly

 a
c
ti
v
e

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

a
re

a
:

a
) 

 S
ta

ff
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
2
.4

0
%

[2
]

3
.0

0
%

3
.0

0
%

T
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 a

t 
1
/2

 a
n
d
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
d
 

b
e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

t 
1
/2

 y
e
a
r.

b
) 

W
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

 (
1

8
-6

5
) 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
1

1
.1

0
%

N
/A

1
1

.1
0

%
-

-

1
7

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 f
ro

m
 

m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

a
lly

 a
c
ti
v
e

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
:

a
) 

S
ta

ff
 f
ro

m
 e

th
n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ti
e
s

2
7
.4

0
%

[3
]

3
0
.0

0
%

2
8
.2

0
%

T
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 a

t 
1
/2

 a
n
d
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r.

  
T

h
e
 1

/2
 f
ig

u
re

 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

w
a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

y
e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
t

b
) 

W
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

 (
1

8
-6

5
) 

p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 e
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri

ti
e

s
4

2
.7

0
%

N
/A

4
2

.7
0

%
-

-

1
5
6

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 o

p
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 

w
h

ic
h

 a
ll 

p
u

b
lic

 a
re

a
s
 a

re
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
a

n
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 p
e

o
p

le
.

1
1

.0
0

%
[3

]
1
8
.0

0
%

1
5
7

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
ty

p
e
s
 o

f 
in

te
ra

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 e
n
a
b
le

d
 f
o
r 

e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
y
p
e
s
 o

f 

in
te

ra
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 l
e

g
a

lly
 p

e
rm

is
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
.

3
5

.5
0

%
[4

]
4
1
.6

0
%

3
1
.9

0
%

3
3
.2

0
%

T
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 O

u
tt
u
rn

 3
rd

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 2

n
d
 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 b

u
t 
lo

w
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
2
/3

 o
u
tt
u
rn

. 
W

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 o

u
r 

m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 t
o
 u

s
e
 t
h
e
 I
d
E

A
's

 E
S

D
 T

o
o
lk

it
 a

n
d
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

e
m

p
lo

y
in

g
 a

n
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
to

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
 o

u
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
s
c
o
re

 

a
n
d
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

c
o
re

 i
n
 f
u
tu

re
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rs

. 
W

e
 e

x
p
e
c
t 
to

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 e

x
c
e
e
d
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
3
/4

 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

b
y
 c

o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
n
g
 o

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
ra

n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 

w
e

 m
o

v
e

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 A
P

L
A

W
S

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
.

O
&

S
 2

-3
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 &
 B

V
P

I 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

p
p
x
 B

.x
ls

2
 U

p
d
a
te

d
 0

5
/0

2
/0

4
 b

y

M
 R

a
n
d
a
ll

130



B
E

S
T

 V
A

L
U

E
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 3
R

D
 Q

R
 2

0
0

3
/0

4
 (

O
c

t-
D

e
c

 0
3

)

2
0
0
2
/3

O
u

tt
u

rn

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

L
o

n
d

o
n

2
0
0
3
/4

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 1

s
t 

Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

2
n

d
 Q

r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

3
rd

 Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 4

th
 

Q
r

T
a
rg

e
t

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

T
re

n
d

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

/C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

3
4
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 2

5
%

 o
r 

m
o
re

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 p

la
c
e

s
 u

n
fi
lle

d
.

0
.0

0
%

[1
]

0
.0

0
%

-
-

-
N

o
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 b

u
t 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

 t
o

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

.

3
8

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 f
iv

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 

G
C

S
E

s
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
s
 A

*-
C

 o
r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t.

5
9
.1

0
%

[1
]

6
1
.0

0
%

-
-

-
5
7
.7

0
%

n
/a

T
h

is
 f

ig
u

re
 e

m
b

a
rg

o
e

d
 u

n
ti
l 
1

5
/1

/0
4

F
in

a
l 
fi
g

u
re

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 o

n
 1

5
/1

/0
4
. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 s

h
o
rt

fa
ll 

o
n
 

ta
rg

e
t,
 H

a
rr

o
w

's
 v

a
lu

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 f
ig

u
re

 s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 y

e
a
r 

g
ro

u
p
 

o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 m
a
d
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 f
ro

m
 

K
e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

.

3
9

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 f
iv

e
 G

C
S

E
s
 o

r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
a
t 
g
ra

d
e
s
 A

* 
to

 G
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 

M
a
th

s
.

9
1
.2

0
%

[1
]

9
4

.0
0

%
-

-
-

9
0

.2
0

%
n
/a

p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
fi
g

u
re

4
0

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

K
e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

  
M

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 t
e
s
t.

7
9
.6

0
%

[1
]

8
1
.0

0
%

-
-

-
7
6
.7

0
%

n
/a

O
u
tt
u
rn

 i
s
 a

s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 D

fE
S

; 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
 i
s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

s
h
o
rt

fa
ll.

 E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

a
t 
e
n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r

4
1

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

K
e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 E
n
g
lis

h
 t
e
s
t.

8
0
.8

0
%

[1
]

8
3
.0

0
%

-
-

-
8
2
.1

0
%

n
/a

O
u
tt
u
rn

 i
s
 a

s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 D

fE
S

4
3
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
 

is
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n
 a

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 

w
it
h
 1

8
 w

e
e
k
s
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
o
s
e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 'e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 r

u
le

' u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 S

E
N

 C
o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
.

8
5
.7

0
%

[4
]

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

4
3
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
 

is
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n
 a

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 

w
it
h
 1

8
 w

e
e
k
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
o
s
e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 'e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 r

u
le

' u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 S

E
N

 C
o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
.

1
5
.9

0
%

[4
]

4
3
%

2
1
.4

0
%

3
1
.3

0
%

O
n
 t
ra

c
k
 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
y
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d

4
5

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
a
lf
 d

a
y
s
 m

is
s
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
o
ta

l 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

.
8
.1

0
%

[1
]

8
.0

0
%

-
-

-
7
.7

0
%

n
/a

T
h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 e
m

b
a
rg

o
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
1
5
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

fi
n
a
l 
d
a
ta

 n
o
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
1
5
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
4

4
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
a
lf
 d

a
y
s
 m

is
s
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
o
ta

l 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

.
6
.2

0
%

[1
]

6
.1

0
%

-
-

-
5
.9

0
%

n
/a

O
u
tt
u
rn

 i
s
 a

s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 D

fE
S

4
8

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 -
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 s
p
e
c
ia

l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
.

0
.0

0
%

[1
]

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

0
.0

0
%

O
&

S
 2

-3
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 &
 B

V
P

I 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

p
p
x
 B

.x
ls

3
 U

p
d
a
te

d
 0

5
/0

2
/0

4
 b

y

M
 R

a
n
d
a
ll

131



B
E

S
T

 V
A

L
U

E
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 3
R

D
 Q

R
 2

0
0

3
/0

4
 (

O
c

t-
D

e
c

 0
3

)

2
0
0
2
/3

O
u

tt
u

rn

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

L
o

n
d

o
n

2
0
0
3
/4

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 1

s
t 

Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

2
n

d
 Q

r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

3
rd

 Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 4

th
 

Q
r

T
a
rg

e
t

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

T
re

n
d

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

/C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
8
1

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
4
-y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 
5
 o

r 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

 t
e
s
t 
in

:

 a
) 

E
n
g
lis

h
7
5
%

[1
]

7
3
%

-
-

-
7
1
%

n
/a

o
u
tt
u
rn

 a
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 D

fE
S

b
) 

M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s

7
3
%

[1
]

7
3
%

-
-

-
7
5
%

n
/a

o
u
tt
u
rn

 a
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 D

fE
S

c
) 

 S
c
ie

n
c
e

7
2
%

[1
]

7
0
%

-
-

-
7
2
%

n
/a

o
u
tt
u
rn

 a
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 D

fE
S

d
) 

IC
T

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

N
/A

7
0
%

-
-

-
7
6
%

n
/a

E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

1
9
4

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
5
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 

K
e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

.

a
) 

E
n
g
lis

h
.

3
4
%

3
2
.8

0
%

n
/a

O
u
tt
u
rn

 i
s
 a

s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 D

fE
S

b
) 

M
a
th

s
.

3
6
%

3
6
.2

0
%

n
/a

O
u
tt
u
rn

 i
s
 a

s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 D

fE
S

S
O

C
IA

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

4
9

S
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
b

y
 t

h
e

 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 b
y
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

o
n
 3

1
s
t 
M

a
rc

h
 i
n
 a

n
y
 y

e
a
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
re

e
 o

r 

m
o
re

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

3
.1

0
%

[1
]

1
1
%

4
.4

0
%

6
.7

0
%

3
.9

6
%

T
h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 t
h
ir
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l.
  
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
o
u
rc

e
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
.

5
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
it
e
m

s
 o

f 
e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
c
o
s
ti
n
g
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 

£
1
,0

0
0
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
re

e
 w

e
e
k
s
.

9
5
.2

0
%

[2
]

d
is

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d

5
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
it
e
m

s
 o

f 
e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
d
e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 7
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
.

(a
m

e
n
d
e
d

in
d
.)

N
/A

9
6
.1

0
%

7
3
.9

0
%

6
4
.7

0
%

S
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

o
u
rc

e
 d

a
ta

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 

o
m

is
s
io

n
s
. 
 T

h
e
 d

a
ta

 s
o
 f
a
r,

 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
3
, 
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 

th
e
re

fo
re

, 
th

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

w
ill

 n
o
t 
b
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 u

n
ti
l

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 
  
C

o
m

m
e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
d
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ts

 

fo
r 

th
e
 m

o
n
th

 o
f 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 a

 b
a
c
k
lo

g
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
.

S
ta

ff
 h

o
lid

a
y
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r,

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
o
u
n
d
e
d
 t
h
is

.

5
8

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
ir
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t.

7
6
.5

0
%

[4
]

9
4
.0

0
%

-
7
0
.0

0
%

8
2
.2

5
%

T
h
e
 d

a
ta

 e
x
c
lu

d
e
s
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 t
e
a
m

s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
s
t 
h
a
s
 d

e
p
re

s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
. 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 d

in
a
l 
q
u
a
rt

e
r,

 m
a
y
 

h
a
v
e
 s

o
m

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t.

1
6
2

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
a
t 
w

e
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
.

1
0
0
.0

0
%

[1
]

1
0
0
.0

0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

1
0
0
.0

0
%

O
&

S
 2

-3
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 &
 B

V
P

I 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

p
p
x
 B

.x
ls

4
 U

p
d
a
te

d
 0

5
/0

2
/0

4
 b

y

M
 R

a
n
d
a
ll

132



B
E

S
T

 V
A

L
U

E
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 3
R

D
 Q

R
 2

0
0

3
/0

4
 (

O
c

t-
D

e
c

 0
3

)

2
0
0
2
/3

O
u

tt
u

rn

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

L
o

n
d

o
n

2
0
0
3
/4

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 1

s
t 

Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

2
n

d
 Q

r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

3
rd

 Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 4

th
 

Q
r

T
a
rg

e
t

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

T
re

n
d

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

/C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
6
3

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

y
e
a
r 

a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 

a
ft
e
r 

a
t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

fo
r 

6
 

m
o
n
th

s
 o

r 
m

o
re

.
5
.0

0
%

[2
]

7
.3

0
%

1
.5

0
%

2
.8

0
%

2
.4

0
%

E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

1
9
5

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 o
ld

e
r 

c
lie

n
ts

 w
h
e
re

 w
a
it
in

g
 t
im

e
 f
o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
w

a
s
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

.
6
5
%

H
O

U
S

IN
G

6
2

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

u
n

fi
t 

p
ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
 m

a
d

e
 f

it
 

o
r 

d
e

m
o

lis
h

e
d

 a
s
 a

 d
ir

e
c
t 

re
s
u

lt
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

.
1
.0

0
%

[4
]

1
.5

0
%

0
.2

5
%

0
.9

0
%

1
.3

8
%

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 c
a
lc

u
la

te
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

h
ic

h
 f
lu

c
tu

a
te

s
 o

v
e
r 

s
h
o
rt

 p
e
ri
o
d
s
 o

f 
ti
m

e
 d

e
p
e
n
d
in

g
 o

n
 w

h
e
n
 w

o
rk

s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 g

ra
n
t 
a
id

e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 

tr
e
n
d
 s

h
o
w

s
  
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

u
t 
o
u
tt
u
rn

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 b

e
lo

w
 t
o
p
 2

5
th

 p
e
rc

e
n
ti
le

. 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 f
o
r 

in
 t
h
e
 d

ra
ft
 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
.

6
3

E
n
e
rg

y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 -

  
th

e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 S

A
P

 r
a
ti
n
g
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
w

n
e
d
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
s
.

5
4
.0

0
[3

]
5
5
.0

0
5
6
.0

0
5
6
.0

0
5
6
.0

0

N
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

d
a

ta
 i
n

p
u

t 
a

s
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 s

ti
ll 

o
n

 s
it
e

. 
 W

ill
 b

e
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
.

6
4

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
v
a
c
a
n
t 
d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 

re
tu

rn
e
d
 i
n
to

 o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 
d
e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
3
/0

4
 

a
s
 a

 d
ir
e
c
t 
re

s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

.
1
0
4

[2
]

1
2
0

3
2
 +

 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
1

6

2
7
  
+

 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
 4

1

2
5
 +

 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
7

0
 

fi
n
d
e
rs

 f
e
e

T
h
e
 B

V
P

I6
4
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 i
n
 

c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 O

D
P

M
 t
o
 c

la
ri
fy

 w
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 a

n
d
 c

a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 o

n
 B

V
P

I6
4
.

T
h
e
s
e
 n

e
w

 g
u
id

e
lin

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t:
  
E

a
c
h
 

n
o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

ri
v
a
te

 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 e

g
 r

e
n
t 
d
e
s
p
o
s
it
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 

n
o
 f
o
rm

a
l 
n
o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 r

ig
h
t 
(t

h
u
s
 L

A
 h

a
s
 t
o
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 

p
ro

m
o
te

/s
u
p
p
o
rt

 e
a
c
h
 n

e
w

 l
e
tt
in

g
).

  
  
T

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 
a
n
y
 k

in
d
 o

f 
a
 

n
e
w

 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
, 
b
u
t 
m

e
re

ly
 c

la
ri
fy

in
g
 t
h
e
 

m
a

tt
e

r 
fo

r 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 s

o
m

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 s

h
o
w

n
 n

a
ti
o
n
w

id
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 

a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
ti
m

e
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 w
id

e
 d

is
c
re

p
a
n
c
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
 A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 t
h
e
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 f
ig

u
re

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 n

o
w

 

in
c
lu

d
e
 e

v
e
ry

 F
in

d
e
rs

 F
e
e
 a

c
q
u
is

it
io

n
 i
n
 L

B
H

 a
s
 o

p
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 

s
o
le

ly
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 e

m
p
ty

 f
o
r 

6
 m

o
n
th

s
. 
 L

o
c
a
l 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 E

m
p
ty

 H
o
m

e
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

n
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 e
m

p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
.

6
6
a

L
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 r
e
n
t 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

rr
e
a
rs

: 
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 

re
n
t 
c
o
lle

c
te

d
.

9
6
.7

9
%

[1
]

9
8
.5

0
%

8
4
.4

9
%

8
8
.1

4
%

9
0
.6

1
%

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

is
 9

8
.5

%
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 q

tr
 3

 f
ig

 o
f 

9
0
.6

1
%

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 o
f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
te

n
a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

n
t 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 i
s
 9

5
.7

9
%

.

1
6
4

D
o

e
s
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 f
o

llo
w

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f

o
r 

R
a

c
ia

l 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
's

 c
o
d
e
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 r

e
n
te

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 f
o
llo

w
 

th
e
 G

o
o
d
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
la

n
d
lo

rd
s
 o

n
 

ta
c
k
lin

g
 h

a
ra

s
s
m

e
n

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 T
a

c
k
lin

g
 R

a
c
ia

l 

H
a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t?

 
Y

e
s

[1
]

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

Y
e
s

O
&

S
 2

-3
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 &
 B

V
P

I 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

p
p
x
 B

.x
ls

5
 U

p
d
a
te

d
 0

5
/0

2
/0

4
 b

y

M
 R

a
n
d
a
ll

133



B
E

S
T

 V
A

L
U

E
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 3
R

D
 Q

R
 2

0
0

3
/0

4
 (

O
c

t-
D

e
c

 0
3

)

2
0
0
2
/3

O
u

tt
u

rn

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

L
o

n
d

o
n

2
0
0
3
/4

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 1

s
t 

Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

2
n

d
 Q

r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

3
rd

 Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 4

th
 

Q
r

T
a
rg

e
t

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

T
re

n
d

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

/C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
8
3

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 
s
ta

y
 i
n
 (

i)
 b

e
d
 a

n
d
 b

re
a
k
fa

s
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 (

ii)
 h

o
s
te

l 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
c
h
ild

re
n
 o

r 
a
 

p
re

g
n
a
n
t 
w

o
m

a
n
 a

n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
lly

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 

a
n
d
 i
n
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 n
e
e
d
 (

w
e
e
k
s
)

i)
 b

e
d
 a

n
d
 b

re
a
k
fa

s
t 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

1
6

[2
]

1
6

2
0

1
6
.8

1
5
.9

ii)
 h

o
s
te

l 
a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
1

8
[2

]
1
7

3
7

2
1
.4

1
1
.8

1
8
4
a

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

  
h
o
m

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 n
o
n
-

d
e
c
e
n
t 
a
t 
1
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
3
.

4
9
%

[2
]

5
2
%

5
2
%

5
2
%

5
2
%

1
8
5

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 (

b
u
t 
n
o
t 
e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
) 

re
p
a
ir
s
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
3
/2

0
0
4
, 
fo

r 
w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 b
o
th

 m
a
d
e
 a

n
d
 

k
e
p
t 
a
n
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t.

0
%

[4
]

0
%

0
%

0
%

0
%

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

 A
N

D
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 T

A
X

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

7
6

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

.
Y

e
s

[1
]

a
) 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
la

im
a
n
ts

 v
is

it
e
d
, 
p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 c

a
s
e
lo

a
d
.

2
0
6
.6

2
4
4
.9

2
3
7

1
2
.2

1

A
ll 

m
a

jo
r 

v
is

it
s
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

ir
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r,

 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 d
u
e
 t
o
 c

h
a
n
a
g
e
s
 i
n
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
 v

is
it
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
m

e
n
ts

 

h
a

v
e

 a
lt
e

re
d

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y

b
) 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fr

a
u
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
to

rs
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
d
, 
p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 c

a
s
e
lo

a
d
.

0
.2

3
0
.2

3
0
.3

1
0
.2

9

H
a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 s

o
u
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 

fr
o
m

 B
F

I 
a
n
d
 P

E
A

T
 T

e
a
m

c
) 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fr

a
u
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 

c
a
s
e
lo

a
d
.

5
9
.5

7
2
1

6
.1

5
6
.7

1

h
a

v
e

 c
le

a
re

d
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
b

a
c
k
lo

g
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

Q
4
 s

h
o
u
ld

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 e
ff
o
rt

 i
n
 t
h
is

 

a
re

a
 o

f 
th

is
 q

u
a
rt

e
r

d
) 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
ro

s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

a
n
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 

c
a
s
e
lo

a
d
.

1
6
.0

0
0

0
0
.1

4

T
h
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

h
a
rp

ly
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

a
n
d
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
s
a
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
2
0
0
3
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 g

ro
w

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 f
o
u
rt

h
 q

u
a
rt

e
r

7
8
a

S
p
e
e
d
 o

f 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
: 
A

v
e
ra

g
e
 t
im

e
 f
o
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 n

e
w

 

c
la

im
s
 (

d
a

y
s
)

8
6

.5
6

[4
]

6
1
.2

0
9
2
.9

4
9
7
.3

8
8
6
.7

6

N
e
w

 C
la

im
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 s

in
c
e
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
1
8
th

 H
a
rr

o
w

 a
re

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
d
 

w
it
h
in

 3
 d

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 b

a
c
k
lo

g
 o

f 
c
la

im
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
. 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 t
h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

a
n
d
 w

e
 

e
x
p
e
c
t 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

4

7
8
b

S
p
e
e
d
 o

f 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
: 
A

v
e
ra

g
e
 t
im

e
 f
o
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 

n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 o

f 
c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 (

d
a
y
s
)

1
8
.7

0
[3

]
1
3
.2

0
2
1
.7

6
2
3
.7

1
2
3
.8

5

T
h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 s
in

c
e
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
o
 t
a
rg

e
t 
th

e
 c

o
re

 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 
to

 c
o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
te

 

o
n
 i
te

m
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 n
o
t 
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 p

u
tt
in

g
 a

n
d
 k

e
e
p
in

g
 

c
la

im
s
 i
n

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t.
  

T
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 o
f 

th
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 

fo
u
rt

h
 q

u
a
rt

e
r,

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

u
rg

e
n
t 
c
ir
c
s
 a

re
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 3
 

d
a
y
s

7
8
c

S
p
e
e
d
 o

f 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
: 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

n
e
w

a
l 
c
la

im
s
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
im

e
.

4
5
.4

5
%

[4
]

7
7
.8

6
%

2
8
.5

0
%

2
8
.4

0
%

4
2
.2

2
%

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 1

4
%

 a
n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
u
rt

h
 q

u
a
rt

e
r,

 a
s
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
n

e
w

a
ls

 o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 i
s
 n

e
g

lig
ib

le

T
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
a

c
tu

a
lly

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 h

is
to

ri
c
a

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
v
e

r 

w
h
ic

h
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.
  
R

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 

th
e
 O

P
D

M
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
d
o
e
s
 

n
o
t 
m

e
a
s
u
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 

s
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 s

ta
g
e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
.

F
o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 a
c
tu

a
lly

 m
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 h

o
w

 

lo
n
g
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

e
re

 i
n
 B

&
B

 a
n
d
 h

o
s
te

ls
 a

s
 l
o
n
g
 a

s
 5

/6
 y

e
a
rs

 

a
g
o
.

O
&

S
 2

-3
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 &
 B

V
P

I 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

p
p
x
 B

.x
ls

6
 U

p
d
a
te

d
 0

5
/0

2
/0

4
 b

y

M
 R

a
n
d
a
ll

134



B
E

S
T

 V
A

L
U

E
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 3
R

D
 Q

R
 2

0
0

3
/0

4
 (

O
c

t-
D

e
c

 0
3

)

2
0
0
2
/3

O
u

tt
u

rn

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

L
o

n
d

o
n

2
0
0
3
/4

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 1

s
t 

Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

2
n

d
 Q

r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

3
rd

 Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 4

th
 

Q
r

T
a
rg

e
t

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

T
re

n
d

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

/C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

7
9
a

A
c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

f 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
: 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
a
s
e
s
 f
o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 

th
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
d
u
e
 w

a
s
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

o
n
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 

fo
r 

a
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 p

o
s
t-

d
e
c
is

io
n
.

9
3
.8

0
%

[4
]

9
8
.0

0
%

9
7
.6

0
%

9
8
.7

0
%

9
7
.6

8
%

7
9
b

A
c
c
u
ra

c
y
 o

f 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
: 
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

c
o
v
e
ra

b
le

 

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 (
e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 B

e
n
e
fi
t)

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 

re
c
o
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

3
9
.0

7
%

[2
]

3
3
.0

0
%

1
2
.2

0
%

1
8
.5

8
%

2
4
.5

2
%

n
/a

O
/P

 R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

 o
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 e

x
p
e
c
t 
to

 m
e
e
t 
ta

rg
e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

in
 t
h
e
 f
o
u
rt

h
 q

u
a
rt

e
r

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

8
2
a

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
to

n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 

a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
.

9
.4

0
%

[2
]

1
6
.0

0
%

9
.5

0
%

9
.8

0
%

1
0
.0

0
%

2
0
0
3
/4

 t
a
rg

e
t 
q
u
o
te

d
 i
s
 i
n
c
o
rr

e
c
t.
 1

6
%

 r
e
fe

rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 

to
ta

l 
o
f 
8
2
a
) 

a
n
d
 b

).

8
2
b

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
to

n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 

a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 
fo

r 
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
.

0
.0

0
%

[4
]

4
.0

0
%

2
.5

0
%

3
.0

0
%

3
.0

0
%

2
0
0
3
/4

 t
a
rg

e
t 
q
u
o
te

d
 i
s
 i
n
c
o
rr

e
c
t.
 1

6
%

 r
e
fe

rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 

S
e
c
o
n
d
 o

rg
a
n
ic

 r
o
u
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 

s
h

o
u

ld
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h

e
 i
n

s
ta

lle
d

 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 

ta
rg

e
t.
  
T

h
e
 f
in

a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn

 w
ill

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

b
e
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t.

8
2
d

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
to

n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 

a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
n
d
fi
lle

d
.

9
0
.6

0
%

[4
]

8
4
.0

0
%

8
8
.0

0
%

8
7
.2

0
%

8
7
.0

0
%

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T

9
9

R
o
a
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 -

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
ro

a
d
 a

c
c
id

e
n
t 
c
a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 c

a
te

g
o
ri
e
s
:

a
) 

P
e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s

K
ill

e
d

/S
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 I
n

ju
re

d
1

9
.2

3
[2

]
5
.8

8
3
.3

1
5
.6

7
3
.7

8

T
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
0
3
 w

a
s
 s

e
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
lly

 l
o
w

 a
c
c
id

e
n
t 

ra
te

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
2

S
lig

h
t 
In

ju
ri
e
s

5
0
.9

6
[1

]
3
5
.7

1
6
.6

2
1
0
.3

9
1
2
.2

9

T
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
0
3
 w

a
s
 s

e
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
lly

 l
o
w

 a
c
c
id

e
n
t 

ra
te

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
2

b
) 

P
e
d

a
l 
c
y
c
li
s
ts

K
ill

e
d

/S
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 I
n

ju
re

d
2
.8

8
[1

]
3
.1

1
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
.4

2
B

e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 a

c
c
id

e
n
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
3

S
lig

h
t 
In

ju
ri
e
s

1
6
.8

3
[1

]
1
1
.3

0
0
.9

5
2
.8

3
6
.6

2

T
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
0
3
 w

a
s
 s

e
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
lly

 l
o
w

 a
c
c
id

e
n
t 

ra
te

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
2

c
) 

T
w

o
-w

h
e
e
le

d
 m

o
to

r 
v
e
h

ic
le

 u
s
e
rs

K
ill

e
d

/S
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 I
n

ju
re

d
5
.2

9
[1

]
5
.8

0
0
.9

5
2
.3

6
1
.8

9

T
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
0
3
 w

a
s
 s

e
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
lly

 l
o
w

 a
c
c
id

e
n
t 

ra
te

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
2

S
lig

h
t 
In

ju
ri
e
s

2
8
.8

5
[1

]
2
5
.3

6
4
.2

5
2
.8

3
3
.3

1
B

e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 a

c
c
id

e
n
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
3

O
&

S
 2

-3
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 &
 B

V
P

I 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

p
p
x
 B

.x
ls

7
 U

p
d
a
te

d
 0

5
/0

2
/0

4
 b

y

M
 R

a
n
d
a
ll

135



B
E

S
T

 V
A

L
U

E
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 3
R

D
 Q

R
 2

0
0

3
/0

4
 (

O
c

t-
D

e
c

 0
3

)

2
0
0
2
/3

O
u

tt
u

rn

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

L
o

n
d

o
n

2
0
0
3
/4

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 1

s
t 

Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

2
n

d
 Q

r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

3
rd

 Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 4

th
 

Q
r

T
a
rg

e
t

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

T
re

n
d

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

/C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

d
) 

C
a
r 

u
s
e
rs

K
ill

e
d

/S
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 I
n

ju
re

d
1
8
.7

5
[1

]
1
8
.7

4
2
.8

4
2
.3

6
2
.3

6
B

e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 a

c
c
id

e
n
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
3

S
lig

h
t 
In

ju
ri
e
s

2
1
7
.3

1
[2

]
1
8
0
.3

8
4
2
.0

6
4
8
.2

0
5
2
.4

6

T
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
0
3
 w

a
s
 s

e
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
lly

 l
o
w

 a
c
c
id

e
n
t 

ra
te

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
2

e
) 

O
th

e
r 

v
e
h

ic
le

 u
s
e
rs

K
ill

e
d

/S
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 I
n

ju
re

d
4
.3

3
[2

]
1
.3

3
0
.4

7
0
.0

0
0
.4

8

T
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
0
3
 w

a
s
 s

e
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
lly

 l
o
w

 a
c
c
id

e
n
t 

ra
te

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
2

S
lig

h
t 
In

ju
ri
e
s

2
0
.1

9
[1

]
1
1
.7

7
4
.2

5
4
.7

2
4
.7

3

T
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
0
3
 w

a
s
 s

e
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
lly

 l
o
w

 a
c
c
id

e
n
t 

ra
te

s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
2

1
0
0

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
a
y
s
 o

f 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 o
r 

ro
a
d
 

c
lo

s
u
re

 o
n
 t
ra

ff
ic

 s
e
n
s
it
iv

e
 r

o
a
d
s
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 r

o
a
d
 w

o
rk

s
 

p
e

r 
k
m

 o
f 

tr
a

ff
ic

 s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 r

o
a

d
.

1
.4

3
[4

]
1
.5

0
0
.1

2
5

0
.7

5
3

0
.4

1
4

E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

1
6
5

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 c
ro

s
s
in

g
s
 w

it
h

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 p
e

o
p

le
.

1
0

0
%

[1
]

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
0
0
%

1
7
8

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
le

n
g
th

 o
f 
fo

o
tp

a
th

s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

ri
g
h
ts

 o
f 
w

a
y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 e
a
s
y
 t
o
 u

s
e
 b

y
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 

p
u
b
lic

.
9
0
.9

0
%

[1
]

9
5
.0

0
%

9
0
.9

0
%

9
0
.9

0
%

9
5
.0

0
%

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G

1
0
7

P
la

n
n
in

g
 c

o
s
t 
p
e
r 

h
e
a
d
 o

f 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 (
s
h
o
w
n

c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
ly
)

1
2
.5

1
[3

]
1
3
.7

1
2
.9

0
6
.5

0
1
0
.7

4
E

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

1
0
9

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t's

 n
e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 

to
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
:-

a
) 

6
0

%
 o

f 
m

a
jo

r 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 1
3

 w
e

e
k
s
;

3
2

%
[3

]
5
0
%

1
7
.0

0
%

4
3
.0

0
%

6
8
.7

5
%

E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

b
) 

6
5
%

 o
f 
m

in
o
r 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 8

 w
e
e
k
s
; 
a
n
d

3
8
%

[4
]

5
0
%

3
5
.0

0
%

3
2
.0

0
%

4
9
.5

4
%

c
) 

8
0
%

 o
f 
o
th

e
r 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 8

 w
e
e
k
s
.

6
3
%

[3
]

7
5
%

7
5
.0

0
%

8
2
.0

0
%

8
0
.0

0
%

E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

1
7
9

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 s
e
a
rc

h
e
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
in

 1
0
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
.

9
9
.9

0
%

[3
]

1
0
0
%

9
9
.0

3
%

9
9
.5

0
%

9
9
.8

5
%

1
8
8

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 d

e
le

g
a
te

d
 t
o
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
s
 a

 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

a
ll 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
.

8
5

.0
0

%
[4

]
9
0
%

8
7
.0

0
%

8
6
.0

0
%

8
8
.0

0
%

2
0
0

P
la

n
 m

a
k
in

g
:

a
) 

D
o
 y

o
u
 h

a
v
e
 a

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 (

o
r 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
t)

 

th
a
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
5
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 

d
a
te

 o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
e
x
p
ir
e
d
?

Y
e
s

N
o

n
/a

O
&

S
 2

-3
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 &
 B

V
P

I 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

p
p
x
 B

.x
ls

8
 U

p
d
a
te

d
 0

5
/0

2
/0

4
 b

y

M
 R

a
n
d
a
ll

136



B
E

S
T

 V
A

L
U

E
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 3
R

D
 Q

R
 2

0
0

3
/0

4
 (

O
c

t-
D

e
c

 0
3

)

2
0
0
2
/3

O
u

tt
u

rn

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

L
o

n
d

o
n

2
0
0
3
/4

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 1

s
t 

Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

2
n

d
 Q

r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

3
rd

 Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 4

th
 

Q
r

T
a
rg

e
t

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

T
re

n
d

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

/C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

b
) 

If
 'N

o
' a

re
 t
h
e
re

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 o
n
 d

e
p
o
s
it
 f
o
r 

a
n
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

o
r 

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t,

 w
it
h

 a
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 f
o

r 
a

d
o

p
ti
n

g
 

th
o
s
e
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 o

r 
th

e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
re

e
 

y
e
a
rs

?
Y

e
s

Y
e
s

n
/a

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 &
 T

R
A

D
IN

G
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

1
6
6

S
c
o
re

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
a
 c

h
e
c
k
lis

t 
o
f 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

fo
r 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
/t
ra

d
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
:-

a
) 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h

8
5
%

[3
]

9
0
%

9
0
.0

0
%

9
0
.0

0
%

9
0
.0

0
%

T
h
e
 T

a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
9
0
%

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 r

e
ta

in
in

g
 t
h
e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 2

5
th

 p
e
rc

e
n
ti
le

 T
h
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

o
p
e
n
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 m

a
y
 b

e
 d

is
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 

p
e
ri
o
d
 2

 i
n
 2

0
0
4
/0

5
. 
A

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

b
je

c
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

. 
T

h
e
 l
e
a
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 i
s
 

b
e

in
g

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 G
L

A
 a

n
d

 L
A

C
O

R
S

, 
w

h
o

 i
t 

is
 b

e
lie

v
e

d
 w

ill
 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 A

 f
in

a
l 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 i
s
 n

o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

is
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

b
) 

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
9
0
%

[1
]

1
0
0
%

9
0
.0

0
%

9
0
.0

0
%

9
0
.0

0
%

T
h
e
 T

a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
1
0
0
%

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 r

e
ta

in
in

g
 

th
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 2

5
th

 p
e
rc

e
n
ti
le

.T
h
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 o

p
e
n
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 

d
is

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
p
e
ri
o
d
 2

 i
n
 2

0
0
4
/0

5
 w

it
h
 a

 n
e
w

 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
. 

A
 f

in
a

l 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 m

a
d

e
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 

e
n
d
 o

f 
th

is
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 

C
U

L
T

U
R

A
L

 &
 R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

1
1
7

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
v
is

it
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

p
u

b
lic

 l
ib

ra
ry

 p
re

m
is

e
s
.

6
,7

7
1

[2
]

6
,7

0
0

-
-

-
7
,0

7
8

n
/a

1
7
0
a

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
is

it
s
 t
o
/u

s
a
g
e
s
 o

f 
m

u
s
e
u
m

s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

1
6
5

[2
]

1
6
5

*
*

7
3
.6

0
n
/a

F
ig

u
re

s
 n

o
w

 b
e
in

g
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 b

y
 A

C
H

 a
re

 o
n
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
b
a
s
is

 t
o
 

la
s
t 
y
e
a
r

1
7
0
b

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
th

o
s
e
 v

is
it
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 i
n
 p

e
rs

o
n
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

1
6
5

[2
]

1
6
5

*
*

7
0
.9

0
n
/a

E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

1
7
0
c

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 v
is

it
in

g
 m

u
s
e
u
m

s
 a

n
d
 g

a
lle

ri
e
s
 i
n
 

o
rg

a
n
is

e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
g
ro

u
p
s
 (

th
is

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 v

is
it
s
 b

y
 

s
ix

th
 f
o
rm

 c
o
lle

g
e
s
 o

r 
a
d
u
lt
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
).

3
8
9

N
/A

4
3
2

5
1
7

7
1
7

E
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n

O
&

S
 2

-3
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 &
 B

V
P

I 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

p
p
x
 B

.x
ls

9
 U

p
d
a
te

d
 0

5
/0

2
/0

4
 b

y

M
 R

a
n
d
a
ll

137



B
E

S
T

 V
A

L
U

E
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 3
R

D
 Q

R
 2

0
0

3
/0

4
 (

O
c

t-
D

e
c

 0
3

)

2
0
0
2
/3

O
u

tt
u

rn

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

L
o

n
d

o
n

2
0
0
3
/4

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 1

s
t 

Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

2
n

d
 Q

r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

3
rd

 Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 4

th
 

Q
r

T
a
rg

e
t

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

T
re

n
d

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

/C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

1
2
6
a

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 b

u
rg

la
ri
e
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
2
3
.8

0
[3

]
2
3
.4

4
2
2
.2

9
2
2
.3

9
2
6
.1

9

 +
 1

1
.7

3
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
. 
T

h
e
 t
h
ir
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

b
u
rg

la
ry

 f
ig

u
re

s
 s

h
o
w

 a
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 a

tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 s

e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
tr

e
n
d
. 

B
u
rg

la
ry

 f
ig

u
re

s
 u

s
u
a
lly

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 u

p
 t
o
 

C
h
ri
s
tm

a
s
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 d

a
rk

e
r 

e
v
e
n
in

g
s
, 
D

iw
a
li 

c
e
le

b
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
m

e
r 

g
o
o
d
s
 i
n
 p

e
o
p
le

's
 h

o
m

e
s
. 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
v
e
s
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 

P
o
lic

e
 i
n
 b

u
rg

la
ry

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

£
5
0
,0

0
0
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

a
fe

r 

h
o
m

e
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 f
re

e
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 t
o
 o

ld
e
r 

a
n
d
 m

o
re

 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

.

1
2
7

V
io

le
n
t 
c
ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
b
ro

k
e
n
 d

o
w

n
 t
o
 

s
h
o
w

:

a
) 

V
io

le
n
t 
o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 b

y
 a

 s
tr

a
n
g
e
r 

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

9
.1

4
[1

]
9
.1

4
8
.4

2
8
.8

1
8
.1

9

  
-1

0
.3

9
%

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

p
ro

b
a
b
ly

a
tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

to
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

T
o
w

n

C
e
n
tr

e
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

, 
C

C
T

V
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B

u
s
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

ro
b
b
e
ry

 p
a
tr

o
ls

, 
in

tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

o
lic

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 P

S
A

 f
o
r 

R
o
b
b
e
ry

b
) 

V
io

le
n

t 
o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 i
n

 a
 p

u
b

lic
 p

la
c
e

 p
e

r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

1
1
.0

7
[1

]
1
1
.0

7
1
0
.5

8
1
0
.5

0
9
.4

0

  
-1

5
.0

8
%

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

p
ro

b
a
b
ly

a
tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

to
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

T
o
w

n

C
e
n
tr

e
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

, 
C

C
T

V
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B

u
s
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

ro
b
b
e
ry

 p
a
tr

o
ls

, 
in

tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

o
lic

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 P

S
A

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

c
) 

V
io

le
n
t 
o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 i
n
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

lic
e

n
s
e

d
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
.

n
o

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
-

n
o

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le

d
) 

V
io

le
n
t 
o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
.

n
o

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
-

n
o

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le

e
) 

R
o
b
b
e
ri
e
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

2
.9

5
[1

]
2
.6

5
2
.7

8
2
.6

1
2
.4

6

  
-7

.1
6
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
b
a
b
ly

 a
tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 T

o
w

n
 

C
e
n
tr

e
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

, 
C

C
T

V
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B

u
s
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

ro
b
b
e
ry

 p
a
tr

o
ls

, 
in

tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

o
lic

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 P

S
A

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

1
2
8
a

V
e

h
ic

le
 c

ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
1

4
.9

5
[1

]
1
2
.7

1
1
4
.7

1
2
.5

9
1
3
.1

1

1
7
6

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 r

e
fu

g
e
 p

la
c
e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 o

r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

.
0
.3

0
[3

]
0
.4

8
0
.4

8
0
.4

8
0
.4

8

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 L
E

G
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

1
7
7

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

(w
h
e
th

e
r

in
-h

o
u
s
e

o
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
l)
 o

n
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

p
e
n
t 

o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 t
h
e
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 M

a
rk

 

a
n
d
 m

e
e
t 
le

g
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 L

e
g
a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
.

2
0
.0

0
%

[4
]

2
5
.0

0
%

2
5
.0

0
%

2
5
.0

0
%

2
5
.0

0
%

-

O
&

S
 2

-3
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 &
 B

V
P

I 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

p
p
x
 B

.x
ls

1
0

 U
p
d
a
te

d
 0

5
/0

2
/0

4
 b

y

M
 R

a
n
d
a
ll

138



B
E

S
T

 V
A

L
U

E
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 -

 3
R

D
 Q

R
 2

0
0

3
/0

4
 (

O
c

t-
D

e
c

 0
3

)

2
0
0
2
/3

O
u

tt
u

rn

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

L
o

n
d

o
n

2
0
0
3
/4

T
a
rg

e
t

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 1

s
t 

Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

2
n

d
 Q

r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn

3
rd

 Q
r

2
0
0
3
/4

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
 4

th
 

Q
r

T
a
rg

e
t

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

T
re

n
d

(s
e
e

n
o

te
s
 b

e
lo

w
)

E
x
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

/C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

N
o

te
s
 o

n
 T

a
b

le
 F

o
rm

a
t

T
h
e
  
B

V
P

Is
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
w

e
re

 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
3
 C

P
A

 m
o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
u
n
it
a
ry

 a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

T
h
e
 B

V
P

Is
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 a

re
 C

P
A

 m
o
d
e
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
rs

.

T
h

e
 t

a
b

le
 s

h
o

w
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

's
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 d
a
ta

 f
o

r 
2
0
0
3
/0

4
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 i
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
e
t 

in
 t

h
e
 2

0
0
3
/0

4
 B

V
P

P
.

T
h
e
 c

o
lu

m
n
 h

e
a
d
e
d
 '
Q

u
a

rt
il

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
' 
s
h
o
w

s
 H

a
rr

o
w

's
 r

a
n
k
in

g
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 a

ll 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
. 
 A

 r
a
n
k
in

g
 o

f 
1
 m

e
a
n
s

H
a
rr

o
w

 w
a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
  
(t

o
p
 2

5
%

).
  
C

o
n
v
e
rs

e
ly

, 
a
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 r

a
n
k
in

g
 o

f 
4
 m

e
a
n
s
 H

a
rr

o
w

 w
a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
tt
o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
.

Q
u
a
rt

ile
s
 a

re
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 2

0
0
2
/0

3
 d

a
ta

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.

In
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
tw

o
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
 h

e
a
d
e
d
 '
T

a
rg

e
t'

 a
n

d
 '
T

re
n

d
' 
H

a
rr

o
w

's
 a

c
tu

a
l 
2
0
0
3
/0

4
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 d
a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d
.

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 t
h

re
e
 '
a
rr

o
w

 s
ig

n
s
' 
u

s
e
d

 t
o

 g
iv

e
 a

 q
u

ic
k
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

H
a
rr

o
w

's
 p

o
s
it

io
n

.

In
 t
h
e
 '
ta

rg
e
t'

 c
o
lu

m
n
, 
a
 g

re
e
n
 u

p
w

a
rd

 p
o
in

ti
n
g
 a

rr
o
w

  
  
  
  
  
  
in

d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
3
/0

4
 w

a
s
 b

e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
s
e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 y

e
a
r,

 o
r 

a
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
it
, 
p
lu

s
 t
o
le

ra
n
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
d
 d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

 a
rr

o
w

  
  
  
  
  
  
, 
o
n
 t
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

h
a
n
d
, 
in

d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 2

0
0
3
/0

4
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 
a
s
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
.

In
 t
h
e
 '
tr

e
n

d
' 
c
o
lu

m
n
, 
a
 g

re
e
n
 a

rr
o
w

 p
o
in

ti
n
g
 u

p
w

a
rd

s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 a

n
 'i

m
p
ro

v
in

g
'  

tr
e
n
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 Q

u
a
rt

e
rs

. 
C

o
n
v
e
rs

e
ly

, 
a
 r

e
d
 d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

 a
rr

o
w

, 
a
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 d
e
c
lin

in
g
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e
 o

c
c
a
s
io

n
a
l 
u
s
e
 o

f 
a
 y

e
llo

w
 h

o
ri
z
o
n
ta

l 
a
rr

o
w

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
in

d
ic

a
te

s
 n

o
 u

p
w

a
rd

 o
r 

d
o
w

n
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
 w

h
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 't

re
n
d
' c

o
lu

m
n
. 
F

o
r 

th
e
 't

a
rg

e
t' 

c
o
lu

m
n
, 
it
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
d
a
ta

 w
a
s
 s

p
o
t 
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
t,
 o

r 

w
it
h
in

 t
o
le

ra
n
c
e
. 
T

o
le

ra
n
c
e
 i
s
 t
h
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

llo
w

a
b
le

 b
e
fo

re
 a

n
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 -

 n
o
rm

a
lly

 +
/-

 5
%

.

O
&

S
 2

-3
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 &
 B

V
P

I 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

p
p
x
 B

.x
ls

1
1

 U
p
d
a
te

d
 0

5
/0

2
/0

4
 b

y

M
 R

a
n
d
a
ll

139



B
E

S
T

 V
A

L
U

E
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
 2

0
0
3
/0

4
 T

H
A

T
 C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 R

E
P

O
R

T
E

D
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

P
I 
N

o
.

2
0
0
2
/3

O
u

tt
u

rn

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

L
o

n
d

o
n

2
0
0
3
/4

T
a
rg

e
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 

3
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
it
iz

e
n
s
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
.

N
/A

6
0
%

S
u
rv

e
y
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 2

0
0
3
/0

4
. 
T

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

a
s
 i
n
 2

0
0
0
/0

1
.

4
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
a
n
ts

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 h

a
n
d
lin

g
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t.

N
/A

3
5
%

A
s
 B

V
3

1
8
0
 a

 (
i)

T
h
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 c

o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
/m

2
 o

f
lo

c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

K
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

 (
e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
).

1
1

1
.0

0
%

[2
]

1
0
9
.0

0
%

N
e
w

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.

1
8
0
 a

 (
ii
)

T
h
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 c

o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
/m

2
 o

f
lo

c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

K
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

 (
fo

s
s
il 

fu
e

ls
).

1
8

4
.0

0
%

[4
]

1
8
2
.0

0
%

N
e
w

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.

1
8
0
b

 (
0
2
/ 
0
3
)

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 l
a
m

p
 c

ir
c
u
it
 w

a
tt
a
g
e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 c

o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
/w

a
tt
a
g
e
 b

y
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

U
K

.
3
3
3
.0

0
[1

]
N

e
w

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.

1
8
0
b

 (
0
3
/ 
0
4
)

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 l
a
m

p
 c

ir
c
u
it
 e

n
e
rg

y
 c

o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

s
tr

e
e
t 
lig

h
ts

, 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 U

K
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
.

A
m

e
n
d
e
d
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
3
/2

0
0
4
.

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

3
3

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 p
e
r 

h
e
a
d
 o

f 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
g
e
 r

a
n
g
e
.

5
2
.9

7
[4

]
5
4
.2

9

T
a
rg

e
ts

fo
r

2
0
0
4
/5

a
n
d

2
0
0
5
/6

re
fl
e
c
t
a

p
la

n
n
e
d

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

o
f
£
3
0
0
K

in
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r,

 a
s
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 M

e
d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 B
u
d
g
e
ts

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 
to

 b
ri
n
g
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 c
lo

s
e
r 

to
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
.

3
4
a

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 2
5

%
 o

r 
m

o
re

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 p

la
c
e

s
 u

n
fi
lle

d
.

1
2

.5
0

%
[4

]
1
2
.5

0
%

4
4

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
tl
y
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

fr
o
m

 a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

u
p
ils

 a
t 
a
ll 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

.
2
.4

0
[4

]
2
.2

8

A
m

e
n
d
e
d
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 2

0
0
2
/0

3
 -

 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
n
o
w

 c
o
v
e
rs

 a
ll 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 

u
n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 o

n
ly

.

1
5
9

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
tl
y
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 p

u
p
ils

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 t
u
it
io

n
 o

f:

a
) 

 5
 h

o
u
rs

 o
r 

le
s
s
;

4
2
%

[1
]

2
5
%

A
s
 B

V
3
8
. 
(A

m
e
n
d
e
d
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.)

b
) 

6
-1

2
 h

o
u
rs

1
4
%

[1
]

1
0
%

A
s
 B

V
3
8
. 
(A

m
e
n
d
e
d
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.)

c
) 

1
3
-1

9
 h

o
u
rs

2
%

[4
]

1
0
%

A
s
 B

V
3
8
. 
(A

m
e
n
d
e
d
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.)

d
) 

2
0
 h

o
u
rs

 o
r 

m
o
re

.
4
2
%

[3
]

5
5
%

A
s
 B

V
3
8
. 
(A

m
e
n
d
e
d
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.)

1
9
2

Q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
te

a
c
h
in

g
 f
o
r 

e
a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 c

h
ild

c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 T

h
is

 r
e
p
la

c
e
s
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

(B
V

3
0
) 

a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

5
's

 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 (
B

V
3
6
a
) 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 d

e
le

te
d
.

N
e
w

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
3
/2

0
0
4
.

a
) 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 d

a
y
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
e
r 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

g
e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
; 
a
n
d

4
.0

0
A

s
 B

V
3
8
. 
N

e
w

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.

b
) 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
Q

T
S

 t
e
a
c
h
e
rs

 p
e
r 

1
0
 n

o
n
-m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
.

1
.1

0
A

s
 B

V
3
8
. 
N

e
w

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.

1
9
3

H
o
w

 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
m

p
a
re

s
 w

it
h
 i
ts

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.

a
) 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.

1
0
1
.6

9
%

A
s
 B

V
3
8
. 
N

e
w

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.

b
)

In
c
re

a
s
e

in
S

c
h
o
o
ls

B
u
d
g
e
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e
 o

f
th

e
in

c
re

a
s
e

in
S

c
h
o
o
ls

F
u
n
d
in

g
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

9
9
.8

0
%

A
s
 B

V
3
8
. 
N

e
w

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.

S
O

C
IA

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

5
0

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
(i
n

te
rf

a
c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

it
h

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
) 

b
y
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 a
g
e
d
 1

6
 o

r 
o
v
e
r 

w
it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
1
 G

C
S

E
 a

t 

g
ra

d
e

s
 A

*-
G

, 
o

r 
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
V

o
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
Q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
 (

G
N

V
Q

).
3

7
.5

0
%

[2
]

7
5
%

5
1

C
o
s
ts

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

b
y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 b
y
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
s
s
 w

e
e
k
ly

 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 p
e
r 

lo
o
k
e
d
-a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

 i
n
 f
o
s
te

r 
c
a
re

 o
r 

in
 a

 c
h
ild

re
n
's

 h
o
m

e
 (

£
)

7
0
8
.0

0
[2

]
7
4
3
.0

0
A

m
e
n
d
e
d
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.

5
2

C
o
s
t 
o
f 
in

te
n
s
iv

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 f
o
r 

a
d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 b
y
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 g

ro
s
s
 w

e
e
k
ly

 

c
o

s
t 

o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 c
a

re
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 (

£
)

5
3

1
.0

0
[2

]
5
6
7
.0

0
A

m
e
n
d
e
d
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.

5
3

In
te

n
s
iv

e
 h

o
m

e
 c

a
re

 p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 6

5
 o

r 
o
v
e
r.

1
3
.5

0
[3

]
1
6
.0

0
A

m
e
n
d
e
d
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.

5
4

O
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 h

e
lp

e
d

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h

o
m

e
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 6

5
 o

r 
o

v
e

r
7

0
.0

0
[4

]
8
0
.0

0
A

m
e
n
d
e
d
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.

1
6
1

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 w

e
re

 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

o
n
 1

 A
p
ri
l 
in

 t
h
e
ir
 1

7
th

 y
e
a
r 

(a
g
e
d
 1

6
) 

w
h
o
 w

e
re

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
th

e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
1
9
.

6
2
.1

0
%

[2
]

7
5
.0

0
%

1
9
6

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

n
e

w
 o

ld
e

r 
c
lie

n
ts

 w
h

e
re

 w
a

it
in

g
 t

im
e

 f
o

r 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

c
a

re
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

s
 w

a
s
 a

c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

.
N

/A
6

5
%

 
H

O
U

S
IN

G
 

7
4

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
ir
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
 (

s
u
rv

e
y
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
0
0
/0

1
)

A
m

e
n
d
e
d
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.

O
&

S
 2

-3
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 &
 B

V
P

I 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

p
p
x
 B

.x
ls

 N
o
n
 q

tl
y

1
2

1
7

/0
2

/0
4

 1
6

:1
7

140



B
E

S
T

 V
A

L
U

E
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
 2

0
0
3
/0

4
 T

H
A

T
 C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 R

E
P

O
R

T
E

D
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

P
I 
N

o
.

2
0
0
2
/3

O
u

tt
u

rn

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

L
o

n
d

o
n

2
0
0
3
/4

T
a
rg

e
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

(i
) 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 -

 a
ll 

te
n

a
n

ts

8
0
%

(s
u
rv

e
y
 i
n
 

2
0
0
0
)

[1
]

8
5
%

(i
i)

 b
la

c
k
 a

n
d

 m
in

o
ri

ty
 e

th
n

ic

7
4
%

(s
u
rv

e
y
 i
n
 

2
0
0
0
)

[1
]

8
5
%

(i
ii)

 n
o
n
-b

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

.

8
1
%

(s
u
rv

e
y
 i
n
 

2
0
0
0
)

[1
]

8
5
%

7
5

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 w

it
h
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
ir
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
 (

s
u
rv

e
y
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 i
n
 

2
0
0
3
/0

4
)

(i
) 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 -

 a
ll 

te
n

a
n

ts
7
0
%

(i
i)

 b
la

c
k
 a

n
d

 m
in

o
ri

ty
 e

th
n

ic
7
0
%

(i
ii)

 n
o
n
-b

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 e
th

n
ic

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

.
7
0
%

1
8
4
b

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
n
o
n
-d

e
c
e
n
t 
lo

c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
o
m

e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
3
 a

n
d
 

1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
0

4
.

-6
.0

0
%

[1
]

0
%

A
s
 B

V
3
8
. 
N

e
w

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.

 
H

O
U

S
IN

G
 B

E
N

E
F

IT
 A

N
D

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 T
A

X
 B

E
N

E
F

IT

8
0

O
v
e

ra
ll 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

.
S

u
rv

e
y
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
0
3
/0

4
. 
P

re
v
io

u
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

a
s
 i
n
 2

0
0
0
/0

1
.

a
) 

C
o

n
ta

c
t/

a
c
c
e

s
s
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

t 
th

e
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

o
ff

ic
e

.
7
3
%

b
) 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o

ff
ic

e
.

7
1
%

c
) 

T
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

5
0
%

d
) 

S
ta

ff
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
o
ff
ic

e
.

7
5
%

e
) 

C
la

ri
ty

 o
f 

fo
rm

s
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
fl
e

ts
.

6
4
%

f)
 T

im
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 f
o
r 

a
 d

e
c
is

io
n
.

5
8
%

g
) 

O
v
e

ra
ll 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
.

6
5
%

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

1
9
9

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
la

n
d
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 a

s
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

E
P

A
 1

9
9
0
 P

a
rt

 I
V

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 8

6
 

(e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
) 

th
a
t 
is

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 d

e
p
o
s
it
s
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

a
n
d
 d

e
tr

it
u
s
 (

e
g
, 

s
a
n
d
, 
s
ilt

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

d
e
b
ri
s
) 

a
c
ro

s
s
 f
o
u
r 

c
a
te

g
o
ri
e
s
 o

f 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 (

C
le

a
n
, 
L
ig

h
t,
 S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t,
 H

e
a
v
y
).

N
e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
2
0
0
3
/0

4

a
) 

C
le

a
n

2
0
.0

0
%

b
) 

L
ig

h
t

6
0
.0

0
%

c
) 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

1
8
.0

0
%

d
) 

H
e
a
v
y

2
.0

0
%

8
4

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
k
ilo

g
ra

m
s
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 p

e
r 

h
e
a
d
.

4
5
7
.0

0
[2

]
4
6
0
.0

0

8
6

C
o
s
t 
o
f 
w

a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 p

e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 (
£
)

4
6
.0

3
[4

]
5
1
.7

9

8
9

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

le
a
n
lin

e
s
s
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 a

re
a
.

8
0
.0

0
%

N
e
x
t 
s
u
rv

e
y
 d

u
e
 2

0
0
3
/0

4
. 
P

re
v
io

u
s
 w

a
s
 2

0
0
0

/0
1
.

9
0

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 -

a
s
 B

V
 8

9

a
) 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
.

8
0
%

b
) 

w
a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
8
0
%

c
) 

w
a

s
te

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l
8
0
%

9
1

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 a

re
a
 s

e
rv

e
d
 b

y
 a

 k
e
rb

s
id

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 

re
c
y
c
la

b
le

s
.

8
9
.0

0
%

[1
]

8
9
.0

0
%

A
m

e
n
d
e
d
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
. 
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
0
2
/0

3
 w

a
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
d
e
fi
n
it
io

n
 

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 d

ro
p
-o

ff
 s

it
e
s
.

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T

9
6

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
p

ri
n

c
ip

a
l 
ro

a
d

s
 -

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 w
it
h

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 r
e

s
id

u
a

l 
lif

e
9

.4
9

%
[3

]
8
.0

0
%

A
m

e
n
d
e
d
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.

9
7

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
n

o
n

-p
ri
n

c
ip

a
l 
ro

a
d

s
  

- 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 w

it
h

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 r
e

s
id

u
a

l 
lif

e

a
) 

C
la

s
s
if
ie

d
 n

o
n

-p
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
ro

a
d

s
.

9
.4

0
%

[1
]

9
.0

0
%

b
) 

U
n

c
la

s
s
if
ie

d
 n

o
n

-p
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
ro

a
d

s
.

1
6

.8
0

%
[2

]
1
5
.0

0
%

1
8
6

R
o
a
d
s
 n

o
t 
n
e
e
d
in

g
 m

a
jo

r 
re

p
a
ir

O
&

S
 2

-3
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 &
 B

V
P

I 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

p
p
x
 B

.x
ls

 N
o
n
 q

tl
y

1
3

1
7

/0
2

/0
4

 1
6

:1
7

141



B
E

S
T

 V
A

L
U

E
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 I
N

D
IC

A
T

O
R

S
 2

0
0
3
/0

4
 T

H
A

T
 C

A
N

N
O

T
 B

E
 R

E
P

O
R

T
E

D
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

L
Y

P
I 
N

o
.

2
0
0
2
/3

O
u

tt
u

rn

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

L
o

n
d

o
n

2
0
0
3
/4

T
a
rg

e
t

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

a
) 

P
ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
ro

a
d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 w
h
e
re

 m
a
jo

r 
s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
is

 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

.
4
2
.8

8
0

[3
]

4
2
.8

8
0

N
e
w

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
. 
T

h
e
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 2
0
0
2
/0

3
 a

n
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

c
a
lc

u
la

te
d
 i
n
 a

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
w

a
y
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
2
0
0
2
/0

3
, 
o
w

in
g
 t
o
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 s

in
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
.

b
) 

N
o
n
-p

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
ro

a
d
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 w
h
e
re

 m
a
jo

r 
s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
is

 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

.
2
3
1
.9

0
0

[2
]

2
3
1
.9

0
0

A
s
 B

V
1
8
6
a
. 
N

e
w

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.

1
8
7
a

C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
s
u
rf

a
c
e
 f
o
o
tw

a
y
.

2
9
.8

6
%

[2
]

3
0
.0

0
%

N
e
w

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fo

r 
2
0
0
2
/2

0
0
3
.

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G

1
0
6

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 b

u
ilt

 o
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 l
a
n
d
.

1
0
0
%

[1
]

1
0
0
%

C
U

L
T

U
R

A
L

 &
 R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

1
1
4

T
h
e
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
f 
a
 L

o
c
a
l 
C

u
lt
u
ra

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 (

s
c
o
re

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
c
h
e
c
k
lis

t)
1
0
0
%

[1
]

1
0
0
%

1
1
8

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
lib

ra
ry

 u
s
e
rs

 w
h
o
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 b

o
o
k
/i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
y
 w

a
n
te

d
 o

r 
re

s
e
rv

e
d
 i
t 
a
n
d
 w

e
re

 

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
a
t 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
.

S
u
rv

e
y
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
0
3
/0

4
. 
P

re
v
io

u
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

a
s
 i
n
 2

0
0
0
/0

1

a
) 

U
s
e
rs

 -
 f
o
u
n
d
 a

 b
o
o
k
 t
o
 b

o
rr

o
w

.
6
7
%

b
) 

U
s
e
rs

 -
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
y
 w

e
re

 l
o
o
k
in

g
 f
o
r.

6
2
%

c
) 

U
s
e

rs
 -

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 o
v
e

ra
ll.

8
3
%

1
1
9

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 C
u
lt
u
ra

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

S
u
rv

e
y
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
0
3
/0

4
. 
P

re
v
io

u
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

a
s
 i
n
 2

0
0
0
/0

1

a
) 

S
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 l
e

is
u

re
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
4
5
%

b
) 

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s

6
5
%

c
) 

M
u
s
e
u
m

s
3
5
%

d
) 

A
rt

s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 v

e
n
u
e
s

3
5
%

e
) 

P
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
.

6
5
%

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

1
7
4

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
ra

c
ia

l 
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

6
1
.0

6
[2

]
6
1
.0

0

1
7
5

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
ra

c
ia

l 
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 
re

s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
.

6
6
.1

4
%

[4
]

7
0
.0

0
%

O
&

S
 2

-3
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 &
 B

V
P

I 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 A

p
p
x
 B

.x
ls

 N
o
n
 q

tl
y

1
4

1
7

/0
2

/0
4

 1
6

:1
7

142


